McAlester City Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, March 13, 2018 — 6:00 pm
McAlester City Hall — Council Chambers

28 E. Washington
JORN Browne ..o Mayor
Weldon Smith w.ciisnimisaiiasiiniaiaiassmnsaiasio Ward One
Cully Stevens .............awanaaaainvsninimimimiamisaiaa sy Ward Two
Travis Read............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinissneee e, Ward Three
Robert Karr, Viee Mayor .........cccceviiiniiiniinniiesiisiinesssseenins Ward Four
Buddy Garvin ................ociiniie... Ward Five
Jason Barnett............coooiiiiiiiii e Ward Six
Peter J. Stasiak ... City Manager
William J. Ervin ..ot City Attorney
Cora M. MIAdIeton...........coccoiiieniiiiiiiieeetee e sreeeesvaenesne s City Clerk

This agenda has been posted at the McAlester City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on
the City website: www.cityofincalester.com within the required time frame.

The Mayor and City Council request that all cell phones and pagers be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the
audience are requested to step outside the Council Chambers to respond to a page or to conduct a phone
conversation.

The McAlester City Hall is wheelchair accessible. Sign interpretation or other special assistance for disabled
attendees must be requested 48 hours in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 918.423.9300, Extension
4956.

CALL TO ORDER

Announce the presence of a Quorum.

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL




March 13,2018 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 2 of 6

CITIZENS COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Residents may address Council regarding an item that is not listed on the Agenda. Residents must provide their
name and address. Council requests that comments be limited to five (5) minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by
one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed
Jrom the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

A. Approval of the Minutes from the February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
City Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

B. Approval of Claims for February 21, 2018 through March 6, 2018. (Toni Ervin, Chief
Financial Officer)

C. Concur with the Mayor’s appointment of Ira Brinlee to the Pittsburg County Regional
Expo Authority Board for a term to expire on June 30, 2020. (John Browne, Mayor)

D.  Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign an Annual Engagement Letter with
Crawford & Associates, P.C. for consultant services for the period of July 1, 2018 through
June 30, 2019. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)

128 Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign the attached “Outlay Report and
Request for Reimbursement for Construction Programs” for Project 3-40-0057-015-2017
“Rehabilitate Runway 2/20 and Connecting Taxiways (Design Only)”. (David Horinek,
Public Works Director)

F. Consider and act upon, approval of a Resolution to extend the term of the Cable
Television Permit with Vyve Broadband A, LLC. (Joe Ervin, City Atforney)

G. Consider and act upon, authorization for the Mayor to sign the application for Voya
Annuity Company for administration and investment of employee matching funds for our
457(b) plan. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARING

All persons interested in any ordinance listed under Scheduled Business shall have an opportunity to be heard in accordance
with Article 2, Section 2.12(b) of the City Charter.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA;
AMENDING MCALESTER CITY CODE CHAPTER 62, LAND
DEVELOPMENT, PLANNING, ZONING AND SUBDIVISIONS,
ARTICLE 1V, DIVISION 2, SECTION 62-256, R-1B SINGLE-FAMILY



March 13,2018 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 3 of 6

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, SECTION 62-258, R-2 TWO-FAMILY
DWELLING (DUPLEX) DISTRICT, AND SECTION 62-259, R-3
MULTIPLE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT; REPEALING ALL
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, AND PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 22, BUSINESSES, OF THE
McALESTER CITY CODE, CREATING ARTICLE VIII, MOBILE FOOD
VENDORS; AMENDING CHAPTER 48, FEES, CHARGES AND
SERVICE RATES, CREATING ARTICLE VIII, MOBILE FOOD
VENDORS; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, AND
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.

SCHEDULED BUSINESS

1. Discussion and update on water project and concerns. (Dalton Carlton, Utility
Maintenance, Walt Herring, Inframark, Robert Vaughan, Infrastructure Solutions Group)

Executive Summary
Discussion.

2. Consider and act upon, an ordinance amending McAlester City Code Chapter 62, Land
Development, Planning, Zoning and Subdivisions, Article IV, Division 2, Section 62-
256, R-1B Single-family residential district, Section 62-258, R-2 Two-family dwelling
(duplex) district, and Section 62-259, R-3 Multiple-family dwelling district; repealing all
conflicting ordinances, and providing for severability. (Jayme Clifton, Community and
Economic Development Director)

Executive Summary

Motion to act upon and approve the above ordinance amending McAlester City Code Chapter 62, Land
Development, Planning, Zoning and Subdivisions, Article IV, Division 2, Section 62-256, R-1B Single-family
residential district, Section 62-258, R-2 Two-family dwelling (duplex) district, and Section 62-259, R-3 Multiple-
family dwelling district; repealing all conflicting ordinances, and providing for severability, and authorizing the
Mayor to sign the ordinance.

3. Consider and act upon, an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Businesses, of the McAlester
City Code by creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors; amending Chapter 48, Fees,
Charges and Service Rates, creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors; repealing all
conflicting ordinances, and providing for severability. (Jayme Clifion, Community and
Economic Development Director)

Executive Summary

Motion to act upon and approve the above ordinance amending Chapter 22, Businesses, of the McAlester City Code
by creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors; amending Chapter 48, Fees, Charges and Service Rates, by creating
Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors, repealing all conflicting ordinances, providing for severability, and authorizing
the Mayor to sign the ordinance.



March 13,2018 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 4 of 6

4. Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign Change Order # 1 from KATCON
Inc., in the amount of $1,424.05 for the addition of removing and replacing failed and
heaved pavement at two locations adjacent to the Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter
Improvements project. The failures were noticed as repair work began. The first location
is at 2009 Cardinal Lane and the second location is at 2001 Cardinal Lane. (Robert
Vaughan, Infrastructure Solutions Group)

Executive Summary

The recommendation is to authorize the Mayor to sign Change Order # 1 from KATCON Inc., in the amount of
$1,424.05 for the addition of removing and replacing failed and heaved pavement at two locations adjacent to the
Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter Improvements project. The failures were noticed as repair work began. The first
location is at 2009 Cardinal Lane and the second location is at 2001 Cardinal Lane.

5. Submission, and Presentation of the 5-Year Capital Improvements Plan for FY 2018/19-
2022/23. (Peter Stasiak, City Manager)

Executive Summary
Presentation.

6. Consider and act upon, to accept the resignation of Councilman Weldon Smith as
Chairman of the McAlester Southside Area Reinvestment Review Committee and to
confirm the Mayor’s appointment as replacement to the Chairperson.

Executive Summary
Confirm the Mayor’s appointment as Chairperson of the Southside Area Reinvestment Review Committee.

NEW BUSINESS

Any matter not known or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the time of posting the Agenda in
accordance with Sec. 311.9, Title 25, Oklahoma State Statutes

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT (Peter J. Stasiak)
® Report on activities for the past two weeks.

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY CITY COUNCIL

MAYORS COMMENTS AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

RECESS COUNCIL MEETING

CONVENE AS McALESTER AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Majority of a Quorum required for approval




March 13, 2018 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 5 of 6

Approval of the Minutes from the February 27, 2018, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending March 6,
2018. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, authorization for the Mayor to
sign an Annual Engagement Letter with Crawford & Associates, P.C. for consultant
services for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. (Toni Ervin, Chief
Financial Officer)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item E, authorization for the Mayor to sign
the attached “Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for Construction Programs”
for Project 3-40-0057-015-2017 “Rehabilitate Runway 2/20 and Connecting Taxiways
(Design Only)”. (David Horinek, Public Works Director)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item G, authorization for the Mayor to
sign the application for Voya Annuity Company for administration and investment of
employee matching funds for our 457(b) plan. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 5, the submission and presentation of
the 5-Year Capital Improvements Plan for FY 2018/19-2022/23. (Peter Stasiak, City
Manager)

ADJOURN MAA

CONVENE AS McALESTER PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY

Majority of a Quorum required for approval

[ ]

Approval of the Minutes from the February 27, 2018, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
Public Works Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending March 6,
2018. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, authorization for the Mayor to
sign an Annual Engagement Letter with Crawford & Associates, P.C. for consultant
services for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. (Toni Ervin, Chief
Financial Officer)

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item G, authorization for the Mayor to
sign the application for Voya Annuity Company for administration and investment of
employee matching funds for our 457(b) plan. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)



March 13,2018 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 6 of 6

e Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 4, authorization for the Mayor to sign
Change Order # 1 from KATCON Inc., in the amount of $1,424.05 for the addition of
removing and replacing failed and heaved pavement at two locations adjacent to the
Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter Improvements project. The failures were noticed as repair
work began. The first location is at 2009 Cardinal Lane and the second location is at 2001
Cardinal Lane. (Robert Vaughan, Infrastructure Solutions Group)

e Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 5, the submission and presentation of
the 5-Year Capital Improvements Plan for FY 2018/19-2022/23. (Peter Stasiak, City
Manager)

ADJOURN MPWA

RECONVENE COUNCIL MEETING

ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION

I certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on this day of 2018 at a.m./p.m. as
required by law in accordance with Section 303 of the Oklahoma Statutes and that the appropriate news media was
contacted. As a courtesy, this agenda is also posted on the City of McAlester website: www.cilvofmcalester.com.

Cora M. Middieton, City Clerk



Council Chambers
Municipal Building
February 13, 2018

The McAlester City Council met in a Regular session on Tuesday, February 13, 2018, at 6:00
P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted, February 12, 2018 at 3:00 A.M.

Call to Order

Mayor Browne called the meeting to order.

Councilman Garvin gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Roll Call

Council Roll Call was as follows;

Present: Weldon Smith, Cully Stevens, Travis Read, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin & John
Browne
Absent: Jason Barnett

Presiding: John Browne, Mayor

Staff Present: Toni Ervin, CFO/Acting City Manager; Jayme Clifton, Community Development
Director; David Horinek, Public Works Director; William J. Ervin, City Attorney
and Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Recognition and Awards

Mayor Browne presented Kelly Jo London as January Employee of the Month. Ms. London
received a Certificate of Appreciation and a personal planner.

Citizens Comments on Non-Agenda Items
Residents may address Council regarding an item that is not listed on the Agenda. Residents must provide their
name and address. Council requests that comments be limited to five (5) minutes.

There were no citizens’ comments.

Consent Agenda
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by

one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed
Jrom the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

A. Approval of the Minutes from the December 26, 2017, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
City Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

B. Approval of the Minutes from the January 9, 2018, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
City Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

Page 1 of 10



C. Approval of Claims for January 17, 2018 through February 6, 2018. (Toni Ervin, Chief
Financial Officer) General Fund - $133,547.28; Nutrition - $2,868.27; Tourism Fund -
$8,857.28; SE Expo Center - $12,839.59; E-911 - $16,226.73; Economic Development -
$14,283.70; CDBG Grants Fund - $42,152.31; Fleet Maintenance - $13,728.19; Worker’s
Compensation - $941.68; CIP Fund - $52,981.78; Technology Fund - $29,692.31 and
Stormwater Fund - $3,284.13.

D. Accept and place on file the Pride in McAlester Second Quarter Performance Report for
FY 2017-2018. (Stephanie Giacomo, Executive Director)

E. Concur with the Mayor’s appointment of Dr. Raymond Dixon to replace Dr. Leroy
Milton on the Hospital Board for a term to expire on February 28, 2024. (John Browne,
Mayor)

F. Consider and act upon, a request from Savanna High School, to partner with them for the

rental fee for the use of the McAlester Expo Center for the ACT testing for students, set
for February 23", 2018 & April 3/, 2018 in the amount of $250.00. (Billy Sumner, Expo
Manager)

Councilman Smith requested that item “E” be removed for individual consideration.

A motion to approve Consent Agenda items “A through D and F” was made by Councilman

Read and seconded by Councilman Stevens. There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as

follows:

AYE: Councilman Read, Stevens, Smith, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

Items Removed from Consent Agenda

E. Concur with the Mayor’s appointment of Dr. Raymond Dixon to replace Dr. Leroy
Milton on the Hospital Board for a term to expire on February 28, 2024. (John Browne,
Mayor)

Councilman Smith commented that he felt this item should have a separate vote since it was
connected to the Hospital.

There was no further discussion and a motion to approve Consent Agenda item “E” was made by
Councilman Read. The motion was seconded by Councilman Stevens, and the vote was taken as

follows:

AYE: Councilman Read, Stevens, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Page 2 of 10



ABSTAIN: Councilman Smith (counted as a no vote)

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

A motion to open a Public Hearing to address two (2) CDBG Grant projects and three (3)
ordinances was made by Councilman Read and seconded by Councilman Smith. There was no

discussion and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Read, Smith, Karr, Garvin, Stevens & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried and them Public Hearing was opened at 6:07 P.M.

Public Hearing
All persons interested in any ordinance listed under Scheduled Business shall have an opportunity to be heard in accordance
with Article 2, Section 2.12(b) of the City Charter.

A PUBLIC HEARING ON FY2015 CDBG GRANT; WATERLINE REPLACEMENTS
PROJECT, FINAL PERFORMANCE REPORT. A PUBLIC HEARING ON CDBG 2015
WATERLINE REPLACEMENTS PROJECT, SHORT STONEWALL, COURT
AVENUE, AND N. 14™ STREET AREAS.

A PUBLIC HEARING ON FY2016 CDBG GRANT; WATERLINE REPLACEMENTS
PROJECT. A PUBLIC HEARING ON CDBG 2016 WATERLINE REPLACEMENTS
PROJECT, CRISSLER AVENUE AND ALLEY SOUTH OF CARL ALBERT
PARKWAY BETWEEN E STREET AND D STREET AREAS.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 2604 WHICH ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR
2017-18; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE AND
ACCOMPANYING MAP THERETO KNOWN AS GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE
No. 1843 (1989), BY CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION OF THE ZONING
DISTRICT FOR A TRACT OF LAND IN BLOCK 15, IN CONNALLY ADDITION, TO
THE CITY OF MCALESTER, PITTSBURG COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA,
FROM I-2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO C-5 HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL AND
COMMERCIAL RECREATION DISTRICT.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE AND
ACCOMPANYING MAP THERETO KNOWN AS GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE
No. 1843 (1989), BY CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION OF THE ZONING
DISTRICT FOR A TRACT OF LAND IN LOT 9 IN TOWNSITE ADDITION No. S TO
PITTSBURG COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT TO C-5 HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL AND COMMERCIAL RECREATION
DISTRICT.

Page 3 of 10



There were no comments or inquiries made on the CDBG Grant projects or the proposed
ordinances and a motion to close the Public Hearing was made by Councilman Read. The
motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Karr, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Read, Karr, Garvin, Smith, Stevens & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried and the Public Hearing was closed at 6:07 P.M.

Scheduled Business

1. Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign the Contractor’s Final Pay Estimate
No. 3 and the close out documents for the contract with KATCON, Inc. for construction
of the 2015 CDBG Water Improvements Phase IIT and accept the project as completed.

(Robert Vaughan, Infrastructure Solutions Group)
Executive Summary
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Contractor’s Final Pay Estimate No. 3 of $3,268.60 and the close-out
documents for the construction of the 2015 CDBG Water Improvements Phase III located along Court Avenue and
North 14" Street and accept the project as completed.

Robert Vaughan, P.E. Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC Branch Manager addressed the
Council explaining that the Contractor had completed all work on the 2015 CDBG Water
Improvements Phase I1I project.

Councilman Smith moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Contractor’s Final Pay Estimate
No. 3 of $3,268.60 and the close-out documents for the construction of the 2015 CDBG Water
Improvements Phase III located along Court Avenue and North 14" Street, and approve
RESOLUTION NO. 18-03, accepting the project as completed. The motion was seconded by
Vice-Mayor Karr. There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Smith, Karr, Garvin, Stevens, Read & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

2. Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign the Contractor’s Final Pay Estimate
No. 3 and the close out documents for the contract with KATCON, Inc. for construction
of the 2016 CDBG Water Improvements and accept the project as completed. (Robert

Vaughan, Infrastructure Solutions Group)
Executive Summary
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Contractor’s Final Pay Estimate No. 3 of $31,948.71 and the close-out
documents for the construction of the 2016 CDBG Water Improvements located along Crisler Avenue and the alley
south of Carl Albert Parkway between “E” Street and “D” Street and accept the project as completed.

Robert Vaughan, P.E. Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC addressed the Council explaining that
the Contractor had completed all work on the 2016 CDBG Water Improvements project.

Page 4 of 10



There was no further discussion, and a motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by
Councilman Garvin to authorize the Mayor to sign the Contractor’s Final Pay Estimate No. 3 of
$31,948.71 and the close-out documents for the construction of the 2016 CDBG Water
Improvements located along Crisler Avenue and the alley south of Carl Albert Parkway between
“E” Street and “D” Street and approve RESOLUTION NO. 18-04, accepting the project as
completed.

The vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Smith, Garvin, Stevens, Read, Karr & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

3. Consider and act upon, the final invoice from Millie Vance Inc. for administrative
services on FY-2016 CDBG Waterline Replacements Project. (Millie Vance, Millie
Vance Inc.)

Executive Summary
Motion to authorize payment on final invoice from Millie Vance Inc. for administrative services on FY-2016 CDBG
Waterline Replacements Project.

Millie Vance addressed the Council stating that both the 2015 and the 2016 CDBG projects were
completed and this was the final step in the process. She added that the City would be eligible to
apply in July for the next CDBG grant.

A motion was made by Councilman Read and seconded by Councilman Smith to authorize the
payment on the final invoice from Millie Vance, Inc. for administrative serviced on FY-2016
CDBG Waterline Replacements Project. There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as
follows:

AYE: Councilman Read, Smith, Stevens, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried

4. Discussion by the Bureau of Land Management regarding the recent surface and
subsurface mining activity. Representatives will be present to answer questions and

provide explanations. (John Browne, Mayor)
Executive Summary
Discussion.

Robert Pawelak, Patrick Rich, Allen Holubec and April Crawley of the Bureau of Land
Management addressed the Council concerning letters that had been received by citizens of the
City of McAlester regarding surface mining for coal.

Page 5 of 10



There was a brief discussion concerning the type of mining that could occur, where that mining
would be allowed, how the Federal Government had acquired mineral rights to property and how
any allowed mining could affect citizens.

There was no vote on this item.

5. Consider and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2604 which established
the budget for fiscal year 2017-2018; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a

severability clause; and declaring an emergency. (Toni Ervin, Acting City Manager)
Executive Summary
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance.

CFO Ervin addressed the Council reviewing the exhibits of the fiscal year 2017/2018 Budget
amendment. During this review CFO Ervin explained that the amendment would appropriate
funds for partnerships, the Walkability study signs and installation project, part of the
Streetscape design and the project at First Street and Choctaw Avenue. It would also appropriate
additional funds for the Comprehensive Plan and Bullet Proof vests and mobile radios for Patrol.

ORDINANCE NO. 2617

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 2604 WHICH ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR
2017-18; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Read to approve
ORDINANCE NO. 2617, amending fiscal year 2017/2018 Budget. There was no discussion,
and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Smith, Read, Karr, Garvin, Stevens & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

Councilman Stevens moved to approve the EMERGENCY CLAUSE. The motion was seconded
by Councilman Read, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Stevens, Read, Smith, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.
6. Consider and act upon, an Ordinance amending the general zoning ordinance and
accompanying map thereto known as General Zoning Ordinance No. 1843 (1989), by

changing the classification of the zoning district for a Tract of Land in Block 15, in
Connally Addition, to the City of McAlester, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma, from

Page 6 of 10



I-2 Heavy Industrial District to C-5 Highway Commercial and Commercial Recreation

District. (Jayme Clifton, Community Development Director)
Executive Summary
Motion to act upon and approve the above Ordinance changing the classification of the zoning district for the
property identified in the Ordinance from I-2 Heavy Industrial District to C-5 Highway Commercial and
Commercial Recreation District and authorizing the Mayor to sign the ordinance.

Director Clifton addressed the Council regarding the rezoning Ordinance. She stated that the
Planning and Zoning Commission had voted seven (7) to zero (0) to recommend the applicant’s
request during their January 16, 2018 meeting. She added that this was property located on east
Electric Avenue and the applicant wanted to make the property conforming to its’ use.

ORDINANCE NO. 2618

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE AND
ACCOMPANYING MAP THERETO KNOWN AS GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE
NO. 1843 (1989), BY CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION OF THE ZONING
DISTRICT FOR A TRACT OF LAND IN BLOCK 15, IN CONNALLY ADDITION, TO
THE CITY OF MCALESTER, PITTSBURG COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA,
FROM I-2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO C-5 HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL AND
COMMERCIAL RECREATION DISTRICT.

A motion was made by Councilman Stevens and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve
ORDINANCE NO. 2618, changing the zoning of a tract of land in Block 15 from I-2 Heavy
Industrial District to C-5 Highway Commercial and Commercial Recreation District. There was
no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Stevens, Smith, Read, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

7. Consider and act upon, an Ordinance amending the general zoning ordinance and
accompanying map thereto known as General Zoning Ordinance No. 1843 (1989), by
changing the classification of the zoning district for a Tract of Land in Lot 9 in Townsite
Addition No. 5 to Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma, from A-1 Agricultural District to
C-5 Highway Commercial and Commercial Recreation District. (Jayme Clifton,

Community Development Director)
Executive Summary
Motion to act upon and approve the above Ordinance changing the classification of the zoning district for the
property identified in the Ordinance from A-1 Agricultural District to C-5 Highway Commercial and Commercial
Recreation District and authorizing the Mayor to sign the ordinance.

Director Clifton addressed the Council regarding the rezoning Ordinance. She stated that the
Planning and Zoning Commission had voted seven (7) to zero (0), during its’ January 16, 2018
meeting to recommend the applicant’s request. She added that this was in the same area as the
previous item,

Page 7 of 10



ORDINANCE NO. 2619

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE AND
ACCOMPANYING MAP THERETO KNOWN AS GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE
NO. 1843 (1989), BY CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION OF THE ZONING
DISTRICT FOR A TRACT OF LAND IN LOT 9 IN TOWNSITE ADDITION NO. 5 TO
PITTSBURG COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT TO C-5S HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL AND COMMERCIAL RECREATION
DISTRICT.

Councilman Stevens moved to approve ORDINANCE NO. 2619 changing the zoning of a tract
of land in lot 9 in Townsite addition 5 from A-1 Agricultural District to C-5 Highway
Commercial and Commercial Recreation District. The motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor
Karr and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Stevens, Karr, Read, Garvin, Smith & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

8. Consider and act upon, a resolution amending the City’s Non-Uniform Pay Plan. (Toni
Ervin, Chief Financial Officer)

Executive Summary
Staff recommends motion to approve a resolution amending the City’s Non-Uniform Pay Plan.

CFO Ervin addressed the Council explaining that the Police and Fire pay scales had been
negotiated in the past two (2) years to add steps to the top of their pay scales. She stated that this
resolution would add six (6) steps to the top of each of the City’s Non-Uniform pay grades. She
added that this would also add pay grade 137 for the Assistant City Manager’s position.

After discussion concerning the Assistant City Manager’s position, when the position had been
approved and the pay scale, a motion was made by Councilman Read and seconded by
Councilman Garvin to approve RESOLUTION NO. 18-05, adding steps to the Non-Uniform pay
grades 107 through 140 and excluding pay grade 137. There was no further discussion, and the
vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Read, Garvin, Karr, Smith, Stevens & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried.

New Business
Any matter not known or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the time of posting the Agenda in
accordance with Sec. 311.9, Title 25, Oklahoma State Statutes.

There was no new business.

Page 8 of 10



City Manager’s Report
° Report on activities for the past two weeks.

CFO/Acting City Manager Ervin reported that the thirty inch (30”) line at the Water Plant had
been replaced and the pumps were working to fill the tanks. CFO/Acting City Manager Ervin
informed the Council that during the night the Variable Speed Drivers had quit working but one
was currently working with the other three (3) expected to be delivered Thursday. She added
that Staff would most likely be coming back to Council for more repairs on the thirty inch (30”)
line.

Remarks and Inquiries by City Council

Councilman Stevens asked if the City had looked into what a new water plant would cost. He
also commented on the excellent job that the employees do.

CFO Ervin stated that she thought they had and would get that information to him.
Councilman Garvin thanked the Police Department for patrolling the bypass.
Councilmen Smith, Read and Karr did not have any comments or inquiries for the evening.

Mayor’s Comments and Committee Appointments

Mayor Browne commented that through the tremendous work that had been done by Eddie Gray,
the Puterbaugh Foundation had given the City a grant of $125,000.00 for the Streetscape Project.
He also thanked the employees for the job they do.

Recess Council Meeting

Councilman Stevens moved to recess the Regular Meeting and convene the Authorities. The
motion was seconded by Councilman Smith.

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Stevens, Smith, Karr, Garvin, Read & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried and the meeting was recessed at 6:58 P.M.

Reconvene Council Meeting

The Regular Meeting was reconvened at 6:59 P.M.

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Garvin to recess the
Regular Meeting for an Executive Session in accordance with Title 25, Sec. 307 (B) (4) for

Page 9 of 10



Confidential communications between a public body and its attorney concerning pending
investigations, claims, or actions.

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Smith, Garvin, Stevens, Read, Karr & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried and the Regular Meeting was recessed at 6:59 P.M.

Executive Session
Recess into Executive Session in compliance with Section Title 25 Section 307 B.4 et.seq. Oklahoma Statutes, to wit:

e Proposed executive session pursuant to Title 25, Sec. 307 (B) (4) for Confidential
communications between a public body and its attorney concerning pending
investigations, claims, or actions.

Return to Open Session

The Regular Meeting was reconvened at 7:48 P.M. Mayor Browne reported that the Council had
recessed the Regular Meeting for an Executive Session in accordance with Title 25, Sec. 307 (B)
(4) for Confidential communications between a public body and its attorney concerning pending
investigations, claims, or actions. Only that matter was discussed, no action was taken, and the
Council returned to open session at 7:48 P.M., and this constituted the Minutes of the Executive
Session.

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Council, Councilman Smith moved for the
meeting to be adjourned. The motion was seconded by Councilman Read.

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Smith, Read, Stevens, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Browne
NAY: None

Mayor Browne declared the motion carried, and the meeting was adjourned at 7:48 P.M.

ATTEST: John Browne, Mayor

Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Page 10 of 10



CLAIMS FROM

February 21, 2018
Thru
March 6, 2018



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 1
PACKET ¢ 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND s 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-1 MISC VENDOR
KEVIN AUSTIN 1-201803050672 01 -5432331 EMPLOYE TRAVE TRAVEL EXP-COQUNSELING/EVAL 086628 147.15
01-A00026 AT & T LONG DISTANCE
I-201802210636 01 -5215315 TELEPHONE UTI PHONE UTIL-LONG DISTANCE 086583 49.21
01-A00154 PROPHET EQUITY II-B
I-PRI1567056 01 -5865312 EQUIPMENT REN OFFIC RENTAL-STREETS 086631 318.87
01-A00200 ADAM TRUE VALUE & AG SU
1-326663 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086633 5.00
I-327265 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086633 45.00
I-327391 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086633 36.00
I-339090 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086633 50.00
I-339196 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086633 560,00
01-A00202 ADT SECURITY SERVICES
I-653201952 01 -5542308 CONTRACTED SE MO, SECURITY MONITORING 086634 46.79
01-A00267 AIRGAS, INC
I-9072744139 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI BOTTLE RENTAL PARKS 086637 141.33
I-9073140648 01 -5432202 OPERATING SUP EMS OXYGEN & SUPPLIES 086637 175.85
01-A00362 VYVE BROADBAND
1-201802210637 01 -5431328 INTERNET SERV INTERNET SVS5-FIRE STATION 2 086584 62.95
I-201802280655 01 -5547328 INTERNET SERV INTERNET SVS-OAK HILL 0B6596 62,80
I-201802280655 01 -5865328 INTERNET SERV INTERNET SVS-CENT GARAGE 086596 88.90
I-201802280655 01 -5431328 INTERNET SERV INTERNET SVS-CENT GARAGE 086596 62,95
01-A00500 AMERICAN MUNICIPAI SERV
I-JAN2018 01 -2105 COLLECTION AG COLLECTIONS PAYABLE 086639 9,069.83
01-A00751 ATWOODS
1-4305/9 01 -5544203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086641 17.99
I-4313/9 01 -5544203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086641 7.96
I-4334/9 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086641 31.84
01-B0O01B0 UNION IRON WORKS, INC,
I-52047700.001 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086644 250.69
I-52055004,001 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086644 18.39
I-52057612.001 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086644 19.49
01-B00478 BRENDA PETTY UNLIMITED,
I-18-06 01 -5431202 OPERATING SUP DOCUMENT EXAMINATION 086645 395.00
01-B00503 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC S
I-52316813,001 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 086646 37.68
I-52319081.001 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 086646 55,27
1-52320234,001 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 086646 83.37



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 2
PACKET : 16271 16277 162688 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM H G/1. ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-B00503 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC S continued
1-52320234.002 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIRS & MAINT ITEM 086646 11.79
I-52320437.001 01 -5548B203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 086646 299,82
01-B00642 CAPITOL INFORMATION GRO
I-NBEFF12 01 -5653330 DUES & SUBSCR HR SPECIALIST SUBSCRIPTIO 086647 149.00
01-C00320 CENTERPOINT ENERGY ARKL
1-201802280656 01 -5215314 GAS UTILITY GAS UTILITY-315 E KREBS 086599 25.14
1-201802280656 01 -5215314 GAS UTILITY GAS UTILITY-EMER RESP CTR 086599 817.37
01-C00667 HESSEL HOLDING CO. dba
I-1803997 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR FILTER FABRIC 086651 2,077.08
01-C00B840 CRAWFORD & ASSOCIATES P
I-11281 01 -5215302 CONSULTANTS CONSULTING FEES 086652 480.00
01-D00097 DASH MEDICAL GLOVES, IN
I-INV1094460 01 -5432202 OPERATING SUP MEDICAL SUPPLIES 086653 384,50
I-INV1095140 01 -5653213 SAFETY EXPENS MEDICAL GLOVES 086653 197.70
01-D00540 DOLESE BROTHERS
I-AG18013171 01 -5665218 STREET REPAIR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN 086658 1,370.91
I-AG1B015277 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN 086658 195.70
I-AG18017214 01 -5865218 STREET REPATR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN 086658 553.20
I-AG18017605 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN 086658 572.44
I-AG18017606 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN-1000TN 086658 770.47
I-AG18018B626 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN-1000TN 086658 387.13
I-AG18019079 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR 1 1/2" CRUSHER RUN-1000TN 086659 1,501.31
01-E00266 ERVIN & ERVIN ATTORNEYS
I-MARCH 2018 01 -5214302 CONSULTANTS CONTRACT LEGAL SVS-MAR 2018 086606 3,233.33
01-G00010 G C RENTAL CENTER, INC
I-50878 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR EQUIPMENT RENTAL FEE 086663 27.00
01-G00490 GRISSOM IMPLEMENT INC
I-670602 01 -5542339 VEHICLE/EQUIP REPAIR PARTS 086664 58.13
01-I00049 IDEAL CLEANING
I-3417 01 -5548308 CONTRACTED SE MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICE 086666 1,835.00
01-I00120 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES
I-025-215275 01 -5213336 FEES MONTHLY SUPPORT FEES-CQURT 086667 200,00
1-025-215275 01 -5225349 SOFTWARE MAIN MONTHLY SUPPORT FEES-IT 086667 220.50
01-I00140 INDIAN NATION WHOLESALE
1-6968876 01 -5544202 OPERATING SUP CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086669 631.66



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 3
PACKET : 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECKH# AMOUNT
[T = mwre e R L L r L m=mmes mnemm
01-J00121 JAMESCO ENTERPRISES, LL
I-17666 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 086670 52,00
1-17672 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 086670 116.10
01-J00155 JERED L WEEKS DBA REDIR
I-18-04 01 -5432316 REPAIRS & MAI RADIO REPAIRS 086671 245,00
01-J00338 JOB CONSTRUCTION CO INC
1-34614 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR ASPHALT FOR STREET REPAIR 086672 1,091.55
01-J00501 JUSTIN R BUCKNER DBA JB
1-120612 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR HAULING FEE 086675 4,045.63
01-K00205 KIAMICHI AUTOMOTIVE WHO
I1-062287 01 -5431203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR PARTS 086676 9.96
01-K00226 CROWNOVER VETERINARY db
1-186068 01 -5321208 CANINE UNIT S BOARDING & SHOTS FOR K9 086677 92.50
01-L00067 COMPLIANCE RESOURCE GRO
I-43670 01 -5653348 DRUG TESTING/ RANDOM DRUG TESTING 086678 50.00
I-43671 01 -5653348 DRUG TESTING/ RANDOM DRUG TESTING 086678 52,00
01-L00419 LORMAN EDUCATION SERVIC
I-3261889-1 01 -5652331 EMPLOYEE TRAV PCD TRAINING 086680 249.00
01-L00428 LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES
C-12262 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 3,60-
1-02233 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 17,86
1-02379 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 112,79
1-02780 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 7.70
1-06010 01 -5544203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 11.23
1-07714 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 27.51
1-07873 01 -5321202 OPERATING SUP SUPPLIES AS NEEDED 086681 132,14
1-08794 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 18,09
I-901655 01 -5544203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 79.80
I1-902153 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 25.00
1-902470 01 -5544203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 108,68
1-907155 01 -5544203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086661 27.52
1-9902626 01 -5548203 REPARIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086682 241.41
1-9906934 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086682 41,52
01-M00101 SOUTH CANADIAN FLOORS (
I1-001311 01 -5542316 REPAIRS & MAI REFINISH GYM FLOOR 086683 1,700.00
01-M00280 MEGAPATH CLOUD COMPANY,
1-2018022B0662 01 -5215315 TELEPHONE UTI PHONE UTILITY-LONG DISTANCE 086600 410.65

01-M00480 MILLER GLASS COMPANY, I



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 4

PACKET ¢ 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND s 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-M00480 MILLER GLASS COMPANY, I continued

I-19899 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI DOOR CLOSURE HARDWARE 0866686 464.00
01-M00487 MILLER OFFICE EQUIPMENT

I-MCA403747 01 -5215312 EQUIPMENT REN MONTHLY COPIER SVS 086687 537.35

I-MCR403910 01 -5215312 EQUIPMENT REN MONTHLY COPIER 5VS 086687 107.18
01-M00570 MOORE MEDICAL CORP.

1-99787287 01 -5432202 OPERATING SUP MEDICAL SUPPLIES 086688 75.79

I-99804108 01 ~5432202 OPERATING SUP MEDICAL SUPPLIES 086688 859,96
01-MC0146 PITTSBURG COUNTY EMERGE

I-201803050674 01 -5101353 PITTSBURG EME FEB EMER MNGT SVS 086691 4,166.67
01-N00250 MCALESTER NEWS CAPITAL

I-300018647 01 -5212317 ADVERTISING & COUNCIL PUBLICATIONS 086692 63.25

I-300018648 01 -5212317 ADVERTISING & COUNCIL PUBLICATIONS 086692 67.90

I-300018649 01 -5212317 ADVERTISING & COUNCIL PUBLICATIONS 086692 14.35
01-N00343 NORTHERN SAFETY CO INC

I1-902821077 01 -5653213 SAFETY EXPENS RUF-FLEX GLOVES 086695 403.46
01-000039 OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE

I-2/10/2018 0l -5653348 DRUG TESTING/ PHYSICAL AGILITY TESTING 086696 196.00
01-000075 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS

I-0230-125506 01 -5431203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR PARTS 086697 20,99

I-0230-136862 01 -5431203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR PARTS 086697 97.35
01-000121 OK FIRE, LLC

I-1119 01 -5431204 SMALL TOOLS DRIP TORCH-1.25 GAL 086698 163.00
01-000160 OKLA ASSOC. CHIEF/POLIC

I-2018 TRNG CONF 01 -5321331 EMPLOYEE TRAV ANNUAL TRAINING CONFERENC 086700 265,00
01-000290 OKLA FIRE CHIEFS ASSOC.

I-17-18 DUES 01 -5431330 DUES & SUBSCR FIRE CHIEF DUES 086703 36.00
01-000358 OKLA ST DEPT OF HEALTH

I-2018 LIC RENEW 01 -5432202 OPERATING SUP RENEW AMBULANCE LICENSE 086704 320.00
01-000410 OKLA STATE UNIVERSITY

I-1601 01 -5432202 OPERATING SUP CPR CARDS 086705 30.00
01-000520 OIL-OK INDEPENDENT LIVI

I-022018-2015-2016 01 -5101355 OIL-OK FOR IN CONTRACT-OK FOR INDEPENDENT LI 086706 2,000,00
01-000530 OML-OK MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

I-BEAUTIFIC. WKSHP 01 -5652331 EMPLOYEE TRAV BEAUTIFICATION WORKSHOP 086707 170.00



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 5
PACKET 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-000556 OMAG-OK MUNICIPAL ASSUR
1-2/15/18 4TH QTR 01 -5215322 LIABILITY INS PROPERTY INS PREMIUM 086709 13,817.75
01-P00340 PITTS., COUNTY ELEC. BOA
I-2/13/18 ELECTION 01 -5101350 ELECTIONS FEB2018 SPEC ELECTION 086710 2,456.42
I-PRE-ELECTION EXP 01 -5101350 ELECTIONS APR2018 COUNCIL ELECTION 086710 1,484.06
01-P00510 PRO-KIL, INC
1-172207 01 -5548203 REPAIRS & MAI PEST CONTROL-CITY BL 086712 550.00
01-P00560 PUBLIC SERVICE/REP
I-201802210638 01 -5215313 ELECTRIC UTIL ELECTRIC UTIL-STREET LIGHTS 086585 13,647.92
I-201802280659 01 -5215313 ELECTRIC UTIL ELECTRIC UTILITY-1699 CARL ALB 086601 24.78
01-R00412 RPM STAFFING PROFESSION
1-92651 01 -5865308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMPLOYEE-STREETS 086714 845,28
1-92734 01 -5865308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMPLOYEE-STREETS 086714 1,127.04
01-S00010 SADLER REFRIGERATION
I1-6307 01 -5548316 REPAIRS & MAI ICE MACHINE MAINT FEE 086718 123.00
01-S00190 SECURITY SYS. & ENG. IN
I1-31768 01 -5548316 REPAIRS & MAI ALARM MONIT FEE-LIBRARY 086719 60.00
1-31771 01 -5544308 CONTRACT LABO SECURITY MONITORING FEE 086719 60.00
1-31778 01 -5547308 CONTRACTED SE SECURITY MONITORING FEE 086719 120,00
1-31779 01 -5547308 CONTRACTED SE SECURITY MONITORING FEE 086719 120.00
01-500329 SHRED-IT US JV LLC dba
I1-8124137642 01 -5212308 CONTRACTED SE MONTHLY SHRED SERVICE 086720 77.44
01-500445 PACKAGING SOLUTIONS, LL
1-21158 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP COPY PAPER-ALL OFFICES 086721 689.36
01-500726 STAPLES ADVANTAGE
I1-3368591061 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 4.99
I-3368591067 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 309.86
I1-3368591069 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 148.54
1-3369230012 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 24,69
I1-3369230013 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 59.99
1-3369230014 01 -5215202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 153,71
I-3369788122 01 -5321332 COMMUNITY SER OPERATING SUPPLIES 086722 176.35
01-T00010 T. H. ROGERS LUMBER CO.
I-548214 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR TRAILER FLOORING 086723 213,94
1-548226 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR TRAILER FLOORING 086723 63.10
1-548248 01 -5542203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086723 126.13
1-548350 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR FORMING MATERIALS 086723 14,75
01-T00058 BIZTEL COMMUNICATIONS



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 6
PACKET 1 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND ¢ 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-T00058 BIZTEL COMMUNICATIONS continued
I-7573 01 -5321202 OPERATING SUP PHONE FOR JAIL AREA 086725 120.00
01-T00185 DOUGHTERY'S PHARMACY MC
I-2/14/18 01 -5653213 SAFETY EXPENS POISON IVY PREVENTATIVE 086726 250,00
01-T00598 TULSA ASPHALT LLC
I-17729 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR ASPHALT FOR EASY STREET 086727 5,861.90
01-T00630 TWIN CITIES READY MIX,
I-159969 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR CONCRETE-STREET REPAIRS 086729 1,582.00
I-160044 01 -5865218 STREET REPAIR CONCRETE-STREET REPAIRS 086729 2,090.50
01-U00128 UNITED PACKAGING & SHIP
1-221243 01 -5321202 OPERATING SUP SHIPPING FEES 086732 17.75
I-222274 01 -5321202 OPERATING SUP SHIPPING FEES 086732 8.03
I-222324 01 -5321202 OPERATING SUP SHIPPING FEES 086732 13.85
I1-223025 01 -5431202 OPERATING SUP SHIPPING FEES 086732 25.49
I-223393 01 -5865203 REPAIR & MAIN SHIPPING FEES 086732 25.82
I-223412 01 -5653202 OPERATING SUP SHIPPING FEES 086732 20.6%9
01-W00040 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC
I-02701 01 -5320202 OPERATING EXP MISC OPERATING SUPPLIES 086733 26.00
I-06429 01 -5544202 OPERATING SUP MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086733 29.31
I-08221 01 -5431202 OPERATING SUP MISC OPERATING SUPPLIES 086733 282.82
I-09563 01 -5431202 OPERATING SUP MISC OPERATING SUPPLIES 086733 111.70
01-W00193 HTW ENTERPRISES INC dba
I-70567 01 -5321316 REPAIRS & MAI UNIT #S - 73, 104, 105 086735 80.00
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND TOTAL: 93,914.73



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 7

PACKET 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND HE— 4 MPWA
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-A00154 PROPHET EQUITY II-B

I-PRI1564415 02 -5864312 EQUIPMENT REN TRAILER RENTAL-LANDFILL 086631 328,78
01-R00768 AT§T CORP DBA ACC BUSIN

I-201802280657 02 -5267315 TELEPHONE UTI INTERNET SVS-CITY HALL 086597 942,36
01-B00503 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC S

I-52299149.001 02 -5973203 REPAIRS & MAI TIME MARK PUMP CONTROLLER 086646 1,000.00
01-C00320 CENTERPOINT ENERGY ARKL

1-201802280656 02 -5267314 GAS UTILITY GAS UTILITY-CENT GARAGE 086599 752.86
01-D00158 DAVID T HARDGRAVE

I-4-1808 02 -5973302 CONSULTANTS ( CONSULTANT FEES 086654 1,800.00
01-F00037 FASTENAL

I-OKMCA162902 02 -5973203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC MAINT & REPAIR ITEMS 086660 105.76
01-H00016 CORE & MAIN LP

I-I433759 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT WATERLINE REPAIR ITEMS 086665 636.74

I-I445143 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT WATERLINE REPAIR ITEMS 086665 944.74
01-I00120 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES

I-025-215275 02 -5216336 FEES MONTHLY SUPPORT FEES-UB&C 086667 293.16
01-I00188 INFRASTRUCTURE SOLUTION

I-MC-18-01-01 02 -5871302 CONSULTANTS GENERAL SERVICES 086669 1,280.00

I-MC-18-02-02 02 -5871302 CONSULTANTS OKIE LOCATES 086669 3,596.00
01-L00428 LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES

I-9901448 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 82.07

I-9902470 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT MISC REPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 086681 33.91
01-000075 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS

I-0230-132652 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT HOSES FOR FLUSH TRUCK 086697 12.51

I-0230-136359 02 -5973203 REPAIRS & MAI LIFT STATION REPAIR ITEMS 086697 49.92
01-000275 OKLA DEPT OF COMMERCE

I-032018-#8908 02 -5267521 CDBG LOAN #89 CDBG - EDIF #8908 086702 1,145.83
01-000556 OMAG-OK MUNICIPAL ASSUR

I-2/15/18 4TH QTR 02 -5267322 LIABILITY INS PROPERTY INS PREMIUM 086709 5,027.25
01-R00412 RPM STAFFING PROFESSION

I-92652 02 -5975308 CONTRACTED SE TEMP EMPLOYEE-UTM 086714 1,857.94

I-92653 02 -5973308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMP-WASTEWATER 086714 1,629.60

1-92735 02 -5975308 CONTRACTED SE TEMP EMPLOYEE-UTM 086714 1,488.06

I-92736 02 -5973308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMP-WASTEWATER 086714 1,629.60



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 8
PACKET ¢ 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FOND v 02 MPWA
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-T00052 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING S
I-100877 02 -5216336 FEES UB&C MAILING FEE 086724 869.43
I-100877 02 -5216317 POSTAGE UB&C MAILING FEE-POSTAGE 086724 1,338.41
01-U00051 UTILITY SUPPLY CO., INC
I-112360 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 475.80
I-112361 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 286.61
I-112362 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 102.35
I-112363 02 -5975230 SEWER MAIN RE SEWER LINE REPAIR ITEMS 086730 34.00
I-112364 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 70.36
I-112366 02 -5216202 OPERATING SUP METER READER SUPPLIES 086730 458.65
1-112367 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 103.74
I-112368 02 -5975230 SEWER MAIN RE SEWER LINE REPAIR ITEMS 086730 27.30
I-112547 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 125,30
I-112548 02 -5975230 SEWER MAIN RE SEWER LINE REPAIR ITEMS 086730 98.35
I-112549 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 244,01
I-112550 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT SUPPLIES FOR WTR LINE REP 086730 600,78
I-122365 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT WATERLINE REPAIR ITEMS 086730 147.82
01-U00052 UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERV
I-5102431900.001 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT METER TRANSMITTERS 086731 2,700.00
I-5102484253.001 02 -5975211 WATER METERS METER TRANSMITTERS 086731 6,000.00
I~5102411996,001 02 -5975209 UTILITY MAINT METER TRANSMITTERS 086731 878.65
01-v00072 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVIC
I-201802280661 02 -5216328 INTERNET SERV INTERNET SVS-AMI BASE STATIONS 086603 50,04
01-W00082 WASTE & RECYCLING PLAST
I-9409 02 -5866230 RECYCLING CEN 2YD FRONT LOAD DUMPSTER 086734 650,00

FUND 02

MPWA T

OTAL:

39,898.69



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 9

PACKET ¢ 16271 16277 16268 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND ¢ 03 AIRPORT AUTHORITY
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
====n o =mmmmmm nEnan
01-C00320 CENTERPOINT ENERGY ARKL

I-201802280656 03 -5876314 GAS UTILITY GAS UTILITY-AIRPORT 086599 51.38
01-F00170 FIRST NATIONAL BANK

1-032018-#119817 03 -5876511 FNB LOAN #119 LOAN #119817 - AIRPORT AUTH 086661 5,020.00
01-F00220 FLIGHT LIGHT INC

I-0062280-IN 03 -5876203 REPAIRS & MAI PARTS FOR RUNWAY LIGHTS 086662 97.10
01-J00404 JOHN OR LUCILLE WHETSEL

I-032018-LEASE PMT 03 -5876501 OUTER MARKER AIRPORT OUTERMARKER LEASE 086674 225.00
01-000556 OMAG-OK MUNICIPAL ASSUR

I-2/15/18 4TH QTR 03 -5876322 INSURANCE/BON PROPERTY INS PREMIUM 086709 2,356.50

FUND 03 AIRPORT AUTHORITY

TOTAL:

7,749.98



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 10
PACKET 1 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND 08 NUTRITION
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-A00324 ALISHA RAE HOWELL
I-201803060677 08 -5549308 CONTRACT SERV MEAL DEL-10 DAYS 086638 150.00
I-201803060678 08 -5549308 CONTRACT SERV REIMB MILEAGE-MEAL DEL 086638 107.91
01-D00405 DIANE CHADSEY
1-201803060676 08 -5549308 CONTRACT SERV REIMB MILEAGE-MEAL DEL 086656 78.48
01-E00207 EMMA E. BELLIS
I1-201803060679 08 -5549308 CONTRACT SERV REIMB MILEAGE-MEAL DEL 086659 93.20
01-R00412 RPM STAFFING PROFESSION
I-92650 08 -5549308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMP-NUTRITION 086714 306.18
I-92733 08 -5549308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMP-NUTRITION 086714 209.79
01-500580 AT & T
I-201802280658 08 ~5549315 TELEPHONE UTI PHONE UTILITY-NUTRITION 086602 304.01

FUND

08 NUTRITION

TOTAL:

1,249.57



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 11
PACKET + 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND ¢ 20 CEMETERY CABRE FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L. ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-J00400 DEERE & COMPANY
I-05314982 20 -5211401 CAPITAL OUTLA MOWER FOR CEMETERY 086673 8,650.18
CEMETERY CARE FUND TOTAL: 8,650.18

FUND 20



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE:

PACKET s 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND : 27 TOURISM FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-A00172 ADAM GRONWALD DBA HAPPY

I-55 7 -5655308 CONTRACT SERV DIGITAL MEDIA MGMT SVS 086632 1,200.00
01-C00149 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICE

I-18331861 7 -5655318 PRINTING MONTHLY COPIER LEASE 086598 71.00
01-C00469 CITY OF MCALESTER SPECI

I-MEGAFEST2018 7 -5655214 TOURISM EXPEN INCENTIVE-MEGR FEST 086649 750.00
01-MC0134 MCALESTER MAIN STREET

1-022018-2015-2016 7 -5655353 MAIN STREET P CONTRACT- MCALESTER MAIN ST 086690 1,250.00
01-000137 OKLA TOURISM/RECREATION

I-2018ROADSHOWBOOTH -5655214 TOURISM EXPEN ROADSHOW BOOTH RENT 086699 175.00
01-P00450 PRIDE IN MCALESTER

I-022018-2015-2016 7 -5655352 MISC PRIDE IN CONTRACT-PRIDE IN MCALESTER 086711 2,500,00
01-S00726 STAPLES ADVANTAGE

I1-3368591062 7 -5655202 OPERATING SUP OFFICE SUPPLIES 086722 25.91
01-TO0500 TRACY PARROTT, DBA PARR

I-201803050675 7 -5655340 OFFICE RENT OFFICE RENT-MAR 2018 000000 1,292.50

FUND 27 TOURISM FUND

TOTAL:

7,264.41



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 13
PACKET : 16271 16277 16268 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND ;28 SE EXPO CENTER
VENDOR NAME ITEM 4 G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
e

01-A00768 AT&T CORP DBA ACC BUSIN

1-201802280657 28 -5654328 INTERNET SERV INTERNET SVS-EXPO 086597 659,00
01-C00149 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICE

1-18331861 28 -5654202 OPERATING SUP MONTHLY COPIER LEASE 086598 77.00
01-C00580 COCA COLA BOTTLING CO

1-103 28 -5654210 CONCESSION SU CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086650 330.00

1-41521787 28 -5654210 CONCESSION SU CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086650 440.00
01-100140 INDIAN NATION WHOLESALE

1-6865273 28 -5654210 CONCESSION SU CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086668 1,091.06
01-J00121 JAMESCO ENTERPRISES, LL

I-17700 28 -5654203 REPAIR & MAIN JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 086670 513.11

I1-17701 28 ~5654203 REPAIR & MAIN JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 086670 149,42

I1-17713 28 -5654210 CONCESSION SU CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086670 286.22
01-L00078 LAMBERT MECHANICAL INC

1-180027 28 -5654203 REPAIR & MAIN REPAIR & MAINT-HEATING 086679 2,328,92
01-000556 OMAG-OK MUNICIPAL ASSUR

1-2/15/18 4TH QTR 28 -5654322 LIABILITY INS PROPERTY INS PREMIUM 086709 6,521.00
01-P00540 PRUETTS FOOD, INC

I-7 4 82 137 28 -5654210 CONCESSION SU CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086713 10.74
01-P00560 PUBLIC SERVICE/REP

I-201802280659 28 -5654313 ELECTRIC UTIL ELECTRIC UTILITY-EXPO 086601 7,035.66

1-201802280659 26 -5654313 ELECTRIC UTIL ELECTRIC UTILITY-EXPO RV PARK 086601 69.95
01-R00412 RPM STAFFING PROFESSION

1-92649 28 -5654308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMPLOYEE-EXPO 086714 503.10

1-92732 28 -5654308 CONTRACT SERV TEMP EMPLOYEE-EXPO 086714 528.26
01-500009 SADLER PAPER CO

I-131768 28 -5654203 REPAIR & MAIN JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 086717 463,61
01-W00040 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC

I-07300 28 -5654210 CONCESSION SU CONCESSION SUPPLIES 086733 126.94

FUND 28

SE EXPO CENTER

TOTAL:

21,135.99



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 14
PACKET 1 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND i 29 E-911
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-1 MISC VENDOR
IVY FANT 1-201803060680 29 -5324207 CLOTHING ALLQ IVY FANT:CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 086629 92.76
IVY FANT I-201803060681 29 -5324207 CLOTHING ALLO IVY FANT:SHOE ALLOWANCE 086630 83.71
01-W00392 WINDSTREAM CORPORATION
1-201802280660 29 -5324315 TELEPHONE UTI 911 COUNTY TRUNK LINE 086604 457.19
FUND 29 E-911 TOTAL: 633.66



3/07/2016 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 15

PACKET 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND + 30 ECONCMIC DEVELOPMENT
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# BAMOUNT
01-C00149 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICE

I-18331861 30 -5652202 OPERATING SUP MONTHLY COPIER LEASE 086598 28.00
01-M00277 MDSS MCALESTER DEFENSE

I-201803050673 30 -5652343 2016 OSMPC GR CHAMBER ADMIN SPACE-FEB 2018 086684 1,750.00
01-MC0134 MCALESTER MAIN STREET

1-022018-2015-2016 30 -5211353 MAIN STREET P CONTRACT- MCALESTER MAIN ST 086690 1,250.00
01-000275 OKLA DEPT OF COMMERCE

1-032018-#12248 30 -5211510 CDBG / EDIF D CDBG - EDIF CONT #12248 086701 282,50
01-P00450 PRIDE IN MCALESTER

I-022018-2015-2016 30 -5211352 MISC PRIDE IN CONTRACT-PRIDE IN MCALESTER 086711 2,500.00

FUND 30 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL:

5,810.50



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 16
PACKET t 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND ;33 CDBG GRANTS FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMQOUNT
01-T00188 INFRASTRUCTURE SOLUTION
I-MC-17-08-03 33 -5971519 2017 CDBG PRO CONSULTANT FEE-CDBG 086669 1,750.00
FUND 33 CDBG GRANTS FUND TOTAL: 1,750.00



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 17
PACKET 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET:
FUND FLEET MAINTENANCE
VENDOR ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-A00154 PROPHET EQUITY II-B
I-PRI1567057 35 -5862312 EQUIPMENT REN OFFICE RENTAL-FLEET MAINT 086631 318.87
01-R00215 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS
C-8117735370757 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 20.71-
I-8117802471420 35 ~5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 194,00
I-8117802471425 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 25.74
I-8117802571444 35 ~5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 22,98
I-8117802971476 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 12.58
I-8117803071500 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 128,63
I-8117803271540 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 15.39
I-8117803948489 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 34.12
I-8117804439949 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 36.21
I-8117804471698 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTQ PARTS 086635 22.22
I-8117804471699 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 11.29
I-8117804471706 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 6.30
I-8117804471716 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 Bom2s,
I-8117804671775 35 -5862203 REPRIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086635 25.90
I-8117804671792 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086636 5.52
I-8117804730056 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086636 22.87
I-8117804730057 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086636 15.63
I-8117805271894 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086636 32.19
I-8117805271897 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086636 2.69
I-8117805385889 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086636 3.91
01-B00150 BEALES GOODYEAR TIRES
I-1-46090 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC TIRE REPAIRS/ALIGN 086643 29.90
I-1-GS46063 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI TIRES FOR UTM-12 086643 729.80
I-1-GS46065 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI TIRES FOR WW-6 086643 729.80
01-C00148 KEVIN HARRIS dba CAR BO
1-280670 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO PARTS 086648 40.00
01-D00448 DISCOUNT STEEL
I-19112 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI METAL FOR MISC REPAIRS 086657 107.00
01-K00205 KIAMICHI AUTOMOTIVE WHO
I-061912 35 -5862203 REPATRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086676 168,30
I-062188 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086676 126.71
I-062190 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086676 345,39
I-062290 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086676 17.62
I-062462 35 -5862317 EMERGENCY VEH BATTERY TENDER-ENGIN 086676 556,00
01-M00590 MOSS WRECKER SERVICE
I-002000 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI WRECKER FEE S-54 TO DEALE 086689 500.00
01-N00270 NIX AUTO CENTER, INC.
I-149200 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIRS 086693 46.36



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 18
PACKET 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND + 35 FLEET MAINTENANCE
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-N00271 FREEDOM FORD INC
I-186773 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC PRRTS & SERVICE 086694 69.45
I-187227 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC PARTS & SERVICE 086694 42.95
01-000075 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
C-0230-131199 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 49.00-
C-0230-133149 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 35,00~
C-0230-134721 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 8.54-
I-0230-133392 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPRIR PRRTS 086697 136,36
I-0230-133459 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 16,19
1-0230-134448 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 11.01
I-0230-134630 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 43.02
I-0230-134662 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC RUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 48,17
I-0230-134668 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPRIR PARTS 086697 28.10
1-0230-134720 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI MISC AUTO REPAIR PARTS 086697 326,75
01-R00471 ROBERT ROGERS DBA ROBER
1-28893 35 -5862203 REPATRS & MAI 17" STEEL WHEEL FOR S-7 086715 100.00
01-R00480 ROGER KEY EQUIPMENT
I-96601 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI PARTS FOR PK-60 MOWER 086716 1,087.30
01-T00612 ATC FREIGHTLINER GROUP,
I-12603176 35 -5862316 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIRS ON $-54 086728 1,304.18
01-W00480 WYLIE SPRAYERS OF OKLA,
I-419001 35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI REPAIR KIT-PARKS CHE 086737 29.73
FUND 35 FLEET MAINTENANCE TOTAL: 7,499.13



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 19
PACKET 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND : 38 DEDICATED SALES TAX-MPWA
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-B000S3 BANCFIRST-TRUST DEPT
I-5001971 38 -5215520 AGENT FEES BOND AGENT FEES 086642 500.00
500.00

FUND

38 DEDICATED SALES TAX-MPWA TOTAL:



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 20
PACKET : 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND 41 CIP FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# BMOUNT
01-A00712 ARVEST BANK dba ARVEST
I-032018-002 41 -5862401 CAPITAL OUTLA VEHICLE LEASE 800-1503001-002 086640 2,485.55
I-032018-1503001-3 41 -5865510 LEASE PAYMENT EQUIP LEASE -800-1503001-003 086640 1,326.45
I-032018-800150300 41 -5862401 CAPITAL OUTLA VEHICLE LEASE 800-1503001-001 086640 3,210,15
01-p00217 DEERE CREDIT, INC.
I-032018-0063527-0 41 -5865510 LEASE PAYMENT LEASE PMT-JD 624K LOADER 086655 1,821.57
01-F00170 FIRST NATIONAL BANK
I-032018-#135002 41 -5974501 MCC CONTROLS LOAN #135002-MCC CONTROLS 086661 4,709.36
I-032018~LN#134438 41 -5975510 UTM LOAN PAYM AMI LOAN PAYMENT LOAN #134438 086661 18,395.29
01-000538 OKLA TRAILER SALES
I-024220 41 -5863401 CAPITAL OUTLA TRAILER FOR TRAF CONT 086708 1,934.00
01-W00194 WELCH STATE BANK
I-032018-55766 41 -5865510 LEASE PAYMENT LEASE PMT-2015 DUMP TRUCK 086736 1,517.90
I-032018-55820 41 -5865510 LEASE PAYMENT LEASE PMT-2015 DUMP TRUCK 086736 2,555.73
FUND 41 CIP FUND TOTAL: 37,956.00



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 21
PACKET t 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND v 44 TECHNOLOGY FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-I00120 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES
I-025-213691 44 -5225401 TECHNOLOGY UP ECITATIONS EQUIP/TRAINING 086667 20,000.00
I-030-13714 44 -5225401 TECHNOLOGY UP TICKET PRINTERS 086667 2,500.00
01-M00304 MESHEK & ASSOC., PLC
I-5345 44 -5225402 SOFTWARE & TE GPS TRAINING FEE 086685 1,157.50
01-500726 STAPLES ADVANTAGE
C-3368591064 44 -5225402 SOFTWARE & TE MISC HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 086722 89.99-
C-3368591066 44 -5225402 SOFTWARE & TE MISC HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 086722 29.99-
1-3368591065 44 -5225402 SOFTWARE & TE MISC HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 086722 69.98
1-3369230010 44 -5225402 SOFTWARE & TE MISC HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 086722 33.98
FUND 44 TECHNOLOGY FUND TOTAL: 23,641.48



3/07/2018 10:10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 22
PACKET v 16271 16277 16288 16291 16300
VENDOR SET: Mult
FUND . 46 STORMWATER FUND
VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT
01-A00712 ARVEST BANK dba ARVEST
I-032018-004 46 -5871501 LOAN PAYMENTS LOAN PMT-SWEEPER 1503001-004 086640 3,284.13
01-M00304 MESHEK & ASSOC., PLC
I-5317 46 ~5871404 MASTER DRAINA MASTER DRAINAGE PLAN 086685 14,500.00
FUND 46 STORMWATER FUND TOTAL: 17,784.13

REPORT GRAND TOTAL:

275,438.45



3/07/2018 10:10 AM

REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

YEAR

2017-2018

ACCOUNT

01 -2105

01 -5101350
01 -5101353
01 -5101355
01 -5212308
01 -5212317
01 -5213336
01 -5214302
01 -5215202
01 -5215302
01 -5215312
01 -5215313
01 -5215314
01 -5215315
01 -5215322
01 -5225349
01 -5320202
01 -5321202
01 -5321208
01 -5321316
01 -5321331
01 -5321332
01 -5431202
01 -5431203
01 -5431204
01 -5431328
01 -5431330
01 -5432202
01 -5432316
01 -5432331
01 -5542203
01 -5542308
01 -5542316
01 -5542339
01 -5544202
01 -5544203
01 -5544308
01 -5547308
01 -5547328
01 -5548203
01 -5548308
01 -5548316
01 -5652331
01 -5653202
01 -5653213

PAGE: 23

** G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS **

==LINE ITEM: ==

ANNUAL BUDGET OVE:

NAME AMOUNT BUDGET AVAILABLE BUDG
COLLECTION AGENCY 25% (COU 9,069.83

ELECTIONS 3,940.48 14,000 533,19- Y
PITTSBURG EMERGENCY MGMT 4,166.67 50,000 12,499,97
OIL-OK FOR INDEPENDENT LIV 2,000.00 24,000 8,000,00
CONTRACTED SERVICES 77.44 3,580 527.50
ADVERTISING & PRINTING 145.50 2,500 796.35
FEES 200.00 3,000 1,200,00
CONSULTANTS 3,233.33 70,000 15,877.53
OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,507.24 35,000 6,280.34
CONSULTANTS 480.00 35,000 4,420.00
EQUIPMENT RENTALS 644,53 27,000 621.97- Y
ELECTRIC UTILITY 13,672.70 318,725 108,442.37

GAS UTILITY 842,51 25,200 6,147.41
TELEPHONE UTILITY 459.86 38, 000 6,401,38
LIABILITY INSURANCE/BONDS 13,817.75 132,000 10,402,07- ¥
SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 220,50 72,000 3,732.11
OPERATING EXPENSE 26.00 2,850 2,383.39
OPERATING SUPPLIES 291.77 11,875 9,671.26
CANINE UNIT SUPPLIES 92.50 3,800 3,253.50
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 90.00 2,850 1,591.67
EMPLOYEE TRAVEL & TRAININ 265,00 9,500 4,664.,95
COMMUNITY SERVICES PROGRAM 176.35 7,500 3,257.16
OPERATING SUPPLIES 815.01 15,100 3,439.02
REPAIRS & MAINT SUPPLIES 128.30 7,075 899,18
SMALL TOOLS 163.00 3,400 1,510.90
INTERNET SERVICE 125.90 2,351 840.20
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 36.00 8,000 3,376.48
OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,846.10 25,600 3,118,.39
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 245,00 5,700 4,754.60
EMPLOYE TRAVEL & TRAINING 147.15 3,500 2,212.,90
REPAIRS & MAINT SUPPLIES 1,478.79 38, 850 13,057.82
CONTRACTED SERVICES 46,79 13,500 6,423,322
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 1,700.00 4,000 2,300.00
VEHICLE/EQUIP. MAINTENANCE 58.13 45,000 12,760.10
OPERATING SUPPLIES 660.97 16,245 7,178,984
REPATRS & MAINTENANCE SUPP 253.18 9,806 7,481.04
CONTRACT LABOR 60,00 15,000 7,022.43
CONTRACTED SERVICES 240.00 4,320 600.00- Y
INTERNET SERVICE 62,80 750 247.62
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE SUPP 1,795.28 36,500 6,749.48
CONTRACTED SERVICES-CLEANI 1,835.00 22,000 7,060.00
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 183.00 20,900 643.87- Y
EMPLOYEE TRAVEL & TRAININ 419.00 3,600 766.15
OPERATING SUPPLIES 20.69 713 588.01

SAFETY EXPENSE 851.16 25,500 11,254.38

ANNUAL
BUDGET

=GROUP BUDGET==

BUDGET OVER
AVAILABLE BUDG



3/07/2018 10:10 AM

YEAR

ACCOQUNT

01 -5653330
01 -5653348
01 -5865203
01 -5865218
01 -5865308
01 -5865312
01 -5865328
02 -5216202
02 -5216317
02 -5216328
02 -5216336
02 -5267314
02 -5267315
02 -5267322
02 -5267521
02 -5864312
02 -5866230
02 -5871302
02 -5973203
02 -5973302
02 -5973308
02 -5975208
02 -5975211
02 -5975230
02 -5975308
03 -5876203
03 -5876314
03 -5876322
03 -5876501
03 -5876511
08 -5549308
08 -5549315
20 -5211401
27 -5655202
27 -5655214
27 -5655308
27 -5655318
27 -5655340
27 -5655352
27 -5655353
28 -5654202
28 -5654203
28 -5654210
28 -5654308
28 -5654313

REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

NAME

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

DRUG TESTING/PHYSICALS
REPAIR & MAINT-TRAFFIC CON
STREET REPAIRS & MAINTENAN
CONTRACT SERVICES
EQUIPMENT RENTALS
INTERNET SERVICE
OPERATING SUPPLIES
POSTAGE

INTERNET SERVICE

FEES

GAS UTILITY

TELEPHONE UTILITY
LIABILITY INSURANCE/BONDS
CDBG LOAN #8908

EQUIPMENT RENTALS
RECYCLING CENTER EXPENSE
CONSULTANTS

REPAIRS & MAINT SUPPLIES
CONSULTANTS (IND. PRETREAT
CONTRACT SERVICES

UTILITY MAINTENANCE SUPP.
WATER METERS

SEWER MAIN REPAIR
CONTRACTED SERVICES
REPAIRS & MAINT SUPPLIES
GAS UTILITY
INSURANCE/BONDS

OUTER MARKER LEASE PAYMENT
FNB LOAN #119817 PAYMENTS
CONTRACT SERVICES
TELEPHONE UTILITY

CAPITAL OUTLAY

OPERATING SUPPLIES
TOURISM EXPENSE

CONTRACT SERVICES
PRINTING

OFFICE RENT

MISC PRIDE IN MCALESTER
MAIN STREET PROGRAM
OPERATING SUPPLIES

REPAIR & MAINT SUPPLIES
CONCESSION SUPPLIES
CONTRACT SERVICES
ELECTRIC UTILITY

G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS **

AMOUNT

149,00
298,00
25,82
22,470.61
1,972.32
316.87
88.90
458,65
1,338.41
50,04
1,162.59
752.86
942.36
5,027.25
1,145.83
328.78
650,00
4,876.00
1,155.68
1,800.00
3,259.20
7,445.39
6,000.00
159.65
3,346.00
97.10
51.38
2,356.50
225,00
5,020.00
945.56
304.01
8,650.18
25.91
925.00
1,200.00
71.00
1,292.50
2,500.00
1,250.00
77.00
3,455.06
2,286.96
1,031.36
7,105.61

ANNUAL
BUDGET

500
8,000
37,220
258,750
0

3,755
1,920
10,450
32,000
1,350
24,100
9,312
112,320
36,785
13,750
3,946
2,300
100,000
45,500
21,600
8,000
118, 500
43,000
22,000
5,000
1,900
607
11,523
2,700
60,240
15,500
4,610
9,000
2,500
34,500
13,200
15,000
15,510
30,000
15,000
4,400
19,600
25,000
15,500
68,400

LINE ITE!

BUDGET OVER
AVAILABLE BUDG

306.00
1,597.30
6,117.24

47,699.26
11,996.21-
0.56

511.74

3,934.06
10,993.98

200,91
6,126.86
1,501.99

36,392.34
11,836.82~
3,437.53

0.64
5.08-
25,907.10
661, 69-
0.00
15,036.80-
8,076.08-
0.26-
9,999.51
17,331.61-
1,909.05-

299.60
1,129.33

675,00

15,060.00
927,83~
1,584.31

349,82
2,365.09

825.94

0.00
11,100,00
3,877.50
10, 000.00
5,000.00
1,541.66
2,066.46
5,597.66
3,899.36
14,228,31

Y

LS

<

ANNUATL
BUDGET

PAGE: 24

BUDGET OVER
AVAILABLE BUDG



3/07/2018 10:;10 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 25

*+ G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS **

. ===LINE ITEM==== = =======GROUP BUDGET==
ANNUAL BUDGET OVER ANNUAL BUDGET OVER
YEAR ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT BUDGET AVAILABLE BUDG BUDGET AVAILABLE BUDG

28 -5654322 LIABILITY INSURANCE/BONDS 6,521,00 33,768 4,124.19

28 -5654328 INTERNET SERVICE 659.00 7,920 1,795.13

29 -5324207 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 176.47 2,500 1,209.84

29 -5324315 TELEPHONE UTILITY 457.19 98,015 33,687.94

30 -5211352 MISC PRIDE IN MCALESTER 2,500,00 30,000 10,000.00

30 -5211353 MAIN STREET PROGRAM 1,250.00 15,000 5,000.00

30 -5211510 CDBG / EDIF DURALINE LOAN 282.50 3,390 847.50

30 -5652202 OPERATING SUPPLIES 28.00 4,000 3,562.88

30 -5652343 2016 OSMPC GRANT-DEFENSE D 1,750.00 151,641 96,031.06

33 -5971519 2017 CDBG PROJECT 1,750.00 183,872 152,017.00

35 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE SUPP 5,320.08 210,965 61,969.96

35 -5862312 EQUIPMENT RENTALS 318.87 0 3,754.44- ¥

35 -5862316 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 1,304.18 30,000 20,615.41

35 -5862317 EMERGENCY VEHICLES 556,00 45,000 1,646.59- Y

38 -5215520 AGENT FEES 500.00 7,000 0.00

41 -5862401 CAPITAL QUTLAY 5,695.,70 66,985 15,723,770

41 -5863401 CAPITAL OUTLAY TRAFFIC CON 1,934.00 0 6,871,30- Y

41 -5865510 LEASE PAYMENTS 7,221,65 128,650 21,655,55

41 -5974501 MCC CONTROLS ~ WTP 4,709.36 56,513 14,128.76

41 -5975510 UTM LOAN PAYMENTS 18,395.29 220,745 55,187.39

44 -5225401 TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES 22,500.00 362,273 5,692,44

44 -5225402 SOFTWARE & TECHNOLOGY UPDA 1,141.48 66,730 17,397.14

46 -5871404 MASTER DRAINAGE 14,500.00 272,440 0.00

46 -5871501 LOAN PAYMENTS-STREET SWEEP 3,284,13 39,420 9,862,83

** 2017-2018 YEAR TOTALS ** 275,438.45

NO ERRORS

** END OF REPORT **



FUND

01
02
03
05
08
09
11
14
16
20
24
26
27
28
29
30
32
33
35
36
38
41
42
44
46

PERIOD

3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018
3/2018

AMOUNT

93,914.73
39,898.69
7,749.98
0.00
1,249.57
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
8,650.18
0.00

0.00
7,264.41
21,135.99
633.66
5,810.50
0.00
1,750.00
7,499.13
0.00
500.00
37,956.00
0.00
23,641.48
17,784.13

275,438.45
275,438.45



McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: Consent Agenda C
Department:
Prepared By: John Browne, Mayor Account Code:
Date Prepared: March 7, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits: 1
il Subjectin e L

Concur with the Mayor’s appointment of Ira Brinlee to the Pittsburg County Regional Expo Authority Board for a
term to expire on June 30, 2020.

Recommendation

Motion to approve the Mayor’s appointment of Ira Brinlee to the Pittsburg County Regional Expo Authority
Board for a term to expire on June 30, 2020

Approved By

Initial e
Department Head
City Manager P. Stasiak

Page 1 of 1



. SHELTER Ira Brinlee
BRI [INSURANCE Shelter Insurance Company
918 E. Wyandotte
wil| COMPANIES McAlester, OK 74501
SHELTER MUTUAL Office 918-423-8840
SHELTER GENERAL Fax 918-916-8089
SHELTER LIFE ibrinlee@shelterinsurance.com
To Whom It May Concern:

My name is Ira Brinlee. I grew up in Holdenville, OK on a small farm where we raised
cattle and pigs. After graduating high school I attended Eastern Oklahoma State College where I
received my associate's degree in Agriculture Sciences. From there I attended Oklahoma State
University where I graduated with a bachelor's degree in Agriculture Education.

I then moved to Hartshorne, Ok where I took my first teaching job. I followed a former
teacher who had been there for 30 year, so needless to say I had big shoes to fill. Throughout my
time at Hartshorne I was fortunate enough to have some of the hardest working students and
families that I have ever seen. Their willingness to succeed and helping our FFA program to
succeed were second none. During my 15 years of teaching FFA at Hartshorne I had 1 National
Speaking winner, 58 State FFA Degree Recipients, and numerous judging and livestock show
winners. But the greatest thing I have done so far in my career is helping kids to become lawyers,
doctors, dentists, and construction workers. The greatest feeling as an educator is seeing a child
succeed or reach their goals.

Approximately 6 years ago I finished my Master's Degree at East Central University. I
had the opportunity the last year and a half to take over as Hartshorne Middle School principal. It
was a very rewarding job that was filled with new endeavors each day. We have put so much
pressure on students to pass a test that we have forgotten some of the basic skills they need in
life. I felt it my duty as principal to make sure that every student that walked through that door
knew we cared about them and wanted to see them succeed at what they wanted to be in life.

I decided to make career change in January 2018. I'm currently the new Shelter Insurance
Agent here in McAlester. I took the place of Mr. Don Nichols after he passed away a few months
ago. I look forward to meeting everyone and working in the community to help make things
better for our younger generation. Hopefully I can live up to the standards Mr. Nichols has set
forth in this business.

Thanks,

Ira Brinlee

Shelter Insurance

918 E. Wyandotte
McAlester, OK 74501

LIFE ¢« HOME ¢ AUTO ¢ FARM « BUSINESS



McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13,2018 item Number: Consent Agenda D
Department: Finance
Prepared By: Toni Ervin, CFO Account Code:
Date Prepared: March 5, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits: 1

Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign an Annual Engagement Letter with Crawford & Associates,

P.C. for consultant services for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

Recommendation

Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign an Annual Engagement Letter with Crawford & Associates, P.C.

Fim

Approved By
Initial Date

Department Head
City Manager P. Stasiak

Page 1 of 1



RECEIVED

= LS AR 05 2l ’
& ASSOCIATES

IN CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

March 1, 2018

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of McAlester

P.O. Box 578

McAlester, OK 74502-0578

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

Crawford & Associates, P.C. is pleased that the City of McAlester (the City) continues to express its
confidence in our firm and our state and local government expertise. We look forward to a continued long
and successful relationship as an integral financial management resource to the City of McAlester
management and governing body.

We are prepared to provide a full range of accounting and consulting services to the City of McAlester
contingent upon approval of your management and/or governing body. The purpose of this engagement
letter is to identify the scope of available services from Crawford & Associates, the specific initial services
requested at this time, and to confirm the terms, objectives, and limitations of our engagement services.

Scope of Services

The scope of professional services that are available and can be provided to the City of McAlester are
outlined below under the heading Scope of Available Services. While this listing includes a range of services
available from Crawford & Associates, the specific initial services requested to be provided at the current
time are separately identified under the heading Initial Services Requested. Any additional services that are
available from Crawford & Associates beyond these initially requested services can be provided upon
subsequent specific request and agreement.

Scope of Available Services
Preparation of Annual Financial Statements
General Accounting and Advisory Assistance
Budget Preparation and Amendment Assistance
Capital Asset Records and Accounting Assistance
Information Technology System Assistance
Internal Control Policies and Procedures Assistance
Labor Relations Consulting
Laws and Regulations Compliance Assistance
Investigation of Allegations or Concerns
Tax and Other Regulatory Report Assistance

Initial Services Requested
Preparation of Annual Financial Statements
General Accounting and Advisory Assistance

1+ 405-691-5550
1 405-691-5646 | 45: www.crawfordepas.com
++ info@crawfordcpas.com | 10308 Greenbriar Place, Oklahoma City, OK 73159




CRAMWTORD & ASSOCIATES v

Services Related to the Preparation of Annual Financial Statements

You have requested that we prepare the annual financial statements of the financial reporting entity of the
City of McAlester, Oklahoma as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018. Such financial statements will

include:
a. Basic Financial Statements, including notes to the financial statements
b. Required Supplementary Information
c¢. Supplementary Information (to the extent management elects to include)
d. Other Information (to the extent management clects to include)

Crawford & Associates’ Responsibilities

The objective of our engagement is to prepare the annual financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information provided by you. We
will conduct our engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA and
comply with the AICPA's Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity,
objectivity, professional competence, and due care.

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide
to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a
conclusion. Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion or provide any assurance on the
financial statements.

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any financial statement misstatements,
including those caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the entity or
noncompliance with laws and regulations.

Management Responsibilities

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands
that our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Management has the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental
to our undertaking the engagement to prepare your financial statements in accordance with SSARSs:

a. The selection of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as the
financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements

b. The prevention and detection of fraud
¢. To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities

d. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information,
including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial
statements




e. To provide us with:

i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements,

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation of the
financial statements, and

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, of whom we
determine necessary to communicate.

The financial statements will not be accompanied by a report. However, you agree that the financial
statements will clearly indicate that no assurance is provided on them.

Other Requested and Available Services

In conjunction with the other requested and available services (other than the preparation of the annual
financial statements) as identified in the Scope of Services section of this letter, Crawford & Associates
will be responsible for providing such services upon request in accordance with the applicable professional
standards of the AICPA. It is anticipated that most if not all of these other services will be performed in
accordance with the standards applicable to consulting services as prescribed by the AICPA.

Crawford & Associates, is not obligated to, but may report or otherwise communicate to management any
recommendations, it determines necessary, resulting from the professional services provided.

Management and the governing body will be responsible for establishing the scope of our other professional
services to be provided and for providing the necessary resources allocated to the work; such responsibility
includes determining the nature, scope, and extent of the services to be performed, providing sufficient
appropriation for the estimated cost of these services, providing overall direction and oversight for each
service, and reviewing and accepting the results of the work.

Access to Working Papers and Reports

Any working papers prepared by Crawford & Associates in connection with performing the financial
statement preparation and other professional services are the property of Crawford & Associates. Upon
request, copies of any or all working papers and reports that we consider to be nonproprietary will be
provided to management. Management may make such copies available to its external auditors and to
certain regulators in the exercise of their statutory oversight responsibilities. Such copies may not be made
available to any other third party without the prior written consent from Crawford & Associates.

Fees and Costs

Fees and out-of-pocket expenses for this engagement will be billed as the work progresses and payable
upon receipt of our invoices. Out-of-pocket expenses include such costs incurred by Crawford &
Associates in providing the services including travel, lodging, telecommunications, printing, document
reproduction, and the like. Our fees for these services will be billed at our standard hourly rates, as follows,
for the individual performing such services based on the actual number of hours of work, including travel
time, performed by that individual.




Standard Hourly Rates:

¢ Firm Chairman $250

e Tirm President $250

e Shareholders $165

e Consulting Managers $150
e Consulting Staff $110

e Clerical Staff $45

Because Crawford & Associates has no direct control over the type and amount of services requested by
the management or the governing body during the term of this engagement, nor does Crawford & Associates
have direct control over the quality of your accounting system or records, potential turnover of your staff,
or your staffing levels, resources, or capabilities, it is impractical for us to provide an accurate amount of
hours that will be required for the services requested or a not-to-exceed limit on fees and expenses charged.
We will rely on you to provide us with a copy of approved purchase orders, containing estimated fees and
expenses, monitor the cumulative fees and expenses charged, and notify us if and when the cumulative
amount approaches the total appropriated level estimated. You also agree to provide sufficient appropriation
for all services requested prior to the services being performed. For purposes of purchase order preparation,
we will be glad to provide you with an estimated range of fees and expenses upon request.

The term of this engagement is a period from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. Crawford & Associates
may perform additional services upon receipt of a formal request from management or the governing body
with terms and conditions that are acceptable to both parties.

The agreements and undertakings contained in this engagement letter, shall survive the completion or
termination of this engagement.
Acceplance

Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by signing in the space provided below and returning this
engagement letter to us. A duplicate copy of this engagement letter is provided for your records. We look
forward to continuing our professional relationship with the City of McAlester.

Respectfully submitted and agreed to by,

S.4e-

Frank Crawford
Crawford and Associates, P.C.




CRAWFORD& ASSOCIATES v

Accepted and agreed to for the City of McAlester:

By:

Title:

Date:




McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: Consent Agenda E
Department: Public Works
Prepared By: David Horinek Account Code:
Date Prepared: February 27, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits: 2

Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign the attached “Outlay Report and Request for
Reimbursement for Construction Programs” for Project 3-40-0057-015-2017 “Rehabilitate Runway 2/20 and
Connecting Taxiways (Design Only)”

Recommendation

Motion to approve and authorize the withdrawal of FAA grant funds to be used toward the payment of LBR
invoice 5210. This invoice is for the preliminary design and field survey of the airport runway and taxiways

In August 2017, the City secured an FAA Airport Grant (Design Only) for the rehabilitation of Runway 220 and
the connecting taxiways at the McAlester Airport. The project was approved by the council on August 22, 2017.
Field surveys of the runway and taxiways have been conducted and the preliminary design work is complete
and ready for submission to FAA for review. Once the FAA has reviewed the design and any suggested changes
are addressed; the design will be finalized and readied to go out for bid.

The FAA grant will provide funding for ninety percent of this project’s expenditures. This invoice (5210) is for
$205,300. The FAA Grant will reimburse the City $184,770.

Approved By

Initial Date
D.
Department Head Horinek
P. Stasiak

City Manager

Page 1 of 1



App d by Office of M and Budget,
OUTLAY REPORT AND REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT  |No. B0-RD181 |"“GE et
FOR CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 1. TYPE OF REQUEST 2, BASIS OF REQUEST

(See Instructions on back) O FinaL B ParTIAL W cash O accruat

3, FEDERAL SPONSORING AGENCY AND ORGANIZATIONAL ELEMENT TO WHICH THIS
REPORT IS SUBMITTED

4, FEDERAL GRANT OR OTHER IDENTIFYING
NUMBER ASSIGNED BY FEDERAL AGENCY

5. PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST NO.

Federal Aviation Administration |55 m- 3-40-0057-015-2047 | One
6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION 7. RECIPIENT ACCOUNT OR OTHER
NUMBER IDENTIFYING NUMBER PERIOD COVERED BY THIS REPORT
FROM (Month, day, year) TO (Monih, duy, yenr)
fS80000Is 8/23/17 2/16/18
9. RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION 10, PAYEE (Where check shontd be sent if different than item 9)
Naine City of McAlester Name (same})
No dmiStreet P, O, Box 678 No. Aud Street
i Sale end 22 McAlester, Oklahoma 74502 (it State and Zip Code
" STATUS OF FUNDS
PROGRAMS - FUNCTIONS - ACTIVITIES
CLASSIFICATION (8} Grant Amount (b) Previous Requasts  |(¢) Current Request TOTAL
Grant Amount $275,940.00
$ 3 $ $
a. Administrative Expense (Grant Administralion) 8.,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3
(Bidding) §,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3
c. Land, Structures, Right-of-Way _(Field Survey) 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
$
d. Archltectural engineering basic fees (Prelim Design) 193,300.00 0.00 193,300.00 193,300.00
$
e. Other architectural engineering fees (Final Design) 77,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
$
f._Project inspection fees (RSA Evaluations) 6,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
$
. Land development
3
$
i._Relocalion payments 1o Indlviduals & businesses
3
j._Demalition and removal
$
k. Constructlon and project improvement cost
$
|._Equipment
$
m. Miscollangous cost
$
n. Total cumulative to date {sum of lines a thru m! 306.,600.00 0.00 205,300.00 205,300.00
o, Less Ineligible Exclusions (Insurance)
p._Not cumulative to date (line n minus line o) 205,300.00
q. Federal share to date 275,940.00 0.00 184.770.00 184,770.00
r._Rehabllitation grants {(100% relmbursement)
s. Total Federal share {sum of lines q and r} 184,770.00

v. Percentage of physical completion of project

%

67%

12, CERTIFICATION

| certify that to the best of my knowledge and |- RECIPIENT
belief the billed costs or disbursements are in
accordance with the terms of the project and

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL

DATE REPORT SUBMITTED

TYPED OR FRINTED NAME AND TTTLE

John Browne, Mayor

that the reimbursement represents the Federal
share due which has not been previously
requested and that an inspection has been
performed and all work is in accordance with
the terms of the award

b. Representative
certifying to line
My,

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL

. mz [

TELEPHORE (A ¢n coude. munber and extension)

918 /423-2500

DATE SIGNED

2/16/18

TYPED OR PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

Tyler McDonald, Airport Consultant

TELEPHORE (drow e, mumdes mind evtemaiong

406/377-8276

271-302 Transcribed lo eleclroni fla (204) by LBR Inc. Arport Consullanis

Slandard Foim 271 {7-76) Prescibed by OMB




Contractor/Consultant Name
LBR Inc.

Summary of Sponsar invoice #1

Grant # 3-40-0057-015-2017

Inv# Inv Date Billed Amount AIP Costs Non-AIP Costs ~ Worksite Name
5210 2/16/2018 $205,300.00 $184,770.00 $20,530,00 McAlester Regional
Total Requested: $184,770.00

Short Summary of Billing
Plans and Specs, FAR's, and Env for Rotating Beacon Proje:



LBR Inc. Airport Consultants

1802 Wessl Wri hl Drive Stillwater, Oklahoma
Tel 405-377-8 Fax 405-377-3297

7

The City of McAlester

WWWALBROK.COM

INVOICE

Number

February 16, 2018

5210

Attn: David Horinek
P. O.Box 578

McAlester, Oklahoma 74502

AIP Project No 3-40-0057-015-2017

Project Description:

For Airport Consulting Services to provide Field Survey, Preliminary Design, Final Design, Bidding, and Grant
Administration Service for "Rehabilitate Runway 2/20 and Connecting Taxiways (Design Only)," at McAlester
Regional Airport in accordance with our Agreement for Professional Airport Consulting Services dated June 27, 2017,
Amendment No. 1 dated August 8, 2018, and Amendment No. 2 dated August 22, 2018.

Contract Percent Earned To Less Previous Due This

Lump Sum Services Amount Complete Date Payments Invoice
Amnd. No. 1- 1A, Field Survey $12,000.00 100% $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00
Amnd. No. 1 - 1B. Prefiminary Design ~ $193,300.00 100% $193,300.00 $0.00 $193,300.00
Amnd. No. 1 - 1C. Final Design $77,900.00 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Amnd. No. 1-1D. Bidding Services $8,400.00 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Amnd. No. 1 - 1E. Grant Adminisiration $8,800.00 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Amnd. No. 2 - 1A, RSA Evaluation $6,200.00 0% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
SUBTOTAL $306,600.00 $205,300.00 $0.00 $205,300.00
Earned To Less Previous Due This

Cost-Plus Services Actual Cost Fixed Fee Date Payments Invoice
SUBTOTAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cost Per Number of Earned To Less Previous Due This

Hourly Services Hour Hours Date Payments Invoice
SUBTOTAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THIS INVOICE $205,300.00

- =] - '/’}-/’
Authorized By Jg/ﬂ. /77:4:\,_, (




McAlester Municipal

Regional Business Airport

n
opment Objective (ODO) of the proposed is
vay 02/20. and connecting taxiways. The
letailed cost estimate will be determined by
ary engineering study.

ary engineering report.
ded Design Only.
't ODO.

n
pavement management system forecasts a
r runway 02/20 for year 2016 . The runway
fferent pavement sections and is exhibiting
n slabs, shatter slabs, corner breaks, corner
1d L/T cracks. Due to the distresses, the
orating rapidly and generates a significant

on

ss Airport
1 (1jet)
7,602 x 1007

gement: 52
e Pavem
PCI

67

v Fiscal Year FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 Total

¢174 214 ¢17£ 21K




McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: Consent Agenda F
Department: Account Code:

Prepared By: Joe Ervin, City Attorney Budgeted Amount:

Date Prepared: March 7, 2018 Exhibits: 2

Consider and act upon, approval of a Resolution to extend the term of the Cable Television Permit with Vyve
Broadband A, LLC.

Recommendation

Motion to pass and approve a Resolution to extend the term of the Cable Television Permit with Vyve
Broadband A, LLC.

Discussion

Vyve Broadband A, LLC has requested the City of McAlester grant a temporary extension of the Cable
Television Permit for an additional period of sixty (60) days until the new franchise is formally approved by the
City.

Approved By

Inltlal Date
Department Head
City Manager P. Stasiak

Page 1 of 1



RESOLUTION NO.
A RESOLUTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CABLE TELEVISION PERMIT

WHEREAS, Vyve Broadband A, LLC (“Vyve™), as assignee of Allegiance
Communications, LLC, currently holds a cable permit with the City of McAlester, Oklahoma
(“CITY™); and

WHEREAS, The City enacted Ordinance No. 2074 (“Ordinance”) providing for the
construction and operation of a cable system; and

WHEREAS, the Ordinance, under Section 100-59(b) thereof, allows a Permit to
establish the term thereof; and

WHEREAS, the City granted a Permit to Allegiance, as successor in interest, by that
certain Permit Agreement dated October 28, 1997 (“Permit”); and

WHEREAS, the Permit was for a period of five (5) years, with an automatic five (5) year
extension upon certain requirements which Allegiance complied with; and

WHEREAS, the Permit was extended for an additional five (5) years to October 28,
2017; and

WHEREAS, Vyve and City extended the Permit for one hundred fifty (150) days, as
allowed by the Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, it was in the public interest to extend the Permit for one hundred fifty (150)
days so that cable service to the public would not be interrupted;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, Vyve and City agree as follows:

Section 1: The term of the Permit is hereby extended for an additional sixty (60) days so as not
to interrupt the cable service to the public, and will now expire on May 13, 2018.

Section 2: All other terms and conditions of the Permit shall continue in full force and effect,
subject to applicable law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of March, 2018.

CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

By:

John Browne, Mayor

Cora Middleton, City Clerk



Vyve

March 7, 2018

City of McAlester

28 E. Washington Avenue

P.O. Box 578

McAlester, OK 74502

Attn: Ms. Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer

Re: Request to Temporarily Extend Franchise
Dear Ms. Ervin,

Vyve Broadband A, LLC (“Vyve”), as assignee of Allegiance Communications, LLC, is currently
providing video communications services to the City of McAlester (the “City”) pursuant to the terms and
conditions of Resolution No. 12-08, dated June 12, 2012 (as amended, the “Permit™). As you know, the
Permit expired on October 28, 2017 and was temporarily extended until March 27, 2018 (the “Expiration
Date”). It is our understanding that the public hearing and council meeting required to consider and
approve Vyve’s new franchise will not be held before such Expiration Date.

In light of the foregoing, we are hereby requesting that the City grant Vyve a further temporary extension
of the Permit until May 31, 2018, or the earlier date when the new franchise is formally approved by the
City. Please acknowledge the City’s agreement to such extension by signing this letter agreement in the
space provided below and returning an executed copy to my attention at your earliest convenience.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 1f you have any questions regarding this temporary
extension, please feel free to contact me at 914.234.8321. The employees of Vyve take pride in
providing cable services to your residents and we look forward to continuing to service your community.

Sincerely,

Cannd ) bt

Edward J. Bennett, Associate General Counsel
Vyve Broadband A, LLC

Acknowledged and agreed:
City of McAlester

By:

Name:
Title:

Vyve Broadband  Four International Drive  Suite 330  Rye Brook, NY 10573  VyveBroadband.com



McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: Consent Agenda G
Department: Finance
Prepared By: Toni Ervin Account Code:
Date Prepared: March 6, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits: 1

Consider and act upon, authorization for the Mayor to sign the application for Voya Annuity Company for
administration and investment of employee matching funds for our 457(b) plan.

Recommendation

Motion to approve.

Currently, the employee funds for the 457(b) plan are held by John Hancock and administered by Armanino,
LLP out of Dallas. By applying for Voya to administer and hold these investments, it will add many advantages
for our employees. This company is recommended by OMRF and has local representatives. Employees will
have improved education and access to their funds. Since the matching funds that the City deposits for our
Defined Contribution Plan are deposited through OMRF to accounts that Voya administers and holds the
investments, employees will have one log in online to see balances in both employee contributions and city
matching contributions.

Approved By

Initial Date
Department Head

City Manager P. Stasiak

Page 1 of 1




APPLICATION FOR GROUP ANNUITY CONTRACT

Voya Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company VoyA

A member of the Voya™ famlly of companles
PO Box 990063 FINANCIAL™
Hartford, CT 06199-0063

As used on this form, the term “Voya,” “VRIAC,” “Company,” “we," "us” or “our” refers to your plan’s funding agent and/or services
provider. That entity Is VRIAC. Contact us for more Informatlon.

l. APPLICANT INFORMATION
Applicant Name (Employer/Contract Holder) City of McAlester

Address 28 E. Washington

city McAlester " State OK Z{p 74502

Tax ldentification # 73-60056314

2. ACCOUNT INFORMATION
Full Legal Plan Name City of McAlester Eligible Deferred Compensation Plan

Type of Organization

M Governmental Organization ] Tax-exempt Organization (inciudes churches, healthcare organizations and
R_?f State, local, county, municipality - private education organizations)
[J Healthcare [} 50%c)3) Organlizaticn (IRS tax-exempt stotus letter required to be
] Public School submitted for organizations formed after 10/8/69)
] K12 (] Church, qualified and non-quallfled church controlled organizations
] High Education [] Healthcare
[C] For Profit Organization [ Education
[ Corporation [] 501c)__) Organization. Type of Entity
] Unincorporated (e.g. partnerships, )
self-employed & $ Corporations) [] other (specify)
Type of Plan (Select one.)
403(b) Plan _ 457 Plan
[] 403(b) Non-ERISA public schools and ERISA exempt M Governmental 457(b) {including public schools)
501(c)(3) organizations [] Tax-exempt 457(b) top hat (for select management
[0 403(b) ERISA (generatly, 501{c)(3) arganization and/or highly compensated employees)
sponsoring a 403(b) with employer and/or employee

[[] Tax-exempt 457(b) {fonly non-qualified church

contgbutions) controlled organizations)
401(a)/(k) Plan
[ 401(a) Other (speclfy)

[} 401(k) - employee salary deferral plan

Product (Select one. Alf products may not be available in all states,)

[] Voya Custom Cholce I [] RetireFlex - MF
[] voya Retirement Choice Il (Fixed Plus Account ) [ RetireFlex - SA
[[] Voya Retlrement Plus Ii [_] Other (specify)

ERISA Status
Is this Plan subject to ERISA Title I? [ Yes [ No

If “Yes,” indicate the Plan Annlversary (Month/Day) (required)

155634 (01/14) Page 1 of 3- Incomplete without all pages. Order #170097 09/01/2014
TM: DCPLNINSTL/PLNINTHEG



|——————————————————F 5= —a—a=—s==——— =St = s pmaE sl = — L,
3. IMPORTANT NOTICES

Below are notlces that apply only in certain states, Please read the following carefully to see if any apply in your state.
Alaska, Malne: Informatlon provided by the applicant are representations and not warranties.

Alabama: Any person who knowlingly presents a false or fraudulent clalm for payment of a loss or benefit or who knowingly
presents false information In an application for Insurance s gullty of a ctlme and may be subject to restitution fines or confinement
In prison, or any comblnation thereof.

California Req. 789.8; The sale or liquidation of any stock, bond, IRA, certificate of deposit, mutual fund, annuity, or other asset to
fund the purchase of this product may have tax consequences, early withdrawal penaltles, or other costs or penalties as a result
of the sale or liquidation, You or your agent may wish to consult Independent legal or financlal advice before selling or fiquldating
any assets and prlor to the purchase of any life or annulty products being solicited, offered for sale, or sold.

Colorado: It is unlawful to knowingly provide false, incomplete, or misleading facts or information to an insurance company for the
purpose of defrauding or attempting to defraud the company. Penalties may include imprisonment, fines, denlal of insurance and
civll damages. Any insurance company or agent of an insurance company who knowlIngly provides false, incomplete, or misleading
facts or information to a pollcyholder or clalmant for the purpose of defrauding or attempting to defraud the policyholder or
clalmant with regard to a settlement or award payable from insurance proceeds shall be reported to the Colorado division of
insurance within the department of regulatory agencies.

Kentucky: Any person who knowingly and with Intent to defraud any Insurance company or other person files an application for
insurance containing any materlally false Informatlon or conceals, for the purpose of misleading, informatlon concerning any fact
material thereto commits a fraudulent Insurance act, which is a crime.

Louisiana, New Mexico, Rhode Island, and West Virginia: Any person who knowingly and wilifully presents a false or fraudulent
clalm for payment of a loss or benefit or who knowlIngly and willfully presents false information in an application for insurance is
guilty of a crime and may be subject to fines and confinement In prison.

New Jersey; Any person who includes any false or misleading information on an application for an annuity is subject to criminal
and civil penalties,

Ohlo: Ahy person who, with intent to defraud or knowlIng that he is facilitating a fraud agalnst an insurer, submilts an application or
flles a clalm containing a false or deceptive statement is gullty of Insurance fraud.

Oklshoma; WARNING - Any person whao knowingly, and with intent to injure, defraud or deceive any [nsurer, makes any clalm for
the proceeds of an insurance policy contalning any false, incomplete or misleading Informatlon Is gullty of a felony.

Pennsylvania: Any person who knowingly and with intent to defraud any Insurance company or other person files an applicatlion for
Insurance or statement of clalm containing any materially false Information or conceals for the purpose of misleading, information
concerning any fact material thereto commits a fraudulent Insurance act, which Is a crime and subjects such person to criminal
and civil penaltles.

Vlirginia, Washington: It is a ¢rime to knowingly provide false, incomplete, or misieading Infermatlon to an insurance company for
the purpose of defrauding the company. Penaltles include Imprisonment, fines, and denlal of insurance benefits.

Washington D.C.: WARNING - It Is a crime to provide false or misleading information to an insurer for the purpose of defrauding
the insurer or any other person, Penalties include imprisonment and/or fines. In addition, an insurer may deny insurance benefits
If false Informatlon materlally related to a claim was provided by the applicant.

Arkansas, Malne, and Tennessee: Any person who knowingly and with intent to injure, defraud or deceive any insurance
company, submits an application for insurance containing any materially false, incomplete, or misleading information, or
conceals for the purpose of misleading, any material fact, Is gullty of insurance fraud, which is a crime and in certaln states,
a felony. Penalties may Include imprisonment, fine, denial of benefits, or clvil damages.

155634 (01/14) Page 2 of 3- Incomplete without all pages. Order #170097 09/01/2014
TM: DCPLNINSTL/PLNINTHEG



4. CONTRACT HOLDER SIGNATURE AND AUTHORIZATION

By signing this form, | understand that:

« lam selecting an annuity product to fund a tax-deferred arrangement;

< the tax laws provided for deferral of taxation of earnings on participant account balances; and

. although the annulty provides features and benefits that may be of value to participants, it does not provide any additional
deferral of taxation beyond that provided by the tax-deferred arrangement liself.

Additionally, | acknowledge that the pre-filled information, as well as the information | have provided is complete and accurate, |
further understand that the Company is entitled to rely exclusively on Information provided on this form.

All payments and values provided by the group Contract, when based on the investment experience of the Separate Account,
are varlable and are not guaranteed as to fixed dollar amount. Amounts allocated to the Guaranteed Accumulation Account, if
available and withdrawn before a guaranteed term maturity date, and/or amounts allocated to the Fixed Account, if applicable,
may be subject to a market value adjustment. The market value adjustment may result in an Increase, or a decrease, In a
participant’s account value,

I acknowledge receipt of the current annuity prospectus for the group annulty contract or contract disclosure booklet, as well as
current fund prospectuses for each of the variable Investment options. | HAVE ATTACHED A COPY OF PROSPECTUS RECEIPT
TO THIS APPLICATION (required for registered contracts only). The Effectlve Date of the Contract is the Contract Holder's date of
signature below.

.
. f
Contract Holder Slgnature /// (s /%d//L Date ) =15

7/ /?'f‘/c’-;f =
Title -/f- /%/ ﬂ e City/Town and State Where Signed /)/éﬁ (A
Witness Signature A_a,t 1a mm&:md- Date S~ /-(3
= ——————— = — —=i————————————— == ————————=—= ==
5. PRODUCER SIGNATURE
Producer Name a,u.( Sm ¢~#I License # (if applicable) /D "‘{ -0 (a \

Producer Signature /A_,—ﬂ < S?-_F&‘ - Date 3{/'//.3

155634 (01/14) Page 3 of 3- Incomplete without all pages. Order #170097 09/01/2014
TM: DCPLNINSTL/PLNINTHEG



PLAN SPONSOR SUBMISSION INFORMATION VO A

RetireFlex-SA for Governmental 457(b) and Non-ERISA 401 Plans i
A Mutual Fund and Group Fixed Annuity retirement plan product

C{)‘;zs;ir?;iéglgfztr?lsawn Mazzola, One Orange Way, A3-S, Windsor, CT 06095-4774 Fax:  (515)698-3036

In this form, Voya Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (VRIAC), Voya Financial Partners, LLC and Voya Financial Advisors, Inc. may be referred to as Voya®. The ferm contract
refers to a group annuity contract and an administrative services agreement. A Master Application must be submitted along wilh this completed Plan Sponsor Submission Information
Form,

Good order is receipt at the designated location of this form accurately and entirely completed, and includes all necessary signatures. If this form and any additional
required documentation are not received in good order, as we determine, it may be returned to you for correction which may result in delays in the instaflation of your
Plan.

PLAN SPONSCR INFORMATION

Employer Name ity of McAlester

Address g E. Washington ‘ PO Box (if applicable) £-g

City/Town meAlester State {(JOI) OK AP 74502

Primary Employer Phone E-mail .

Contact Name Toni Ervin (918) 423-9300 toni.ernvin@cityofmcalester.com
Payroll Contact Phone E-mail

Name Ladana DeTello A(3-423-9300 Ladana. DeTetlo@ c-dv o
Tax |.D. Number 73-6005314 | Fiscal Year End (ex. 6/30) v-30 ORI\ S54¢( - Co vy
PLAN INFORMATION - Check all applicable plan types and complete requested information

457(b) Governmental Plan Specific Information Available [C1 Not Available
Full Legal Plan Name ity of McAlester Eligible Deferred Compensation Plan
Abbreviated Plan Narpe (Statements for 25 Characlers. Please pioyide your preferred abbreviated plan name.) | 1s plan subject to Title | of ERISA?

CHtu o mcﬂles,er 457 [JYes [XINo
Original Plan Effective Date® Plan Year End
(ex: mm/ddfyyyy) 04/01/2004 (ex: 12/31)  12/31
Please list current plan providers with plan assets Will all current plan assets be transferring to Voya?
Nationwide & John Hancock W Yes [No
401(a) Plan Specific Information [] Available [ Not Available

Full Legal Plan Name N/A

Abbreviated Plan Name (Statements aliow for 25 Characters. Please provide your preferred abbreviated plan name.) | |s plan subject to Title | of ERISA?

) yes XNo
Original Plan Effective Date Plan Year End
(ex:_mm/ddyyyy) (ex: 12/31)
Please list current plan providers with plan assets Will all current plan assets be transferring to Voya?
[1Yes [No B
401(k) Plan” Specific Information [[] Available [ ] Not Available

Full Legal Plan Name N/

Abbreviated Plan Name (Statements allow for 25 Characters. Please provide your preferred abbrevialed plan name.) | Is plan subject to Title | of ERISA?
1 Yes No

Original Plan Effective Date Plan Year End
(ex: mm/ddiyyyy) (ex: 12/31)
Piease list current plan providers with plan assets Will all current plan assets be transferring to Voya?

[dYes [No
*If the Plan Sponsor is a governmental or municipal employer, the employer understands and acknowledges that the 401(k) plan must have been in
existence on May 6, 1986.

Page 1 of 16 Order # 175388 11/07/2016



Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

Money Sources 457(h) 401(a) 401(k) Check box if
Source Closed to
Employes Pre-Tax 1 457(b) 1 401(a) B (7 401(k) [] Closed
414{h) Pickup Contribution [1457(b) [ 401(a) 7 401(k) [] Closed
 ER Matching! - see notafion [1457(b) [1401(a) [1401(k) [ Closed
ER Discretionary! - see notation [1457(b) []401(a) 1 401(k) [] Closed
ER Non-Discretionary! - see notation [1457(b) [1401(a) []401(k) [] Closed
Transfer Account (145700 7 401(a) [ 401(k) [] Closed
Rollover 457(b) RO
. V] Non-457(b)RO [1401(a) [1401(k) N/A -
Roth [A457(b) N/A (] 401¢k) [ Closed
Roth Rollover [147457(b) Roth RO
L] Non-457 Roth RO A hia e
Roth Non-457 Rollover or Roth Rollover 1 457(b) N/A | 401(K) N/A
Employee Post-Tax (not Roth) N/A ] 401(a) [1401(k) ] Closed
In Plan Roth Rellover (distributable) ] 457(b) N/A ] 401(k) N/A
MISCELLANEOUS CONTRIBUTION PROVISIONS and SERVICES
Catch-up Provisions 457(b} 401{a) 401(k)
Are Age 50 Plus Catch-up Contributions Permitted W Yes [INo N/A [lYes []No
Are Special 457 Catch Up Contributions Permitted [ Yes [JNo N/A NA
Will ER Match Catch-up Contributions CJYes [No NIA ] Yes D No
Non Routine Contributions 457(b) 401(a) 401(K)
Are Plan-to-Plan Transfers into the Plan Permitted yes [No [CYes [ INo [ves [INo

Contribution Rate Changes
Voya will maintain participant contribution rate elections under the Plan (if employee pre-tax andfor Roth contributions are allowed) unless the
Employer opts out.

[ Employer elects not to use Voya's contribution rate change service

If the Voya contribution rate change service is elected identify the type of election permitied (check all that applies);
Percentage-based elections. The minimum will be 0%. The maximum will be as permitted by law.
Dollar-based elections. The minimum will be $0. The maximum will be as permitted by law,

If the Vaya contribution rate change service is elected and hardship or unforeseeable emergency withdrawals are permitted under the Plan,
complete the following:

457(h) 401(a) 401(k)
Are contributions fo be suspended following such a withdrawal?
If applicable, the contribution suspension period will he 6 months. N/A
Contribution rate will not be reinstated at end of suspension MYes  [INo [Jves [N
period, -

ENROLLMENT PROVISIONS AND SERVICES
It will be assumed that the Plan requires the participant to voluntarily enroll into the Plan unless the Employer indicates otherwise

Default Enroliment process is allowed in []457(b) plan [ 1401(a) plan 1 401(x) plan
If 2 default enrollment process is allowed, a default investment option must be identified by the Plan Sponsor within the Investment Selection
Section included with this form.

Wilt Independent Contractors be allowed to participate in the Plan (applicable to 457(b) plans only) OO Yes [ No [ONA

1 . . . c—
Do not check if Employer Contributions dare co-mingled and remitted as Employee Pre-Tax contributions

Page 2 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name _City of McAlester

Product Name

RetireFlex-SA

VESTING
457(b) Governmental Vesting Information ER Match (pick one) ER Discretionary (pick one) ER Non-Discretionary
{pick ong)
% N/A ~ No Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A
Full and Immediate [ ] ER Match [ 1 ER Discretionary [] ER Non-Discretionary
[] 3-year cliff [_] ER Match [_] ER Discretionary [] ER Non-Discretionary
(0 4-year graded: 25% per year [] ER Match 1 ER Discretionary [] ER Non-Discretionary
[ ] 5-year graded: After 1 year of service 20% per year [_] ER Match [_] ER Discretionary []ER Non-Discretionary
[ ] 6-year graded: 20% after 2 years of service; plus ] ER Match [_] ER Discretionary ] ER Non-Discretionary
20% per year after
Vesting Computation Period (pick one)
[ Elapsed Time Method ~ [_] General Method (1000 hours equals one year of service)
Accelerated Vesting: Participant will become 100% vested (check all that apply)
[JAtNormal Retirement Age—age [ _]Upon Participant Disability [ [Upon Participant Death [_JAt Early Retirement Age —age
(insert age) (insert age)

Forfeiture Release Provision
[ Immediate Release (upon distribution) [ 5 year break-in-service with full termination distribution

401(a) Vesting Information ER Match (pick one) ER Discretionary (pick one) ER Non-Discretionary

(pick one)
[_] N/A - No Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A
[] Full and Immediate [ ER Match [] ER Discretionary [_] ER Non-Discretionary
(] 3-year cliff A [] ER Match [C] ER Discretionary (] ER Non-Discretionary
]  4-year graded: 25% per year ] ER Match [ ER Discretionary [_] ER Non-Discretionary
[]  5-year graded: After 1 year of service 20% per year [] ER Match [] ER Discretionary [_] ER Non-Discretionary
[[] 8-year graded: 20% after 2 years of service; plus [C1ER Match [] ER Discretionary [_] ER Non-Discretionary
20% per year after

Vesting Computation Period (pick one)
[_] Elapsed Time Method [ General Method (1000 hours equals one year of service)
Accelerated Vesting: Participant will become 100% vested (check ali that apply)
[_]At Normal Refirement Age—age [ ]Upon Participant Disability [_jUpon Participant Death [_JAt Early Refitement Age —age

{insert age) (insert age)

Forfeiture Release Provision
[ 1 Immediate Release (upon distribution)

[ ] 5 year break-in-service with full termination distribution

401(k) Vesting Information ER Match (pick one) ER Discretionary (pick one) ER Non-Discretionary

(pick one)
[_] N/A—-NoEmployer Contributions N/A N/A NIA
[ 1 Full and Immediate [C] ER Match [] ER Discretionary ] ER Non-Discretionary
(] 3-year cliff [C] ER Match ("] ER Discretionary [[] ER Non-Discretionary
1 4-year graded: 25% per year ] ER Match (1 ER Discretionary ] ER Non-Discretionary
[] 5-year graded: After 1 year of service 20% per year {1 ER Match (] ER Discretionary [] ER Non-Discretionary
[ ] 6-year graded: 20% after 2 years of service; plus ] ER Match ] ER Discretionary ] ER Non-Discretionary
20% per year after
Vesting Computation Period (pick one/
[ Elapsed Time Method [ General Method (1000 hours equals one year of service)
Accelerated Vesting: Participant will become 100% vested (check all that apply)
[_]At Normal Retirement Age-age __ [[]Upon Participant Disability [_]Upon Participant Death [JAt Early Retirement Age - age
{insert age) (insert age)

Forfeiture Release Provision
["] Immediate Release (upon distribution)

[5 year break-in-service with full termination distribution

Page 3 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name  RetireFlex-SA

DISTRIBUTIONS/WITHDRAWALS - Governmental 457(b) Plans

In-Service Withdrawal Options - The following in-service withdrawal options will be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts out by
checking the applicable box. The Plan Sponsor will be required to approve all allowed in-service distribution options available under the Plan; such
approval will be evidenced by the signature of an autherized Plan Sponsor representative on the applicable withdrawal request form provided by
VRIAC. There shall be no restrictions on the frequency in which a distribution/withdrawal may be requested.

¢ Unforeseeable Emergency [] Not Allowed
e  Withdrawal of Rollover Contribution Source(s) [ Not Allowed
o 457(b) Deminimus [ Not Allowed
¢  Withdrawal and Transfer of Governmental Defined Benefit Service Credit [ 1 Not Allowed
The following in-service withdrawal options will nof be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts in by checking applicable box.
o  Age-based Withdrawal [V Allowed - indicate age 70.5 )
» Normal Retirement Age Withdrawal ] Allowed — indicate age -
¢ Withdrawal and Transfer for Health Insurance and Long Term Care [ ] Allowed

Separation from Service Distribution Options - In addition to direct rollovers, the following distribution options after a participant has separated
from service will be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts out by checking the applicable box.

e  Full Cash Withdrawal (] Not Allowed
o  Partial Cash Withdrawal [C] Not Allowed
s |nstallment payments ] Not Allowed
s Annuity payments ] Not Allowed
s Plan to Plan Transfers to another plan of the same plan type ] Not Allowed
« Combination or split payment elections ] Not Allowed

VRIAC will provide ongoing review and processing of participant-initiated benefit payment requests (including annuity payments, if permitted, and
death benefits) due to participant's separation from service or death, on behalf of the Plan Sponsor. In the case of death benefits, in those
individual circumstances where VRIAC does not have a beneficiary designatien from the participant on file, VRIAC will seek written direction from
the Plan Sponsor as to who to make payment to pursuant to the Plan. The Plan Sponsor is responsible for providing VRIAC with any and all
participant termination data in the mutually agreed upon electronic format, within a reasonable time period following the participant's separation
from service or death. VRIAC will not make the applicable benefit payment request transaction andfor paperwork available to the participant until
the termination data is received from the Plan Sponsor.
Spousal Consent Reguirements - Does the Plan require a participant's spouse to provide spousal consent of participant's withdrawal or
distribution election? [ Yes ENO

7

DISTRIBUTIONS/WITHDRAWALS - 401(a) Plans

In-Service Withdrawal Options - The following in-service withdrawal options will be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts out by
checking the applicable box. . The Plan Sponsor will be required to approve all allowed in-service distribution options available under the Plan;
such approval will be evidenced by the signature of an authorized Plan Sponscr representative on the applicable withdrawal request form provided
by VRIAC. There shall be na restrictions on the frequency in which a distribution/withdrawal may be requested.

o  Withdrawal of Rollover Contribution Source(s) [_] Not Allowed
o  Withdrawal and Transfer of Governmental Defined Benefit Service Credit [ ] Not Allowed
The following in-service withdrawal options wilf not be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts in by checking applicable box.
e  Age-hased Withdrawal ] Allowed ~ indicate age )
o Normal Retirement Age Withdrawal [_] Aliowed - indicate age
o Withdrawal and Transfer for Health Insurance and Long Term Care ] Aliowed

Separation from Service Distribution Options - In addition to direct rollovers, the following distribution options after a participant has separated
from service will be established under the Plan uniess the Employer opts out by checking the applicable box.

Full Cash Withdrawai (] Not Alowed
e Partial Cash Withdrawal (1 Not Allowed
s Installment payments [ Not Allowed
»  Annuity payments {1 Not Allowed
e  Planto Plan Transfers to another plan of the same plan type (] Not Allowed
«  Combination or split payment elections [ Not Allowed

VRIAC will provide ongoing review and processing of participant-initiated benefit payment requests (including annuity payments, if permitted, and
death benefits) due to participant's separation from service or death, on behalf of the Plan Sponsor. In the case of death benefits, in those
individual circumstances where VRIAC does not have a beneficiary designation from the participant on file, VRIAC will seek written direction from
the Plan Sponsor as to who to make payment to pursuant to the Plan. The Plan Sponsor is responsible for providing VRIAC with any and all
participant termination data in the mutually agreed upon electronic format, within a reasonable time period following the participant's separation
from service or death. VRIAC will not make the applicable benefit payment request transaction and/for paperwork available to the participant until
the termination data is received from the Plan Sponsor.
Spousal Consent Requirements - Does the Plan require participants to waive right to a joint and survivor annuity and participant's spouse to
consent 1o participant's waiver (commonly referred to as "QJSA waiver with spousal consent”)? [ ]Yes [INo

Page 4 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016




Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

DISTRIBUTIONS/WITHDRAWALS - 401(k) Plans

In-Service Withdrawal Options - The following in-service withdrawal options wifl be established under the Plan unfess the Employer opts out by
checking the applicable box. The Plan Sponsor will be required to approve all allowed in-service distribution options available under the Plan; such
approval will be evidenced by the signature of an authorized Plan Sponsor representative on the applicable withdrawal request form provided by
VRIAC. There shall be no restrictions on the frequency in which a distribution/withdrawal may be requested.

¢ Hardship Withdrawal [ Not Allowed
«  Age 59% Withdrawal [ Not Allowed
o Withdrawal of Rollover Confribution Source(s) [ Not Allowed

The following in-service withdrawal options will not be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts in by checking applicable box.
o  Age-based Withdrawal [ Allowed - indicate age
s Normal Retirement Age Withdrawal [] Allowed —indicate age
o  Withdrawal and Transfer for Health Insurance and Long Term Care ] Allowed
« Withdrawal and Transfer of Governmental Defined Benefit Service Credit ] Allowed
Separation from Service Distribution Options ~ In addition to direct rollovers, the following distribution options after a participant has separated
from service will be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts out by checking the applicable box.

e  Full Cash Withdrawal [ Not Allowed
e  Partial Cash Withdrawal [ Not Allowed
e Installment payments [_] Not Allowed
o Annuity payments "1 Not Allowed
+ Plan to Plan Transfers to another plan of the same plan type ] Not Atlowed
e Combination or split payment elections "] Not Allowed

VRIAC will provide ongaing review and processing of participant-initiated benefit payment requests (including annuity payments, if permitted, and
death benefits) due to participant's separation from service or death, on behalf of the Plan Sponsor. In the case of death benefits, in those
individual circumstances where VRIAC does not have a beneficiary designation from the participant on file, VRIAC will seek written direction from
the Plan Sponsor as to who to make payment to pursuant to the Plan. The Plan Sponsor is responsible for providing VRIAC with any and all
participant termination data in the mutually agreed upon electronic format, within a reasonable time period following the participant's separation
from service or death. VRIAC will not make the applicable benefit payment request transaction andfor paperwork available to the participant untit
the termination data is received from the Plan Sponsor.

Spousal Consent Requirements - Does the Plan require participants to waive right to a joint and survivor annuity and participant's spouse to

consent to participant's waiver (commonly referred 1o as “QJSA waiver with spousal consent”)? [ JYes 1 No
457(b) 401(a) 401(k)
Are mandatory distributions under the Plan required (Note: mandatory [¥] Yes [ 1Yes []Yes
distributions over $1,000 are not permitled under non-governmental 457(b) plans. ) [ No M No [ No
If mandatory distributions are required, indicate the applicable limit [« $1,000 limit [ $1,000 limit [ $1,000 imit
[155,000 limit* [] $5,000 limit* [ $5,000 fimit*

* Accounts that have balances less than or equal to $1,000 will be cashed out. Participants with account balances greater than $1,000 and at
or below $5,000 will be rolled into an IRA to be established by the Employer. Additional paperwork may be required if the Voya Rollover [RA is
used. If a non-Voya Rollover IRA is to be used, provide the following information:

Name of IRA Provider
Street Address

Contact Name
City/State/Zip

If mandatory distributions are required, rallover batances (if any) will
be excluded when determining if account balance meets the limit
untess otherwise elected

[ Include rollover balances. Note any exception by plan, e.g., 401(a)

Page 5 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

LOAN PROVISIONS
Loans will not be established under the Plan unless the Employer opts in by checking applicable box

{Note: loans are not permitted under non-govemmental 457(b) plans. ) 457(b) 401(a) 401(k)
e  General Purpose Loans [ Allowed ] Allowed [ Allowed
¢ Residential Loans [ Allowed ] Allowed [ Allowed
Loan Repayment Method

If loans are permitted, indicate the method loans will be repaid {only one method may be selected)

M Payroll deduction. Loan payments will not be permitted after Participant has separated from service.

] ACH debit to the Participant's bank account. Loan payments will continue after the Participant has separated from service until a full
termination distribution has been processed from the Participant's account.

If loans are permitted under the Plan, the following rules will apply.

e  The maximum number of outstanding loans at any time will be Mone ] two, regardless of loan type. There shall be no restrictions on
the frequency in which a loan may be requested.
General Purpose loans will have a maximum duration of 57 months and Residential loans will have a maximum duration of 120 months,
The minimum loan amount will be $1,000 regardless of loan type.

e The loan interest rate will be determined by Voya based on the Prime Interest Rate published in the WSJ on the last business day of
each month plus an adjustment factor of 1%.

o Loan requests will be authorized by the Plan Sponsor. If all existing plan assets will be transferred as indicated on page 1, loan requests
will be authorized by Voya.

«  Spousal consent requirements will mirror those requirements indicated within the Distribution/Withdrawals section above.

NOTE: Distributions, Withdrawals and Loans will be withdrawn using Voya’s standard sequence of employee pre-tax
contribution sources followed by employer contribution sources, then roflover and transfer sources, if permitted. If Roth is available
under the Plan, the Roth contribution source followed by Roth-related rollover sources will go after the employee and employer
contribution sources noted above. Roth and Roth-related roflover sources may not be used to fund a loan dishursement but may be
included when determining the maximum loan amount available. Non-Roth after tax money sourcs, if available will be at the end of the
source sequence. Employer contribution sources are not available for Hardship Withdrawals.

MISCELLANEQUS PLAN PROVISIONS
Beneficiary Designations
Voya will maintain beneficiary designations under the Plan(s) unless the Employer opts out.

[] Employer elects not to use Voya's service

If the Voya beneficiary maintenance service is elected, Yoya will allow participants and the account holders shown below to name a beneficiary
unless the Employer opts out by checking the applicable box.

457(b) 401(a) 401(k)
o  Beneficiary account holder ] Not Allowed ] Not Allowed ] Not Allowed
s Alternate payee account holder [ Not Allowed ] Not Allowed ] Not Allowed
Please indicate spousal consent requirements of a beneficiary designation under the Plan below.
457(b) 401(a) 401(k)
e Spousal Consent required [Yes [MNo [JYes [INo [IYes [INo
s Community Property edit (see below) CJYes DOMNo [Yes [No [dYes [JNo

For those plans where spousal consent requirement does not apply, the Employer elects to require consent if the participant /
Account holder resides in a community property state

Domestic Relations Orders (“DROs”)
Voya will presume the Plan recognizes and permits DROs unless the Employer opts out.
457(h) 401(a) 401(k)
L] Not Allowed L] Not Allowed ] Not Allowed

Page 6 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name City of McAlester Product Name  RetireFlex-SA
OPTIONAL SERVICES

The following optional services will nof be established for the Plan unless the Employer opts in by checking applicable box
457(b) 401(a) 401(k)
o  Self-Directed Brokerage Account (] Permitted [] Permitted [] Permitted
« Investment Advisory Services [C] Permitted ] Permitted (] Permitted
¢ Asset Allocation Made Easier Services (] Permitted [] Permitted [] Permitted
s  Expense reimbursement arrangement [[] Permitted [] Permitted ] Permitted

If optional plan services are elected, the following rules will apply.
o  Self-directed brokerage account is available for plans with $1 million or mare in total plan assets.
¢ Additicnal agreements will be required. Additional charges may apply as reflected in Scheduie D of the Administrative Services
Agreement.
o Availability of Asset Allocation Made Easier Services is subject to Company approval.
o Availability of Portfolio Blueprint® is subject to Company approval.

Page 7 of 16 Crder # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

LICENSED REPRESENTATIVE

Voya designates the following individual(s) to serve as its licensed representatives with respect to this Agreement. Licensed representatives are
designated as one of the following:

Agent, including Career Agent — Appointed with Voya Retirement insurance and Annuity Company, registered representative of Voya Financial
Advisors, Inc. and receives commission based compensation.

Broker ~ (Non Voya FA Only) — Appointed with Voya Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company, but affiliated with a broker-dealer other than
Voya Financial Advisors, Inc. and receives commission based compensation,

Salaried Enroller - Voya Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company employees who will not receive commission based salary and are registered
representatives of Voya, Financial Advisors, Ing.

Representative 1 E{Agent ] Broker [] Salaried Enroller

Representative Name P l M (S . ‘H’l Last 4 Digits SSN 7 9(_-1 (D
" A My

Broker Dealer Affiliation \} . . .
ouno- ru\m\.ma\ AO[\M so¢s

Office Code J Rep # % Participation

[o4d 1 ' [0 Y%
Representative 2 [ | Agent | | Broker [ ] Salaried Enrolier
Representative Name Last 4 Digits SSN

Broker Dealer Affiliation

Office Code Rep # % Participation

Representative 3 [] Agent [] Broker [_] Salaried Enroller
Representative Name Last 4 Digits SSN

Broker Dealer Affiliation

Office Code Rep # % Participation

Licensed representatives identified above will be able to access Voya customer service representatives upon providing recognized
access code. Licensed representafive may obtain account information, make profile changes and/or request paperwork on behalf of a
participant,

Registered Representatives of distributors who solicif sales of the contract typically receive a portion of the compensation paid to the
distributor in the form of commissions or other compensation, depending upon the agreement between the distributor and the
registered Representative. This compensation as well as other incentives or payments, is not paid directly by contract holders or
account holders, but instead is paid by us through Voya Financial Partners, LLC. We intend to recoup this compensation and other
sales expenses paid o distributors through fees and charges imposed under the contract. Some personnel may receive various types
of non-cash compensation as special sales incentives, including trips, and we may also pay for some personnel to altend educational
and/or business seminars. Any such compensation will be paid in accordance with SEC and FINRA Rules.

Page 8 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2018



Employer Name City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

COMMISSION AND FEE SCHEDULE
Assumptions for Your Plan | Number of Participating Employees | First Year Contribution Amount | Transferred Asset Amount in the First Year

Compensation Structure
[_] Flat Salary 1%
[ Commission Schedule [ Case Level [ Participant Leve

1.00 % of Contributions in the first Case Year

0.00 % of Contributions in the Renewal Case Year

0.00 % of Increase Contributions in the Renewal Case Years

1.00 % of Transferred Assets in [ ] the First Case Year [ Al Years

0.10 9 of Assets Beginning [/ Month 1 ] Month 13

Supplemental Bonus Compensation: No

Daily Asset Charge (DAC)

The Daily Asset Charge (DAC) is factored into the current value of each of the variable investment options. The DAC is a function of the number of
participants, assets, and compensation paid in connection with the contract, It is reviewed annually, therefore, the DAC may decrease or increase as
assets or the average participant account balance changes. Based on the previously stated assumptions and compensation option selected, the
estimated initial DAC applicable during the first contract year and the DAC schedule are noted below.

Daily Asset Charge 015 9

Fund Management Fees

Fund management fees and other fund operating expenses will apply. Fees depend on the investment option chosen. Please refer to the individual
Fund prospectuses for fund fee information. A portion of that fee may be paid to Voya as a form of revenue sharing. Please see the information
booklet for additional information.

Additional Services/Recordkeeping Fees

Please refer to Schedule D or the Administrative Services Agreement.

Page 9 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

INVESTMENT SELECTION SECTION

Please select the investment options that will be available in your Plan.

These investment options are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, are not deposits or obligations for Voya
Institutional Trust Company or any of its affiliates, and are not guaranteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies or instrumentaliies,

These investment options include investment risks including possible loss of principal amount invested and companies that are
affiliated with Voya Institutional Trust Company will eamn fees, which are disclosed in the prospectuses, for providing these services to
the Plan.

Plan Sponsor acknowledges receipt of the fund prospectuses for each of the available investment options.
INVESTMENT OPTION SELECTION MENU

Please place an X to indicate the investment options chosen. Once the Investment Selection has been submitted to Voya®,
the addition or deletion of investments choices prior to the installation must be in writing. Any change in the investment
Iineup during installation can affect transition timelines.

Stability of Principal

[J 003 VoyaMoney Market Portfolic - Class I* [ B4 4301 Voya Fixed Account- 457/401 112
Bonds
[ ] 3418 AllianceBernstein Global Bond Fund - Class K’ | | 3986 MFS®Emerging Markets Debf Fund - Class R3
[ ] 3548 AllianceBernstein High Income Fund - Class K [ ] 6330 Neuberger Berman High Income Bond Fund - Class A
|] 1001 American Century Investments Inflation-Adjusted Bond - Investor | | | 6237 Oppenheimer Senior Floaling Rate Fund - Class Y

[ ] 1482 American Gentury Investments Short Duration Inflation Protectn Bond Inv 8029 PIMCO High Yield Fund - Administralive Class

2632 BlackRock High Yield Bond Portfolio - Investor A Shares Dd 6389 PIMCO Income Fund - Administrative Class

2458 BlackRock Inflation Protected Bond Pt - Investar A Shares 8052 PIMCO Real Refurn Fund - Administrative Class

6223 Cohen & Steers Preferred Securities and Income Fund - Cl A 663 PIMCO Total Return Fund - Administrative Class

7357 Delaware Extended Duraticn Bond Fund - Class A 1583 Pionesr Strategic Income Fund - Class Y Shares

AL

L]

2000 Eaton Vance Global Macro Absolute Return Fund - Class A 2482 Prudential High Yield Fund - Class Z

1848 Federaled Prudent Bear Fund - Class A Shares 7646 Prudential Total Return Bond Fund - Class Z

3837 Franklin U.S. Government Securities Fund - Advisor Class™ 3350 Putnam U.S. Government Income Trust - Class Y*

9251 Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Fund - Class A 1041 TCW Total Return Bond Fund - Class N

2870 Hotchkis and Wiley High Yield Fund - Class | 3375 TCW Ccre Fixed Income Fund - Class N

L1

2899 Invesco Floating Raie Fund - Class RS 5050 Templeton Global Bond Fund - Advisor Class

IO

2421 Ivy High Income Fund - Class Y 422 Voya Global Bond Portfolio - Initial Class

[ | 7732 JPMorgan Government Bond Fund - Select Class Shares | | 240 Voya GNMA Income Fund - Class [*
[ ] 2441 Legg Mason BW Global Opportunities Bond Fund - Class A 238 Voyaintermediate Bond Fund - Class |
[ | 2540 Loomis Sayles Investment Grade Bond Fund - Class A [ ] 1554 VoyalU.S. Bond Index Portfolio - Class |
[ ] 1471 Loomis Sayles Strategic income Fund - Class A 2707 Wells Fargo Advantage Real Return Fund - Administrator Class
| | 7576 Melropolitan West Total Return Bond Fund - Class M Shares [ ] 1634 Western Asset Core Plus Bend Fund - Class Fl
[ ] 3961 MFS®Bond Fund - Class R3 ] 1835 Westem Asset Emerging Markets Debt Fund - Class |
Asset Allocation
2724 American Century investments One Choices¥ 2020 Portfolio - Investor Cl 2828 MFS® Aggressive Growth Allocation Fund - Class R3

2673 MFS® Censervative Allocation Fund - Class R3

2200 American Century Investments One Choices™ 2025 Portfolio - Investor Ci

2725 American Century Investments One Choices# 2030 Portfolio - Investor Cl 2810 MFS® Growth Allocafion Fund - Class R3

HEN

i 2201 American Century Investments One ChoicesM 2035 Portfolio - Invester Cl 2809 MFS® Moderate Allocation Fund - Class R3

% The Voya Fixed Account-457/401 I} is not a mutual fund, but it is o fixed interest option offered through the Group Annuity Contract issued by Voya
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company. This investment option is required to be included in the fund menu selected.

*Considered a Competing Investment Option
Page 10 of 16 Crder # 175388 12/16/2016




Employer Name _Gity of McAlester

Product Name RetireFlex-SA

Asset Allocation

2726 American Century Investmenls One Choices™ 2040 Portfolio - Investor Cl

2183 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2005 Fund - Advisor Class

L]

2202 American Cenlury Investments One Chaice™ 2045 Portiolio - investor Cl

2179 T. Rewe Price Retirement 2010 Fund - Advisor Class

2727 American Century Investments One Choices* 2050 Portfolio - Investor Cl

2180 T. Rewe Price Retirement 2015 Fund - Advisar Class

2891 American Century Invesiments One Choice 2055 Portfolio - Investor Cl

2181 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 Fund - Advisor Class

|

2203 American Century Investments One Choices! Income Port- Investor Gl

2182 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2025 Fund - Advisor Class

7125 American Cenlury Invesiments Stralegic Allocation: Aggressive Fund Inv

2186 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 Fund - Advisor Class

7124 American Gentury Investments Strategic Allocation: Conservative Inv

2184 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2035 Fund - Advisor Class

7123 American Century Investments Strategic Allocation: Moderate Fund Inv

2185 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 Fund - Advisor Class

9220 American Funds 2010 Target Date Retirement Fund® - R-4

2183 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2045 Fund - Advisor Class

(I

9221 American Funds 2015 Targe! Date Retirement Fund® - R4

2187 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 Fund - Advisor Class

9222 American Funds 2020 Target Date Retirement Fund® - R4

2188 T. Rowe Price Retirement 2055 Fund - Advisor Class

IO RXKIKEROOODOODOO OO OO0

[ ] 9223 American Funds 2025 Target Date Refirement Fund®- R-4 2178 T. Rowe Price Retirement Income Fund - Advisor Class
[ ] 9224 American Funds 2030 Target Date Relirement Fund® - R-4 1536 Voya Index Solution 2015 Portfolio - Initial Class
[ ] 9225 American Funds 2035 Target Date Refirement Fund® - R4 1539 Voya Index Solution 2025 Pertfolic - Initial Class ,gig X3
[ ] 9226 American Funds 2040 Targat Date Refirement Fund® - R4 1542 Voya Index Solution 2035 Porifolio - Initial Class )
| | 9227 American Funds 2045 Target Date Retirement Fund® - R-4 1545 Voya index Solution 2045 Portfolio - Inifial Class g ﬂ b£ ! ol
[] 9228 American Funds 2050 Target Date Retirement Fund®- R-4 1161 Voya Index Solution 2055 Portfolio - Initial Class
[ ] 1872 American Funds 2055 Target Date Relirement Fund® - R4 1548 Voya Index Solution Income Portfolio - Initial Class
| | 1861 JPMorgan SmariRetirement® 2015 Fund - Select Class 746 Voya Solution 2015 Portfolio - Initial Class
: 1862 JPMorgan SmariRetirement® 2020 Fund - Select Class 790 Voya Solution 2025 Portfolio - Initial Class
[ 1 1863 JPMorgan SmariRefirement® 2025 Fund - Select Class 761 Voya Solution 2035 Portfolio - Initial Class
|| 1864 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2030 Fund - Select Class || 764 Voya Solution 2045 Portfolio - Inilial Class
[ ] 1865 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2035 Fund - Select Class L | 1166 Voya Solution 2055 Portfolic - Initial Class
|| 1866 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2040 Fund - Select Class || 3829 Voya Solution Aggressive Portfolio - initial Class i
[ ] 1867 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2045 Fund - Select Class [ ] 1810 Voya Solution Balanced Portfolio - Initial Class
|| 1868 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2050 Fund - Selec! Class | | 1876 Voya Solution Conservative Portfolio - Initial Class
[ 1 3868 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® 2055 Fund - Select Class [ 1 767 Voya Solution Income Portfolio - Initial Class
| | 1869 JPMorgan SmartRetirement® Income Fund - Select Class [ ] 1920 Voya Solution Moderately Aggressive Portfolio - Initial C
[ 1 1806 Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. Pro-Blend® Cons Term Series - [_] 1609 Voya Solution Moderalely Conservative Portfolio - Initial Cl
[ ] 7118 Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. Pro-Blend® Ext Term Series - S [] 033 Voya Slrategic Allocation Conservalive Portfolio - Class |
L_| 7116 Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. Pro-Blend® Max Term Series - S | | 031 Voya Strategic Allocation Growth Portfolio - Class |
-ﬁ 7115 Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. Pro-Blend® Mod Term Series - § [ ] 032 VoyaSlrategic AIIocatlon Moderate Portfolic - Class 1

K Per clrent cequest, Plesse add “Voya lndex Solukion 2020,2030, 2040,2050,

" Balanced

[

Class

984 American Century Invesiments Balanced Fund - Investor

8656 JPMorgan Diversified Fund - Select Class Shares

823  American Funds American Balanced Fund - Class R-4

3590 MFS® Total Return Fund - Class R3

1005 American Funds The Income Fund of America - Class R-4

193 Pax World Balanced Fund - Individual Investor Class

6465 Columbia Balanced Fund - Class R4 Shares

008 Voya Balanced Portfolio - Class |

1823 Invesco Equity and Income Fund - Class Y

1267 VY T. Rowe Price Capital Appreciation Portfolio - Institutional Class

2420 vy Balanced Fund - Class Y

Large Cap Value

3104 AllianceBernstein Growth and Income Fund - Class K

3757 JPF\;'Icrgan Value Advanlage Fund - Select Class Shares

1]

7136 American Beacon Large Cap Value Fund - Investor Class

L]

1468 QS Baflerymarch S&P 500 Index Fund - Class A

1250 American Century Investmenis Equity Growth Fund - Investor

2876 MFS® Value Fund - Class R3

L]

9229 American Funds American Mutual Fund® - Class R-4

3194 Nuveon Dividend Value Fund - Class |

1208 American Funds Fundamental investorsSM - Class R-4

2228 Parnassus Core Equity FundSM - investor Shares

8504 American Funds The Investment Company of America® - R-4

LI

1332 Pioneer Equity Income Fund - Class Y Shares

819  American Funds Washingten Mutual Investors FundsM - R-4

3112 Putnam Equity Income Fund - Class Y

EEN

6296 Columbia Contrarian Core Fund - Class R4 Shares

L]

2886 RidgeWorlh Large Cap Value Equity Fund - Class | Shares

6467 Columbia Dividend Opporlunity Fund - Class R4 Shares

3155 T. Rowe Price Dividend Growth Fund - Advisor Class

3912 Delaware Value® Fund - Class A

220 T. Rowe Price Value Fund - Advisor Class

3171 Diamend Hill Large Cap Fund - Class A

3436 Voya Corporate Leaders 100 Fund - Class |

0]

8496 Eagle Growth & Income Fund - Class A

001  Voya Growth and Income Pertfolio - Class |

208  Fidelity VIP Contrafund Portfolic - Service Class 2

035 Voya Index Plus LargeCap Portfolio - Class |

Page 11 of 16

Order # 175388 12/16/2016

o0



Employer Name _City of McAlester

Product Name RetireFlex-SA

Large Cap Value

| 1X] 8485 Fidelity Advisor Large Cap Fund - Class A [ ] 3764 Voya Large Cap Value Fund - Class |
[ ] 7172 Invesco Charter Fund - Class R5 ; 1657 Voya Russel™ Large Cap Index Portfolio - Class |
[ ] 8354 Invesco Comstock Fund - Class Y [] 2709 VoyaRussel™ Large Cap Value Index Porffolio - Class | |
: 8654 JPMorgan U.S. Large Cap Core Plus Fund - Selecl Class j 622 VY T. Rowe Price Equily Income Portfolio - Insfitutional Class
Large Cap Growth
| | 3105 AllianceBernstein Large Cap Growth Fund - Class K || 3153 Principal LargeCap Growth | Fund - R-4 Class Shares
| ] 3154 American Century Investments Disciplined Growth Fund - Investor | [ ] 3598 Prudential Jennison Growth Fund - Class Z

1002 American Funds AMCAP Fund® - Class R-4

1379

T. Rowe Price Blue Chip Growth Fund - Advisor Class

572 American Funds The Growth Fund of America - Class R-4

8166

T. Rowe Price Growth Stock Fund - Advisor Class

1006_American Funds The New Economy Fund® - Class R-4

1791

T. Rowe Price New America Growth Fund - Advisor Class

1304 ClearBridge Aggressive Growth Fund - Class |

1605

Thornburg Core Growth Fund - Class R4

L]

1600 Fidelily Advisor New Insights Fund - Instilutional Class

LI

243

Voya Growth Opporlunities Fund - Class |

3767 Franklin DynaTech Fund - Advisor Class

742

Voya Large Cap Growth Portfolio - Institutional Class

8792 Harbor Capital Appreciation Fund - Investor Class

2713

Voya Russell™ Large Cap Growth Index Portfolio - Class |

| ] 2087 MFS® Growlh Fund - Class R3 | | 111 VY T. Rowe Price Growth Equity Portfolio - Initial Class

2927 Neuberger Berman Socially Responsive Fund - Class A
Small/Mid/Specialty
[ ] 8511 AllianceBernstein Discovery Growth Fund, (nc. - Class K [] 3283 MFS® New Discovery Fund - Class R3
L] 8157 American Beacon Mid-Cap Value Fund - Investor Class —J__. 8546 MFS® Utilities Fund- Class R3

[] 9185 American Beacon Small Cap Yalue Fund - Investor Class [ ] 3618 Neuberger Berman Long Short Fung - Ciass A

L] 1824 American Century Investments Heritage Fund - Investor Class | 1487 Northern Funds Small Cap Vaiue Fund

[ ] 7601 AMG Managers Real Estate Securities Fund [ ] 3445 Oppenheimer Gold & Special Minerals Fund - Class Y

L] 1475 AMG Managers Special Equity Fund - Service Class || 3818 OakRidge Small Cap Growth Fund - Class Y Shares

(1 456  Ariel Appreciation Fund - Investor Class [ ] 1908 PIMCO CommodityRealReturn Strategy Fund® - Admin Class
920  Baron Growth Fund - Retail Shares : 3170 Prudential Global Real Estate Fund - Class Z

_; 1135 Baron Small Cap Fund - Retail Shares 2905 Prudential Jennison Natural Resources Fund, Inc. - Class Z
| | 2893 BlackRock Health Sciences Opportunities Poit - Inst Shares | | 6454 Prudential Mid Cap Value Fund - Class Z
|| 8522 BlackRock Mid Cap Value Opportunities Fund - [nst Shares [] 2290 RidgeWorth Mid-Cap Value Equity Fund - Class | Shares
[] 1448 BlackRock Natural Resources Trust - Institutional Shares [ ] 8119 Royce Opportunity Fund - Service Class B
[ | 8020 BlackRock Small Cap Growth Equity Portfolio - Inst Shares 8116 Royce Total Return Fund - Service Class

[] 1172 Cohen & Steers Realty Shares, Inc. [ | 8342 RS Smali Cap Growth Fund - Class A
[ 6474 Columbia Seligman Global Technology Fund - Class R4 [ ] 2670 RS Technology Fund - Class A
[] 6475 Columbia Small Cap Core Fund - Class R4 Shares [ ] 3824 Schwab Financial Services Fund™
[ ] 6477 Columbia Global Technology Growth Fund - Class R4 Shares [ ] 229 T.Rowe Price Science and Technology Fund - Advisor Class
] 457 CRMMd Cap Value Fund - Investor Shares | ] 8707 The Gabelli Small Cap Growth Fund - Class AAA

| L] 2584 Davis Financial Fund - Class A o 2656 USAA Precious Metals and Minerals Fund - Adviser Shares
[ ] 2495 Delaware Small Cap Value Fund - Class A | | 2798 Viclory Established Value Fund - Class A
2300 Diamond Hifl Small Cap Fund - Class A 695 Victory Integrity Small-Cap Value Fund - Class Y Shares

L]

1039 Deutsche Gold & Precious Metals Fund - Class A

1628

Viclory Small Company Opportunity Fund - Class A

8524 Deutsche Health and Wellness Fund - Class A

1256

Voya Global Resources Portfolio - Instifutional Class

|

1182 Eagle Small Cap Growth Fund - Class A

063

Voya index Plus MidCap Portfolio - Class |

1607 Fidelity® VIP Mid Cap Portfolio - Service Class 2

052

Voya Index Plus SmallCap Portfolio - Class |

(|

2667 Franklin Gold anc Precious Metals Fund - Advisor Class

081

Voya MidCap Opporlunities Portfolio - Class |

042

2928 Franklin Natural Resources Fund - Advisor Class 293 Voya Real Estate Fund - Class |
| LI 1240 Franklin Small Cap Value Fund - Advisor Class [ | 2716 Voya Russel™ Mid Cap Growth Index Portfolio - Class |
_:l 073 Franklin Small Cap Value VIP Fund - Class 2 1560 Voya Russell™ Mid Cap Index Portfolio - Class |
] 2830 Goldman Sachs Commodily Strategy Fund - Class A Shares 1563 Voya Russell™ Small Cap Index Paortfolio - Class |

3418 Invesco American Value Fund - Class R5

Voya Small Company Portfolio - Class |

3415 Invesco Endeavor Fund - Class R5

080

Voya SmallCap Opportunities Portfolio - Class |

[

2897 Invesco Energy Fund - Class R5

434

VY American Century Small-Mid Cap Value Portfolio - Initial Class

969 Invesca Global Health Care Fund - Investor Class

430

VY Baron Growth Portfolio - Initial Class

|

1964 Invesco Globat Real Estate Fund - Class RS

1613

VY Clarion Global Real Estate Portfolio - Institutional Class

1101 Invesco Mid Cap Core Equity Fund - Class R5

1217

VY Columbia Small Cap Value |l Portfolio - Initial Class

I

2827 Invesco Real Esfate Fund - Class Y

ERENI

780

VY JPMorgan Small Cap Core Equity Porffolio - Institutional Class

Page 12 of 16

Order # 175388 12/16/2016




Employer Name _City of McAlester

i

Product Name RetireFlex-SA

769 VY T. Rowe Price Infernational Stock Portfolio - Instilutional Class

SmalliMidiSpecialty
|| 2423 vy Mid Cap Growth Fund - Class Y 3101 Wells Fargo Advaniage Opgorlunity Fund - Administrator
[] 1043 Ivy Science and Technology Fund - Class Y 2027 Wells Fargo Advaniage Special Mid Cap Value - Admin C
[C] 6231 JPMorgan Small Cap Core Fund - Select Class Shares 2277 William Blair Small-Mid Cap Growth Fund - Class N Shares
[ ] 5057 Lazard U.S, Smali-Mid Cap Equily Portfolio - Open Shares
| ] 6234 MFS® Mid Cap Value Fund - Class R3 ) -
Global / International
3914 American Cenlury Investments International Opportunilies - Investor [ ] 8547 MainStay ICAP International Fund - Class R1
2227 American Funds Capital Income Builder® - Class R-4 | | 1173 Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. World Opporiunities Series - A
1004 American Funds Capital World Growlh & Income M - R-4 [ ] 8549 MFS® Global Equily Fund - Class R3
D4 573 American Funds EuroPacific Growth Fund - Class R-4 _:_ 3789 MFS® Infernational Diversification Fund - Class R3
. || 818 American Funds New Perspective Fund - Class R4 [ ] 9203 MFS® Infernational Growth Fund - Class R3
_& 3202 American Funds New World Fund® - Class R4 | | 9206 MFS® Inlernational Vaiue Fund - Class R3
|| 1445 American Funds SMALLCAP World Fund - Class R-4 [ ] 3987 MFS® International New Discovery Fund - Class R3
[] 3397 Artisan Global Opportunities Fund - Investor Class | | 1486 Morgan Stanley Institutional Fund Internaticnal Equily Portfolio - A
] 3896 Artisan Global Value Fund - Investor Class [ | 3265 Oppenheimer Global Opportunities Fund - Class Y
[ ] 1252 Artisan International Fund - Investor Shares | 1 3333 Oppenheimer International Growth Fund - Class Y
| ] 1822 BlackRock International Index Fund - Institutional Shares [ ] 1520 Oppenheimer International Small Company Fund - Class Y
[ ] 3204 BlackRock International Opperlunities Pt - Inst Shares [ ] 8732 Parametric Emerging Markets Fund - Investor Class
| | 211 Fidelity® VIP Overseas Portfolio - Service Class 2 [ ] 7959 Templeton Foreign Fund - Advisor Class
[ ] 1420 First Eagle Global Fund - Class A [] 6337 Templeton World Fund - Advisor Class
2686 Harbor International Fund - Investor Class [ ] 3647 The Hartford International Opportunities Fuad - Class R4
| | 8501 Ivy Asset Sirategy Fund - Class Y | 1 2470 Thornburg International Growth Fund - Class R4
|| 1967 vy International Core Equity Fund - Class Y [ 1 1551 Voya Interational Index Portfolio - Class |
[ ] 8659 JPMorgan Emerging Markets Equity Fund - Select Class | 1 2176 Voya Mulli-Manager International Small Cap Fund - Class |
| | 8663 JPMorgan International Value Fund - Select Class Shares L1 1123 VY JPMorgan Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio - Institutional Class
[ ] 5055 Lazard Internaticnal Equity Porifolio - Open Shares ___@Z_VY_O_pgup[lqi_@ei Global Portfolio - Initial Class

The Voya Fixed Account - 457/401 Il is a fixed interest investment option available through a group fixed annuity contract. The Voya Fixed Account
—457/401 || guarantees* a minimum rate of interest, which, once credited, becomes a part of the principal and the investment grows through
compound interest, All assets invested in this account, which are invested in Voya Retirement [nsurance and Annuity Company's general account,
are credited with a portfolic rate.

Special guidelines apply to the amount of assets that can be withdrawn from the Voya Fixed Account — 457/401 1| Account or transferred from the
Voya Fixed Account — 457/401 |l to other investment options in this program. For complete details please refer to the RetireFlex Information Booklet.

Based on the previously stated assumptions for your Plan, the credited interest rate for your contract is currently . 1.50 9%, The credited interest

rate is subject to change at any time, but is guaranteed not to fall below _1.00

contract guaranteed rate applies fo this preduct.

% through December 31, 20_18 . In addition, a minimum

*Guarantes is based on the claims paying ability of the Voya Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company.

Group annuities are long-term investments designed for retirement purposes. Early withdrawals from 401(a)/(k) plans prior to age 5972 will be subject
to a 10% premature distribution penalty tax, unless an exception applies. Money taken from the annuity will be taxed as ordinary income in the year
the money is distributed. Account values fluctuate with market conditions, and when surrendered the principal may be worth more or less than its
original amount invested. An annuity does not provide any additional tax deferral benefit, as tax deferral is provided by the plan. Annuities may be
subject to additional fees and expenses to which other tax-qualified funding vehicles may not be subject. However, an annuity does provide other
features and benefits, such as lifetime income payments and death benefits, which may be valuable to you.

You should consider the investment objectives, risks, and charges and expenses of the investment options offered through a retirement
plan, carefully before investing. The fund prospectuses and RetireFlex Information Booklet containing this and other information can be
obtained by contacting your local representative. Please read the information carefully before investing.

Page 13 of 16

Order # 175388 12/16/2016




Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA
PLAN SPECIFIC ELECTION SECTION

[ Forfeiture Account (check if applicable)

As the Plan offers one or more forms of contribution subject to vesting, an investment option is to be designated for the Forfeiture Account under the
Plan. The Forfeiture Account will be used to hold forfeiture Plan assets until written instructions are received from the Plan Sponsor. Amounts
transferred into the Plan's Forfeiture Account will be invested in _____\insert fund number and name),

IzrDefault Investment Option (check if applicable)

As the Plan includes a default enroliment provision or Plan Sponsor has selected Plan Asset Transfer option 1 (Non-Mapped) a default investment
option must be designated. | understand that | have the fiduciary responsibility to choose the appropriate "default” investment option, and thetefore
may choose from any of the investment options available under the Plan. [ designate the following to be the default investment option for the Plan.

™ Selected Target Date Family*
{"1Voya Fixed Account - 457/401 It

[ Other (list selected fund):

*| have selected a target date family as the "default” investment option and understand that all contributions into these funds will be based on each
Participant's age, not their anticipated retirement age as the investment is designed. Plan Participants will be allocated to the target date funds
assuming the standard retirement age of 85.

I understand that all contributions will be invested in this investment option until such time that a participant makes allocation changes and/or fund
transfers.

PLAN ASSET TRANSFER
Complete this section for existing transferring assefs

As the authorized fiduciaries of the Plan, we have designated to have the fransferred assets mapped into the following
investments at the Plan Level., We are also aware that the participant account balances will follow the same mapping strategy

| elect to invest the assets of the Plan transferred in & single sum in the manner specified below

i Option 1 (Non-Mapped); Invest transferred assets according to the participant's new investment election on file with Voya or, if
applicable, the Plan's Default Investment Option identified above.

O Option 2 (Mapped): Invest the transferred assets in each Investment Option listed below based upen the percentage of dollar
amount of assets transferred from each corresponding Existing Investment Option as indicated in the Plan's investment records
furnished by the current asset custodian as set forth below. Investment elections for future contributions are to be also based upon
the corresponding mapping instructions as noted below.

From Existing Investment Option (Current Asset Custodian) | To Replacem_erit-l_n\_lestn_lent Option

Fund Name Fund # | Fund Name

Page 14 of 16 Order # 1756388 12/16/2016



Employer Name _City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

From Existing Investment Option {Current Asset Custodian) | To Replacement Investment Option

Fund Name Fund # | Fund Name

« |f transferred assets are received prior to participant data, Voya will invest the transferred assets at a plan level according fo the
mapping instructions provided above in Option 2. The transferred assets will be invested as of the date the wire is received by Voya if a
plan level breakdown by fund is provided in good order. If no instructions are received, the transferred assets will be deposited into the
Voya Money Market Fund until a plan level breakdown is received and in good order.

+ Transferred assets will be alfocated to participant accounts on the same day that allocation instructions are received if instructions are
received in good order and prior to the close of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE").

« Any interest eamed pending allocation instructions will be posted to participant accounts on a pro-rata basis unless other instructions
are provided.

« Allocation instructions must be recejved in a secure manner and meet the Voya file format and good order requirements. Voya is
authorized fo obtain the required information from the prior provider or the authorized Plan Sponsor Representative.

« Instructions received in good order and after the close of the NYSE or on a non-business day will be processed the next business
day.

Page 15 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



Employer Name City of McAlester Product Name RetireFlex-SA

AUTHORIZED PLAN SPONSOR REPRESENTATIVE

Voya is hereby authorized to act upon the directions, instructions, and any information provided by any of the Authorized Plan Sponsor
Representatives listed below. These signatures will be accepted until Voya is notified of a change in writing. The following person(s) have the

authority under the Plan fo provide direction to Voya with respect to administration of the Plan including any benefit sensitive financial transactions
permitted under the Plan and requests for contribution refunds. In the event that a Plan Sponsor Representative is removed or replaced, Voya
must be notified immediately in writing - please contact Voya's designated Plan Manager to request the applicable administrative form to complete.

1. Nan%(pfease type or print) Tille
S -_5‘4“5/(&/{ 47//}-/ /'77»“?/74;2 e~
Agency, Division or Location Name and Code (if applicable) e Pz

Authorized Plan Sponsor Representatives Signature

2. | Name (please type or print) Title

Toni E"V.IAJ CFD

Agency, Division or Location Name and Code (if applicable)

Authorized Plan Sponsor Representatives Signature

m 5&0”‘-—'
3 | Name (please type or print) Title

She.la matdonad0 N COocdinctur ) Bene fibs Adman .

Agency, Division or Location Name and Code (if applicable)

Authorized Plan Sponsor Representatives Signature
Sheda mMalde nado

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, SIGNATURES AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| have read and understand this form and | am authorized to sign this form and any applicable Addendum on behalf of the Plan. The Effective
Date is the Employer's date of signature below.

] A copy of the Employer's 501{c)(3) letter is attached. Requirement is waived for any public education institution.

), »
Employer Signature O//é{( /(//Z/;’ */L Date (mm/ddlyyyy) 5 -/ -0/ 8

9 -
Signor's Name (Please fype or prini), SETos ,Z:;,,fde_fé Signor's Title /I;;f: ﬂf/ /’;::gafvf

This Section fo be filled out by Voya Product Management {prior to provision of form)

Master Group (if applicable) Link to Existing C- Client, If applicable list C-Client Number

Market Indicator 05 Product Code 40812

Product Manager DAC Margin Code See Fee Schedule Fixed Margin Code 900
Field Office Contact Name Field Office Clty Field Office Slate

This Section to be filled out by Voya Implementation Manager (after recelpt of form):
Plan Number(s) Same as Source

Plan Manager Implementation Manager
Trust Services Rep Accass Code
[ Voya Institutional Trust Company Custodial Agreement Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep3

[] Voya Institutional Trust Company Trust Agreement

Page 16 of 16 Order # 175388 12/16/2016



McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 item Number: 1

Department:

Dalton Carlton, Utility
Maintenance; Walt Herring,
Inframark; Robert Vaughan,

Prepared By: Infrastructure Solutions Account Code:
Date Prepared: March 7, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits:

Discussion and update on water projects and concerns.

Recommendation

Discussion.

Update on MCC Control Panels

Update on 20” water line bypass

Update on the raw water pumps at Lake McAlester to include 30 raw water line plant
Odor and Taste Concerns

Sl el ol

Initial Date
Department Head -
City Manager P. Stasiak /—/Zf 3-F-/&
A

Page 1 of 1



1 Y SR G ey S b R o Tmic— ¥
















Laneas ‘deus JnoAJojunldiiosap B 3l

pusboq R T S T ) de papnun










McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: 2
Community & Economic

Department: Development Account Code: N/A

Prepared By: Jayme Clifton, Director Budgeted Amount:  N/A

Date Prepared: March 6, 2018 Exhibits: 5

Subject

Consider and act upon, an ordinance amending McAlester City Code Chapter 62, Land Development, Planning,
Zoning and Subdivisions, Article IV, Division 2, Section 62-256, R-1B Single-family residential district,
Section 62-258, R-2 Two-family dwelling (duplex) district, and Section 62-259, R-3 Multiple-family dwelling
district; repealing all conflicting ordinances, and providing for severability.

Recommendation

Motion to act upon and approve the above ordinance amending McAlester City Code Chapter 62, Land
Development, Planning, Zoning and Subdivisions, Article IV, Division 2, Section 62-256, R-1B Single-family
residential district, Section 62-258, R-2 Two-family dwelling (duplex) district, and Section 62-259, R-3
Multiple-family dwelling district; repealing all conflicting ordinances, and providing for severability, and
authorizing the Mayor to sign the ordinance.

Discussion

McAlester has existing small lots that have been part of our development patterns, which predate the local
zoning code initially adopted in 1968, that fail to meet minimum lot size requirements. The lots were then
considered nonconformities and have been “grandfathered”. Many of the lots either continue to sit as vacant lots
or have existing structures on them that are unoccupied and in disrepair. In both of these cases, owners must
meet all zoning codes before they can build anything new or modify the existing structures—which creates
financial and practical challenges for redevelopment or renovation and impacts infill development. Challenges
are also present for small lots with occupied structures that may wish to market and sell the property.
At their February 20, 2018 regular meeting, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend to the
City Council to amend Chapter 62, Land Development Code, of the McAlester City Code by amending area
regulations, specifically the minimum lot areas of single-family residential lots, of Sections 62-256, 62-258 and
62-259. The recommendation is to amend the minimum lot area from 6,000 square feet to 4,500 square feet.
The following documents are attached for your reference:

1. Draft Ordinance to Amend Area Regulations in R-1B, R-2 and R-3 Districts.

2. Minutes from the February 20, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting.
3. Minutes from the January 16, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting
4
5

. Affidavit of Publication
Staff Report

Approved By

Initial Date
Department Head J. Clifton 03/06/2018
City Manager P. Stasiak 7&.’5 3--/F

Page 1 of 1




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA; AMENDING MCALESTER
CITY CODE CHAPTER 62, LAND DEVELOPMENT, PLANNING, ZONING AND
SUBDIVISIONS, ARTICLE 1V, DIVISION 2, SECTION 62-256, R-1B SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, SECTION 62-258, R-2 TWO-FAMILY DWELLING (DUPLEX)
DISTRICT, AND SECTION 62-259, R-3 MULTIPLE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT;
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.

L L L L R T R T e T e

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER,
OKLAHOMA, that:

SECTION 1, That Chapter 62, Land Development Code, of the McAlester City Code is hereby
amended by amending Sections 62-256, 62-258 and 62-259 pertaining to the minimum lot area
requirements for single-family residential dwellings as follows:

e Amend Sec. 62-256. R-1B single-family residential district; (d) Area regulations as follows:

(d) Area regulations. The following requirements shall apply to all permitted uses. All lots shall
comply with the specific lot definition and specific yard (front, side, rear) definition found in
section 62-1.
(1) Minimum lot area. The following requirements shall apply:
a. Minimum will be 6,609 4,500 square feet, except as specifically shown for churches; i.c.,
maximum percentage of possible building coverage, plus required off-street parking for that
maximum building coverage, equals the minimum lot area required. No dwelling or use shall
be constructed or commenced in an R-1B district which does not conform to the minimum
lot size requirements.

e  Amend Sec. 62-258. R-2 two-family dwelling (duplex) district; (d) Area regulations as follows:

(d) Area regulations.
(1) Minimum lot area and use intensity, The following requirements shall apply:
a. For each single-family dwelling and accessory building, there shall be a lot area of no less
than 66868 4,500 square feet.

e Amend Sec. 62-259. R-3 multiple-family dwelling district; (d) Area regulations as follows:

(d) Area regulations. The following requirements shall apply to all permitted uses. All lots shall
comply with the specific lot definition and yard definition found in section 62-1.
(1) Minimum lot area and use intensity. The following requirements shall apply:
a. There shall be a lot area of not less than 6;000 4,500 square feet for a single-family
dwelling, no less than 8,000 square feet for a two-family dwelling, and no less than 8,000
square feet plus an additional area of no less than 2,000 square feet for each family that is
more than two, occupying a dwelling.

SECTION 2. That all other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of any such conflict or inconsistency and all other ordinances not in conflict herewith
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any part or provision hereof
shall be adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such adjudication shall not affect or impair
any of the remaining parts or provisions liercof.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA ON
THIS DAY OF 2018.

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

ATTEST:
By:
John Browne, Mayor

Cora Middleton, City Clerk



Ordinance No. Page 2 of 2

Approved as to form and legality this day of 2018.

By:
William J, Ervin, City Attorney




McAlester Planning Commission Minutes D R r-——-q
Tuesday, February 20, 2018 Meeting + A J J
City Council Chambers ﬁr '
6:30 PM

Item 1 Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairman Emmons called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. Roll was called and a quorum
was present.

Commissioners Present: 8
Steve Cox Frank Phillips Tony Korp Carl Gullick
Mark Emmons Justin Few Karen Stobaugh

Commissioners Absent: 3
Primus Moore Chris Taylor Karl Scifres Susan Kanard

Susan Kanard was present at 6:31 P.M,, after roll was taken.

Item 2 Approval of the Minutes from January 16, 2018
A motion made by Commissioner Cox was seconded by Commissioner Phillips to approve
the January 16, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes. The vote was taken.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Cox, Gullick, Phillips, Korp, Kanard, Few, Stobaugh, Emmons
NAY: None

The motion carried.

GENERAL BUSINESS:

Item 3 Public Hearing: Discussion and action to amend Chapter 62, Land Development Code,
of the McAlester City Code by amending Sections 62-256 R-1B single-family
residential district, 62-258 R-2 two-family dwelling (duplex) district and 62-259 R-3
multiple-family dwelling district pertaining to the minimum lot area requirements for
single-family residential dwellings.

Chairman Emmons opened the item for public hearing at 6:31 P.M. Jayme Clifton
Community Development Director commenced to starting the discussion by stating that the
presented documentation was based off of the previous planning commission meeting. She
clarified that the suggested minimum lot size is 4500 square feet. The supported
documentation was referenced to show how many lots in McAlester, Ok that are considered
under 6000 square feet. Commissioner Emmons spoke on the problem of houses and
building being demolished or destroyed and the issue arising that the lot would then be
considered nonconforming leaving said lot vacant and in some cases becomes abandoned
and in abatement due to high grass and neglect. Mr. Emmons did however state that there
are a lot of interest in having smaller properties accompanied by smaller footprints on said
lots. Commissioner Korp clarified that by bringing the minimum lot size down to 4500
square feet it would bring 173 vacant lots into compliance and 58 would remain under the
4500 square feet lot size and in noncompliance. Mark Emmons stated in the case of smaller
lot sizes such as the remaining 58 that an applicant could easily bring a variance before the
Board of Adjustments to bring their lot into compliance if within reason. Emmons called for
public comment but none were present. Jayme Clifton clarified that the setbacks have not
been changed. The maximum lot coverage still applies. Frank Phillips asked if there was
anything preventing a property owner from placing a smaller home next to a homeowners
whose home was significantly larger. Mrs. Clifton stated that there was no such provision in
place as of presently and was not added into any such documentation for the subject and
purpose of this meeting. Commissioner Gullick inquired of Jayme Clifton of existing



Planning Commission Minutes from February 20,2018 Page 2 of 4

Ttem 4

structures being grandfathered in as far as setback requirements. Mrs. Clifton elucidated that
as long as the property owner did not make any new improvements over a certain amount.
However, if fire or any other such destruction came to the home destroying it. The home
would not be eligible for rebuild without getting a variance. It would be considered
noncompliant. Commissioner Gullick motioned to approve to amend the land development
code to bring the minimum lot size to 4500 square feet, Commissioner Cox seconded the
motion. Commissioner Emmons closed discussion on the matter at 6:40 P.M. Roll was
called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Tony Korp, Carl Gullick, Frank Phillips, Susan Kanard, Justin Few, Karen Stobaugh,
Mark Emmons, Steve Cox

NAY: None

The motion carried

Discussion and recommendation on an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code,
Chapter 22 Mobile Food Vendors, creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors, to
allow mobile and temporary food vending activities within the appropriate areas of the
city.

Chairman Emmons opened the item for public hearing at 6:41 P.M. Jayme Clifton presented
a draft ordinance put together based on previous meetings and recommendations. Currently,
food trucks are permitted to park and operate in commercially zoned parking lots with the
permission of the owner. They cannot sell from the street onto the sidewalk. This
recommended ordinance would allow for vendors to sell from the street onto the sidewalks
in commercially zoned areas. Also, this includes them parking in the parallel parking that
would allow for the trucks to park down town near Choctaw Ave along 2™ and 3" streets.
The potential downtown park would also be a good candidate to allow food truck parking in
that vicinity. She stated she is open to suggestion for improvements on this ordinance. Mrs.
Clifton went with a simpler aspect of this ordinance such as Broken Arrow and Bixby for
example. These two examples are not as complex as the Tulsa Food Truck Ordinance which
is what was presented previously to the Board in prior meetings. Jayme stated that this
would allow for entrepreneurship in the City of McAlester. If it is for a special event, the
vendor would not have to get the permit to operate. Permit license is for operation hours for
normal business days not including special events. A question was raised to Mrs. Clifton,
will they be required to have the million dollar policy whether they are a vendor or not? She
replied that this was based on other ordinances in Oklahoma have and that this would be
based on the Councils decision. Karen Stobaugh stated that she is required to have
insurance’s when she travels to different areas with her business. Permits, temporary license,
proof of insurance etc. was stated by Mrs. Stobaugh to be requirements for her. Mark
Emmons stated that he thought the parallel parking was a good idea, in terms of making it
easier to handle situations concerning current businesses and the food vendors, Mrs. Kanard
asked a question regarding the license requirements. Mrs. Clifton responded that license is a
requirement through the city. She did not have a price set for licensing yet but did suggest
that there be a seasonal license consisting of 180 days and an annual license. Price
suggestions include low costs such as $50 - $100 for annual and maybe 50% - 60% of the
annual price set for the seasonal. There was discussion of the distances between the brick
and mortar and the food truck parking. Tony Korp asked if we had a weekend license
incorporated. Jayme Clifton said not at this time. Mark Emmons stated that he thought the 2
tier license was a good idea to avoid any hassle. Vendors shall not be within 150 feet of any
special event without permission from the event organizer. Karen Stobaugh asked how many
food trucks can park on one block at a time. Mrs. Clifton did not include a restriction on this
matter. Zoning and parking was brought to the attention of the commissioners, Jayme
replied by stating the food trucks are a good idea to increase pedestrians to constitute



Planning Commission Minutes from February 20, 2018 Page 3 of 4
shopping among the brick and mortar buildings.

Christina Hermsmeyer, with McAlester Main Street, stated that her organization had quite a
few ideas for the farmers market in which Karen Stobaugh had previously suggested would
be a good place for mobile food vendors to congregate. Mark Emmons stated that this
ordinance will not be set in stone forever and it’s a starting point. He stated that Jayme
Clifton did very well creating this ordinance. Jayme Clifton stated the reasoning for the
sidewalk side service only was for the safety of the pedestrians to prevent them from
walking into the street to order. It should be served towards the sidewalk side unless at a
special event and permitted by the event organizer. Mr. Cox asked if this is addressed
towards everyday sales or for special events and Jayme spoke and stated that it was to
address everyday mobile food venders. Justin Few expressed his concern about parking and
asked if stall parking could be changed later from the parallel. Questions about electricity
were addressed. Jayme Clifton stated that there cannot be any obstruction of the sidewalks.
Karen Stobaugh stated that most mobile food vendors have generators.

Jeremy Beaver, a downtown business owner and property owner, stated he liked food trucks.
He continued by stating that he didn’t think creating a barrier for food vendors to come in
was a good idea. He specifically pointed out the million dollar insurance policy requirement
as a huge barrier and stated that it would hinder or detour a lot of the vendors.
Understandably, adding more restrictions to the ordinance would cause the vendors to
converse among themselves and would not actively bring business to McAlester if we have a
reputation of being difficult to get into. Mr. Beaver also addressed parking and agreed with
the presented ordinance. The $500.00 fine was a concern to him and stated that it should be
easier to obtain the license for the vendors. First time offenders should get a warning. Jayme
Clifton said the penalty is the same listed in Chapter 1 for all penalties of a violation but that
it could be reviewed. The commissary was addressed and explained to him as to ensure that
mobile food vendors cannot stay for extended periods of time. The health department
requires them to go back to their main location for certain amounts of time. He stated that
the vendors would encourage the loft apartment living and residential. Cully Stevens, a
downtown property owner, was also in favor of the ordinance. He addressed
entrepreneurship in our community. He stated most of younger generations will not return
after college to McAlester because there isn’t anything going on downtown and requested to
make changes that did create hurdles for people to start. The business and vendors enjoy
going to places that aren’t difficult to start. Claremore, OK is the only city that asked for
proof of insurance to make sure the truck itself had insurance. His fear is the new rules are so
restrictive that we will not see any growth and encouraged the commissioners to design it so
it fostered growth.

Rashonda Hutchings, Choctaw Nation’s Small Business Advisor, spoke as well. Mrs,
Hutchings stated that she is housed out of Kiamichi Technology Center. KTC and Poteau’s
culinary program is wanting to buy a food truck along with a few other individuals
associated with the program. They are all waiting on this ordinance to be created and pass to
be able to start their businesses. McAlester does not offer a variety of foods such as Korean
or Tai. She stated that these would be sales taxes generated for this community. Susan
Kanard asked how this food would be eaten standing up. Karen Stobaugh replied and stated
that the food presentation is in such a way to make it easy to consume on the go. Some
people get it to go as well or find a place to be seated as well such as benches or tables. Kirk
Ridenour stated he is sympathetic to the foresight needed for this ordinance, Downtowns are
adaptable and we can’t foresee every problem at first. We can always come back and
address problems as they arise, Karen Stobaugh expressed interest in having her own truck
in front of her business, An idea to serve her customers as a quick solution instead of only
offering a sit down environment. Mrs. Clifton replied that new language would need to be



Planning Commission Minutes from February 20, 2018 Page 4 of 4

Item 5

Ttem 6

Item 7

Item 8

incorporated for where her stores located. Christina Hermsmeyer stated that they would be
able to mark off a few parking spots to accommodate that idea.

Mark Emmons asked if there was any additional discussion. Karen Stobaugh stated that we
could approve this and address what comes up later if any does. Justin Few stated as well
that if the parking and such becomes an issue we can address it as it comes. Karen Stobaugh
stated that if the vendors are serious about their business, they will have general liability
insurance and other supporting documentation at time of application. Mark Emmons
concurred with the others and stated that we can address upcoming issues as they arise.
Steve Cox stated that they should comply with our application process, the health
department and the liability insurance requirements. Jayme Clifton suggested changes in the
language to be similar to the recently adopted sidewalk café permits. Justin Few agreed the
insurance requirements needed modification. Commissioner Few motioned to approve the
proposed Mobile Food Vendors ordinance with amendment to show proof of liability
insurance. Frank Phillips seconded the motion. Commissioner Emmons closed discussion on
the matter at 7:51 P.M. Roll was called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Few, Stobaugh, Emmons, Cox, Korp, Gullick, Phillips, Kanard
NAY: None

The motion carried.

New Business
There was no new business.

Staff Report

Comprehensive Plan Progress.

Jayme Clifton updated the Commission on progress of the comprehensive plan, presenting
information on how well the stakeholder meetings and public meetings went. She stated that
Guernsey would advise of the next step after they took all the input and information
collected and incorporated them into the project.

Commission Reports
Mark Emmons reminded all commissioners up for reappointment they would need to
resubmit biography information.

Adjournment
A motion made by Commissioner Gullick was seconded by Commissioner Cox to adjourn
the meeting at 7:55 p.m. There was no objection.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Kanard, Few, Emmons, Cox, Korp, Gullick, Phillips, Stobaugh
NAY: None

The motion carried.

Approved:

Planning Commission Chairman Date



McAlester Planning Commission Minutes
Tuesday, January 16, 2018 Meeting
City Council Chambers

6:30 PM
Item 1 Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairman Primus called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. Roll was called and a quorum was
present.
Commissioners Present: 7
Steve Cox Frank Phillips Tony Korp Susan Kanard
Primus Moore Justin Few Chris Taylor
Commissioners Absent: 4
Karen Stobaugh Carl Gullick Karl Scifres Mark Emmons
Item 2 Approval of the Minutes from November 21,2017
A motion made by Commissioner Taylor was seconded by Commissioner Cox to approve
the November 21, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes. The vote was taken.
The vote was 7-0
AYE: Few, Phillips, Korp, Kanard, Moore, Cox, Taylor
NAY: None
The motion carried.
Item 3 Discussion and recommendation on 2018 Planning Commission re-appointments.
-Name_ . ; o Term Expiration
_Primus Moore, Vice Chairman May 31,2018
Carl Gullick _ May 31,2018
Karl Scifres ~May 31,2018
Karen Stobaugh ___| May 31,2018
GENERAL BUSINESS:
Item 4 Public Hearing: Discussion and action on P. C. #411, a request to rezone the property

described below from I-2 Heavy Industrial District and/or A-1 Agriculture District to
C-5 Highway Commercial and Commercial Recreation District. LEGAL: A Tract of
land in Block 15, in Connally Addition, to the City of McAlester, Pittsburg County,
State of Oklahoma and A Tract of land in Lot 9 in Townsite Addition No. 5 to
Pittsburg County State of Oklahoma. LOCATION: 1617 E Electric Avenue, and a
portion of 1619 E Electric Avenue, all in McAlester, Oklahoma

Chairman Moore opened the item for public hearing at 6:34 P.M. Jayme Clifton,
Community Development Director, noted the specific tracts of land and their addresses
described above. She stated the multiple businesses that are already present on the property.
Mrs. Clifton explained the intentions for this property and why the rezoning is necessary.
She spoke to Joe Irvin on 1/16/18 and he replied that there was nothing prohibiting the
rezoning. Samantha Perry, Planning Tech added that the only inquiry that had been
presented to the Community Development Department was from the neighboring land
owner to inquire if there would be any changes to his personal property, it was clarified that
there would be none. Commissioner Cox motioned to approve the rezoning of P.C. #411, A
request to rezone the property from I-2 Heavy Industrial District and/or A-1 Agriculture
District to C-5 Highway Commercial and Commercial Recreation District. Chris Taylor



Planning Commission Minutes from January 16, 2018 Page2 of 2

Item S

Item 6

Item 7

Item 8

Item 9

second the motion. Commissioner Moore closed discussion on the matter at 6:39 P.M. Roll
was called.

The vote was 7-0

AYE: Few, Phillips, Korp, Kanard, Moore, Cox, Taylor
NAY: None

The motion carried.

Discussion of amendments to arca rcgulations of Section 62-256 R-1B Single-family
residential district inclusive of, but not limited to, minimum lot area, minimum lot
frontage, maximum percentage of coverage, and yard setbacks. No Action Requested.

Chairman Moore opened the item for public hearing at 6:40 P.M. Jayme Clifton presented
the notion of changing the minimum lot sizes for the R-1B Single-family residential district.
In changing the lot sizes, Mrs. Clifton stated that this would help with brining non-
conforming lots into conforming. It would make it possible for land owners in city limits to
be able to develop new construction on their lots and still be conforming to the city code of
ordinance. She presented spreadsheets with supporting data showing the amounts of vacant
lots and their lot sizes, that are in nonconforming state as of right now. Vacant lots that are
owned by the city and county where excluded from these reports. Lynn Edwards Realtor,
with Century 21/Shirley Donaldson spoke in favor of making lot size requirements smaller
to accommodate owners of the empty lots so they may rebuild a conforming structure.
Shirley reiterated that it is almost impossible to sell nonconforming homes because loan
companies and insurance companies will not qualify them due to not being able to rebuild.

There was no motion needed at this time.

New Business
There was no new business.

Staff Report

Jayme Clifton stated February 1, 2018 a Stakeholder Meeting will be held at City Ilall.
There are about 8 different groups with about 8 people in each group. She also spoke about
Meshec and the conversion of our CAD systems into the GIS systems to benefit the
Guernsey group and their work towards the completion of the Comprehensive Plan. There
was discussion concerning the street scape and needed improvements.

Commission Reports
There was no report

Adjournment
A motion made by Commissioner Phillips was seconded by Commissioner Korp to adjourn
the meeting at 7:25 p.m. There was no objection.

The vote was 6-0
AYL: Phillips, Few, Moore, Korp, Kanard, Cox
NAY: None
Chris Taylor stepped out
The motion carried.
Approved:

/M J&tfmﬂ/ﬂf—-—\‘g’7’/£/

Phnmng Commission Chairman Date




AFFP
28 E Washington ZON ORD $49.20

Affidavit of Publication

STATE OF OKLAHOMA}  gg
COUNTY OF PITTSBURG }

I, Cindi Irvin, of lawful age, being duly sworn upon oath,
deposes and says that | am the authorized representative of
McAlester News-Capital, a daily publication that is a "legal
newspaper" as that phrase is defined in 25 O.S. § 106, as
amended to date, for the city of McAlester, for the county of
Pittsburg, in the State of Oklahoma. The attachment hereto
contains a true and correct copy of what was published in the
regular edition of said newspaper, and not in a supplement, in
consecutive issues on the following dates:

February 06, 2018

That said newspaper was regularly issued and circulated
on those dates.

SIGNED:
“ %
&M“%—f\-

Sales Representative

Subscribed to and sworn to me this 6th day of February
2018.

YUty ©. Wurtlat

Phyllis Df\lyurlbut, Notary, Pittsburg County, Oklahoma

My commission expires: March 26, 2021
iq) PHYLLS D. HURLBUT

Nalary Publle i and far s
Sl:t\l Stale of Oklahoma
\bu' < Commilssion #17002926
My Commission expires 3/26/2081

S g

03100051 00019984

MCALESTER, CITY OF (L!)
PO Box 578
MCALESTER, OK 74502

McAlester

News-Capital

(Published in the McAlester News-Capital on February 6th, 2018.)

CITY OF McALESTER
NOTICE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED ZONING
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to all property owners and residents of the City
of McAlester, that a Public Hearing will be held before the McAlester Planning
Commission on Tuesday, February 20, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. concerning an
ordinance amending the McAlester City Code, Article IV. Zoning Districts and
District Regulations; Division 2. Specific Districts, to modify Section 62-256 R-I
B single-family residential district (d) Area regulations (1) minimum lot area;
Section 62-258 R-2 two family dwelling (duplex) district (d) Area regulations (1)
minimum lot area and use inlensity; Section 62-259. R-3 multiple-family
dwelling district (d) area regulations (1) minimum lot area end use intensily.
Specifically, to amend the minimum lot area for single-family residential from
6,000 square feet to 4,500 square feet.

Any person wishing to appear in support or opposition to the proposed Zoning
Ordinance Regulation Amendment may do so in the Council Chambers,
Municipal Building, located at 28 E. Washington Avenue, McAlester,
Oklahoma, at the above date and time.

FURTHER NOTICE (S HEREBY GIVEN to all property owners and residents
of the City of McAlester, that if the Tuesday, February 20, 2018 Planning
Commission meeting is canceled due to any reason such as but not limited to
adverse weather conditions, lack of a quorum, etc.; the February 20th Pianning
Commission Meeting will be adjourned to be continued to a new specific date
and time as announced at the February 20th meseting to conduct the above
Public Hearing, or the Public Hearing will automatically be rescheduled and
placed on the agenda for the Tuesday, March 20, 2018 McAlester Planning
Commission meeting at 6:30 p.m.

Date: 2/2/18
/S/Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Page 6 of 43



U-'eSter , City of McAlester

THE. CReny n Community Development
E M
| E E'\?'CC:AEN ¥ & Washington » P.O. Box 578 s McAlester, OK 74502 2. (918) 423-9300

PLANNING COMMISSION
DISCUSSION OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT- AREA REGULATIONS
JANUARY 16, 2018

To: McAlester Planning & Zoning Commission
From: Jayme Clifton, Community Development Director
Date: January 10,2018

General Description:

Discussion of amendments to area regulations of Section 62-256 R-1B Single-family residential district
inclusive of, but not limited to, minimum lot area, minimum lot frontage, maximum percentage of
coverage, and yard setbacks. Guidance is requested from the Planning Commission. No action is
requested.

Background Information:

Staff and the Planning Commission received reports at previous meetings that through due diligence
requirements in the real estate and lending industries, zoning and area regulations are increasingly
relevant factors in the local housing market and of current issue within our community—more specifically
the nonconforming lots smaller than the minimum lot area of 6,000 square feet. Lot availability is then an
issue and may affect how our community can be developed.

Staft began gathering property information and analyzing data for lots without structures and lots with
residential structures. Property information was gathered only for lots within North McAlester and South
McAlester, omitting all other subdivisions, and found the following;:

Vacant Lots, Omitting All City-owned & County-owned

436 Number of Parcels Under 6,000 Sq. Ft. (Count)
4,306 Average Sq. Ft. of those Parcels (Mean/Average)
4,750 Median Sq. Ft. of those Parcels (Median)

189 Number of Parcels between 5,999-5,000 Sq. Ft.

244 Number of Parcels between 5,999-4,500 Sq. Ft.
Table 1. Vacant Lots, North McAlester & South McAlester

Table 1 includes all vacant lots within North McAlester and South McAlester that have had all city-
owned and/or county-owned lots excluded. This was done by utilizing search engines provided by the
county assessor’s office, and selecting the criteria for vacant lots only within 1 square foot to 5,999 square
feet.

As shown in the table there are approximately 436 lots that are under the minimum lot size requirement of
6,000 square feet. Data has been calculated for mean and median square footage of those 436 lots. In
addition, counts of lots within the ranges of 5,999-6000 square feet and 5,999 to 4,500 square feet have
been provided. Those ranges were based on previous Planning Commission discussions of possibly
amending the minimum lots sizes to either 5,000 square feet or 4,500 square feet. As can be seen in
Table 1, if such an amendment was to occur for either 5,000 square feet or 4,500 square feet, then

Jayme Clifton - Director Samantha Perry - Executive Assistant/Planning Tech Tabetha Howell - Code Enforcement
Extension 4951 Extension 4984 Extension 4986
George Estrada - Building/Plumbing/Electiical Inspector Jim Roberts - Electrical/Mechanical Inspector Kelby Adams - Mechanical Inspector

Extension 4985 Extension 4987 Extension 4987



PLANNING COMMISSION Page 2 of 2
STAFF REPORT - Area Regulations
January 16, 2018

anywhere from 43% to 56% of vacant lots would then become conforming lots and available for future
development.

Residential Lots
216 Number of Parcels Under 6,000 Sq. Ft. (Count)
4796 Average Sq. Ft. of those Parcels (Mean/Average)
5000 Median Sq. Ft. of those Parcels (Median)
130 Number of Parcels between 5,999-5,000 Sq. Ft.
159 Number of Parcels between 5,999-4,500 Sq. Ft.

Table 2. Residential Lots, North McAlester & South McAlester

Table 2 includes all lots with residential structures reported to be on the lots, and all within North
McAlester and South McAlester. Again, this was done by utilizing search engines provided by the county
assessor’s office, and selecting the criteria for lots with residential building types only and having 1
square foot to 5,999 square feet of land.

There are approximately 216 lots reported with residential structures that are under the minimum lot size
requirement of 6,000 square feet. Data has been also been calculated for mean and median square footage.
Counts of lots within the ranges of 5,999-6000 square feet and 5,999 to 4,500 square feet have also been
provided. In summary, with an amendment anywhere from 60% to 74% of residential lots would then
convert to conforming lots.

Vacant Lots Residential Lots

Qty of Min Max Qty of Min Max

Lots Size Size Lots Size Size
96 5500 5999 64 5500 5999
93 5000 5499 66 5000 5499
52 4500 4999 28 4500 4999
34 4000 4499 15 4000 4499
50 3500 3999 15 3500 3999
43 3000 3499 14 3000 3499
16 2500 2999 5 2500 2999
27 2000 2499 6 2000 2499
6 1500 1999 2 1500 1999
8 1000 1499 0 1000 1499
8 500 999 1 500 999
3 0 500 0 0 500

436 | Total 216 | Total

Table 3. Vacant Lots by Range Table 4. Residential Lots by Range

Tables 3 and 4 have been included to provide the Planning Commission an improved view of lots by a
series of ranges in square footage so as to assess an appropriate minimum lot size and if any amendments
should be made. Staff requests direction in any amendments to the zoning code in regard to area
regulations including, but not limited to, minimum lot area, minimum lot frontage, maximum percentage
of coverage, and yard setbacks.



McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: 3
Community & Economic

Department: Development Account Code: N/A

Prepared By: Jayme Clifton, Director Budgeted Amount: N/A

Date Prepared: March 6, 2018 Exhibits: 3

Consider and act upon, an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Businesses, of the McAlester City Code by creating
Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors; amending Chapter 48, Fees, Charges and Service Rates, creating Article
V111, Mobile Food Vendors; repealing all conflicting ordinances, and providing for severability.

Recommendation

Motion to act upon and approve the above ordinance amending Chapter 22, Businesses, of the McAlester City
Code by creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors; amending Chapter 48, Fees, Charges and Service Rates,
by creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors, repealing all conflicting ordinances, providing for severability,
and authorizing the Mayor to sign the ordinance.

Discussion

The purpose of this article is to provide opportunity for mobile food vendors while regulating their activities in
order to protect public health, safety, and welfare. The article may accommodate commercial uses in
appropriate areas of the city that generally promote an active and social pedestrian environment.

The topic of mobile food vending had been brought before the McAlester Planning Commission in late 2015.
Staff developed a draft ordinance, as previously requested. The Planning Commission met on February 20, 2018
and voted unanimously to recommend the Mobile Food Vending ordinance be approved.

The following documents are attached for your reference:
1. Draft Ordinance for Mobile Food Vendors.
2. Minutes from the February 20, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting.
3. Agendas and minutes from Planning Commission Meetings on September 15, 2015, October 20, 2015
and November 17, 2015.

Approved By

Initial Date
Department Head J. Clifton h 03/06/2018
City Manager P. Stasiak /9( %) 3-5-18
Ve

Page 1 of 1



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 22, BUSINESSES, OF THE McALESTER CITY
CODE, CREATING ARTICLE VIII, MOBILE FOOD VENDORS; AMENDING CHAPTER 48,
FEES, CHARGES AND SERVICE RATES, CREATING ARTICLE VIII, MOBILE FOOD
VENDORS; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, AND PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY.

st sk s ok ok ook ok ok ok ok R o ok ok sk ok ok ko sk ok o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok o o o o ok ok ok 3 R sk ok s ok ok o o e o s ok e ok o ok o o ok ok ook ok ok ok ook sk ok ok ok sksk ko

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER,
OKLAHOMA, that

SECTION 1. That Chapter 22, Businesses, of the McAlester City Code is hereby amended to create
Article VII1, Mobile Food Vendors to read as follows:

22-278. Definitions.

The following words and phrases. when used in this article. shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in this section. except where the context ¢learly indicates a different meaning:

Conumissary means an approved facility that provides support services for specific required

functions of a mobile l'und V(.I‘ldl:}r Any lood est .|l1l|shmenl pa..nmllu] or llcemed hy a n,gulalory

mh erwise upnm\rctl facility in which l(md containers or surmlm are k-..u! hxu:dlt.d, prepared,
packaged or stored can be considered a commissary.

Far Hers markef means the designated area |n which Iarm-..rs EIOWETS OF nrmhicer\ from a defined
g ; hazardous farm lood
products and whole sheII eggs to the [mhhc A portion of the raw food ingredients used by the
individual vendor 1o produce a product must have been grown or raised by the vendor. This
definition does not include individual farmers who grow and sell flowers. unprocessed fruit.
vegetables, produce or plants grown on the property where the seller is located.

Food means all items designed for human consumption. including but not limited 1o ice cream,
candy. gum. popeorn. hotdogs. sandwiches, peanuts, soft drinks. colfee and dairy products.

Mobile vendor means an outdoor seller, as defined herein. and any business operator or vendor who
conducts business from or through use ol a vehicle as defined herein.

Public way means a street, avenue, boulevard. lane, sidewalk or thoroughfare open or platted for
public use.

Special events means an event whether indoors or outdoors. that i1s held on public property or
streets. non-profit organization property. or non-residential property that can reasonably be
expected 1o cause a public gathering not part of the normal course of business at the location. It
may also be defined as any event were a large number of people are brought together to watch or
namctpa e A nuhllc event such as a ballgame. parade or_ festival lhdl I‘Lgl.lll‘i.s transportation

lehicle means a push cart, a trailer. a three-wheeled pedal carrier or like device or a motorized
vehicle that is required to be registered and licensed by the Motor Vehicle Division of the Oklahoma
Tax Commission,

22-279. Purpose. )
The purpose of this article is to regulate mobile and temporary food vending activities in order to

protect public health, safety. and welfare, while accommodating commercial uses that generally
promote an active and social pedesirian environment within the appropriate areas of the ¢ity.

22-280. Mobile Food Vendor License Required,
It shall be unlawful and an offense for a mobile food vendor 1o engage in sales or to atempl to

engage in sales within the City except when licensed as a mobile food vendor in compliance with
the provisions of this chapter. 1t shall be the duty of any person to whom a license is issued under
this article to post the same in a secure manner in some parl of his mobile food vending vehicle

where the license may be readily seen at all times. Licenses issued under this article shall be non-
transferable.




Ordinance No. Page 2 of 4

22-281. Exemptions.
The following activities, businesses and/or persons. as such are commonly known. shall be exempt

from coverage of this chapter. but this exemption shall not be construed to limit or restrict the
application of other laws and regulations pertaining to such activities. businesses and/or persons:

(a) Traditional neighborhood lemonade stands;

(b) Stands used 1o sell or distribute flowers. [ruil. vegetables, produce or plants grown on the
property where the stand is located:

(¢) Delivery or distribution of food. goods or products ordered or purchased by customers from a
source or_point_of sale other than a mobile vehicle operated lor the purpose of soliciting
customers while traveling or while located on City streels or properiy:

(d) Delivery or distribution of food by or for any not-for-profit organization. governmental agency
or other charitable organization, including without limitation Meals on Wheels and the Food
Bank.

(e) Special events that have been permitted and approved by the city

(f) Farmers markets

22-282. Mobile Food Vendor License

() Application Reguirements. Applicants for a mobile food vendor license shall file a verified
application. which shall contain the lollowing information:

€] Ihc name or names. hlrlh date. snual semrm number. and dgdrca.b (street and malllng,

g_'pomtcu emny,
(2)  Vehicle license number and description ol all vehicles from which the applicant proposes to

conduct business:
(3)  Description of the general type of food or non-food ilems Lo be sold.
(4)  The identity of the commissary. if applicable. its proprietor. its street and mailing address

and phone number;
(5) A document from the county health departument. certifving that the nmhilc \'Llld ing business

(6) Documentation showing the applicant is a vendor registered with the state 'Idx commission,
or other proof that sales tax has been or is being paid on the items sold or to be sold; or prool
that the applicant or the applicant’s employer is exempt from the payment of sales tax.

(7y  Acertificate of adequate liability insurance coverage.

(8) A signed statement by the applicant. certifying that the mobile food vendor agrees Lo abide
by all applicable laws and ordinances ol the city and to indemnify and hold the city harmless
from any and all liability arising out of the use or condition of premises or operation of the
mobile food vending business.

(9) Ifapplicable. a writien notarized statement by the legal owner of any private land upon which
any_ouldoor business operation shall be located authorizing the use of the land for the

purposes desired by the applicant

(b) Fees. Charges shall be assessed for licenses and shall be paid to the city treasurer as provided
in chapter 48. In the event that the licensce shall cease operation. either voluntarily or involuntarily
before the end of the period for which a license issued. no part of the license fee shall be refunded.

(¢) Expiration of license. A license issued under this chapter shall expire June 30 each
for a seasonal license which shall expire 180 days from the date of issuance.

22-283. llcalth Regulations

county health dcpamncm.

22-284. Mobile Food Vendor Standards and Restrictions
All mobile vendors licensed under this chapter shall conform to the following standards unless
otherwise approved by the council

(a) Specified Locations of Operations.

(1) Maobile food vendors may sell or vend {rom paved open public ways within commercial
zoned areas. including C-1. C-2. C-3. C-4 or C-5 zoning districts, or within industrial




Ordinance No. Page 3 of 4

zoned areas. including -1 or 1-2 districts. exeepl the specilied areas included in this

article.

All_mobile lood vendors shall be located on paved surfaces at all times. unless

expressl quired by the city. Mobile vending trucks or trailers may occupy
arallel parking spaces within commercial or industrial zoned areas. Al any given time,

@

~—

©)

private property with the written permission of the property owner of record.

(4) Mobile food vendors shall not sell or vend in residentially zoned districts, except public
parks with the expressed approval by the city. Mobile food vendors shall be limited to
hard-surfaced areas of public parks.

(5) Mobile food vendors shall not sell or vend within one hundred fifty feet (150°) of any
city authorized special event. except with writlen perimission by the special event
organizer or permitiee indicating that they waive the requirement of the affected area
during their special event hours of operation.

(b) Return for compliance. Mobile food vendors must physically return to their commissaries daily
for Health Department compliance. includingbut_not limited to wastewater disposal,

maintenance. cleaning, etc.

(¢) Compliance with traffic regulations. No_mobile food vendor shall conduct business so as to
violate any ordinance of the city regulating traflic and rights-of-way. as now in effect or
hereafter amended.

(d) Obstruction Prohibited. No mobile vendor shall obstruet the passage of a sidewalk. streel,
avenue. alley or any other public place in a way that impedes pedestrian or vehicle circulation
or causes a traffic hazard.

(e) Street side service prohibited. No customer shall be served on the street side of the mobile food
vendor vehicle. All service must be on the curb side when the mobile unit is on or abutting a

public street.

() Seating. Absolutely no seating shall be provided or permitted on any sidewalk. street. or public
way as part ol a mobile food vendor business as contemplated in this article.

(g) Drive thrus. No drive thru or drive by customer service shall be provided or permitied as part
ol a mobile vendor business as contemplated in this article.

(h) Garbage receptacles. All mobile food vendors shall provide garbage receptacles for customer
use and shall be responsible for the removal of all refuse. including but not limited to. the public
way_surrounding his or_her vehicle of all debris, trash and litter generated by the vendor's
business activities.

(i) Fire extingushers. All mobile food vendors preparing food by cooking, fryving. or other means
shall be equipped with at least one (1) appropriately rated fire extinguisher,

22-285. Violations and revocation.

(a) Any person who violates any provision of this article or who applies for a permit with the intent
Lo transfer. or attempt to transfer. the permit shall be guilty of an offense and. upon convietion
thereof. shall be punished by a line not exceeding $300.00, plus costs. ach day of violation

(b) The city shall reserve the right to immediately revoke. with cause. anv permitied mobile food
vendor that does not comply with the regulations of this article. Those mobile food vendors
which create public nuisances or hazards to the general welfare shall have their permit
temporarily or permanently revoked.

SECTION 2. That Chapter 48, Fees, Charges and Service Rates, of the McAlester City Code is
hereby amended to create Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors to read as follows:

Code Description Amount
Section

Chapter 22. Businesses
Article VIII. Mobile Food Vendors
22-282 Mobile Food Vendor License
Annual, per year $ 35.00
Seasonal. per 180-days $20.00




Ordinance No. Page 4 of 4

SECTION 3. That all other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of any such conflict or inconsistency and all other ordinances not in conflict herewith
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any part or provision hereof
shall be adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such adjudication shall not affect or impair
any of the remaining parts or provisions hereof.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA on
THIS DAY OF 2018.

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

ATTEST:
By:
John Browne, Mayor

Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Approved as to form and legality this day of 2018.

By:
William J, Ervin, City Attorney




McAlester Planning Commission Minutes (B |
Tuesday, February 20, 2018 Meeting ). g A /‘
City Council Chambers ! I
6:30 PM
Item 1 Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairman Emmons called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. Roll was called and a quorum
was present.
Commissioners Present: 8
Steve Cox Frank Phillips Tony Korp Car! Gullick
Mark Emmons Justin Few Karen Stobaugh
Commissioners Absent: 3
Primus Moore Chris Taylor Karl Scifres Susan Kanard
Susan Kanard was present at 6:31 P.M., after roll was taken.
Ttem 2 Approval of the Minutes from January 16,2018
A motion made by Commissioner Cox was seconded by Commissioner Phillips to approve
the January 16, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes. The vote was taken.
The vote was 8-0
AYE: Cox, Gullick, Phillips, Korp, Kanard, Few, Stobaugh, Emmons
NAY: None
The motion carried.
GENERAL BUSINESS:
Item 3 Public Hearing: Discussion and action to amend Chapter 62, Land Development Code,

of the McAlester City Code by amending Sections 62-256 R-1B single-family
residential district, 62-258 R-2 two-family dwelling (duplex) district and 62-259 R-3
multiple-family dwelling district pertaining to the minimum lot area requirements for
single-family residential dwellings.

Chairman Emmons opened the item for public hearing at 6:31 P.M. Jayme Clifton
Comununity Development Director commenced to starting the discussion by stating that the
presented documentation was based off of the previous planning commission meeting. She
clarified that the suggested minimum lot size is 4500 square feet. The supported
documentation was referenced to show how many lots in McAlester, Ok that are considered
under 6000 square feet. Commissioner Emmons spoke on the problem of houses and
building being demolished or destroyed and the issue arising that the lot would then be
considered nonconforming leaving said lot vacant and in some cases becomes abandoned
and in abatement due to high grass and neglect. Mr. Emmons did however state that there
are a lot of interest in having smaller properties accompanied by smaller footprints on said
lots. Commissioner Korp clarified that by bringing the minimum lot size down to 4500
square feet it would bring 173 vacant lots into compliance and 58 would remain under the
4500 square feet lot size and in noncompliance. Mark Emmons stated in the case of smaller
lot sizes such as the remaining 58 that an applicant could easily bring a variance before the
Board of Adjustments to bring their lot into compliance if within reason. Emmons called for
public comment but none were present. Jayme Clifton clarified that the setbacks have not
been changed. The maximum lot coverage still applies. Frank Phillips asked if there was
anything preventing a property owner from placing a smaller home next to a homeowners
whose home was significantly larger. Mrs. Clifton stated that there was no such provision in
place as of presently and was not added into any such documentation for the subject and
purpose of this meeting. Commissioner Gullick inquired of Jayme Clifton of existing

i |

d



Planning Commission Minutes from February 20, 2018 Page 2 of 4

Ttem 4

structures being grandfathered in as far as setback requirements. Mrs. Clifton elucidated that
as long as the property owner did not make any new improvements over a certain amount.
However, if fire or any other such destruction came to the home destroying it. The home
would not be eligible for rebuild without getting a variance. It would be considered
noncompliant. Commissioner Gullick motioned to approve to amend the land development
code to bring the minimum lot size to 4500 square feet, Commissioner Cox seconded the
motion. Commissioner Emmons closed discussion on the matter at 6:40 P.M. Roll was
called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Tony Korp, Carl Gullick, Frank Phillips, Susan Kanard, Justin Few, Karen Stobaugh,
Mark Emmons, Steve Cox

NAY: None

The motion carried

Discussion and recommendation on an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code,
Chapter 22 Mobile Food Vendors, creating Article VIII, Mobile Food Vendors, to
allow mobile and temporary food vending activities within the appropriate areas of the
city.

Chairman Emmons opened the item for public hearing at 6:41 P.M. Jayme Clifton presented
a draft ordinance put together based on previous meetings and recommendations. Currently,
food trucks are permitted to park and operate in commercially zoned parking lots with the
permission of the owner. They cannot sell from the street onto the sidewalk. This
recommended ordinance would allow for vendors to sell from the street onto the sidewalks
in commercially zoned areas. Also, this includes them parking in the parallel parking that
would allow for the trucks to park down town near Choctaw Ave along 2™ and 3" streets.
The potential downtown park would also be a good candidate to allow food truck parking in
that vicinity. She stated she is open to suggestion for improvements on this ordinance. Mrs.
Clifton went with a simpler aspect of this ordinance such as Broken Arrow and Bixby for
example. These two examples are not as complex as the Tulsa Food Truck Ordinance which
is what was presented previously to the Board in prior meetings. Jayme stated that this
would allow for entrepreneurship in the City of McAlester. If it is for a special event, the
vendor would not have to get the permit to operate. Permit license is for operation hours for
normal business days not including special events. A question was raised to Mrs, Clifton,
will they be required to have the million dollar policy whether they are a vendor or not? She
replied that this was based on other ordinances in Oklahoma have and that this would be
based on the Councils decision. Karen Stobaugh stated that she is required to have
insurance’s when she travels to different areas with her business. Permits, temporary license,
proof of insurance etc. was stated by Mrs. Stobaugh to be requirements for her. Mark
Emmons stated that he thought the paralle] parking was a good idea, in terms of making it
easier to handle situations concerning current businesses and the food vendors. Mrs. Kanard
asked a question regarding the license requirements. Mrs. Clifton responded that license is a
requirement through the city. She did not have a price set for licensing yet but did suggest
that there be a seasonal license consisting of 180 days and an annual license. Price
suggestions include low costs such as $50 - $100 for annual and maybe 50% - 60% of the
annual price set for the seasonal. There was discussion of the distances between the brick
and mortar and the food truck parking. Tony Korp asked if we had a weekend license
incorporated. Jayme Clifton said not at this time. Mark Emmons stated that he thought the 2
tier license was a good idea to avoid any hassle. Vendors shall not be within 150 feet of any
special event without permission from the event organizer. Karen Stobaugh asked how many
food trucks can park on one block at a time. Mrs. Clifton did not include a restriction on this
matter. Zoning and parking was brought to the attention of the commissioners. Jayme
replied by stating the food trucks are a good idea to increase pedestrians to constitute



Planning Commission Minutes from February 20, 2018 Page 3 of 4
shopping among the brick and mortar buildings.

Christina Hermsmeyer, with McAlester Main Street, stated that her organization had quite a
few ideas for the farmers market in which Karen Stobaugh had previously suggested would
be a good place for mobile food vendors to congregate. Mark Emmons stated that this
ordinance will not be set in stone forever and it’s a starting point. Ile stated that Jayme
Clifton did very well creating this ordinance. Jayme Clifton stated the reasoning for the
sidewalk side service only was for the safety of the pedestrians to prevent them from
walking into the street to order. It should be served towards the sidewalk side unless at a
special event and permitted by the event organizer. Mr. Cox asked if this is addressed
towards everyday sales or for special events and Jayme spoke and stated that it was to
address everyday mobile food venders. Justin Few expressed his concern about parking and
asked if stall parking could be changed later from the paraliel. Questions about electricity
were addressed. Jayme Clifton stated that there cannot be any obstruction of the sidewalks,
Karen Stobaugh stated that most mobile food vendors have generators.

Jeremy Beaver, a downtown business owner and property owner, stated he liked food trucks.
He continued by stating that he didn’t think creating a barrier for food vendors to come in
was a good idea. He specifically pointed out the million dollar insurance policy requirement
as a huge barrier and stated that it would hinder or detour a lot of the vendors.
Understandably, adding more restrictions to the ordinance would cause the vendors to
converse among themselves and would not actively bring business to McAlester if we have a
reputation of being difficult to get into. Mr. Beaver also addressed parking and agreed with
the presented ordinance. The $500.00 fine was a concern to him and stated that it should be
easier to obtain the license for the vendors. First time offenders should get a warning, Jayme
Clifton said the penalty is the same listed in Chapter 1 for all penalties of a violation but that
it could be reviewed. The commissary was addressed and explained to him as to ensure that
mobile food vendors cannot stay for extended periods of time. The health department
requires them to go back to their main location for certain amounts of time. He stated that
the vendors would encourage the loft apartment living and residential. Cully Stevens, a
downtown property owner, was also in favor of the ordinance. He addressed
entrepreneurship in our community. He stated most of younger generations will not return
after college to McAlester because there isn’t anything going on downtown and requested to
make changes that did create hurdles for people to start. The business and vendors enjoy
going to places that aren’t difficult to start, Claremore, OK is the only city that asked for
proof of insurance to make sure the truck itself had insurance. His fear is the new rules are so
restrictive that we will not see any growth and encouraged the commissioners to design it so
it fostered growth.

Rashonda Hutchings, Choctaw Nation’s Small Business Advisor, spoke as well. Mrs.
Hutchings stated that she is housed out of Kiamichi Technology Center. KTC and Poteau’s
culinary program is wanting to buy a food truck along with a few other individuals
associated with the program. They are all waiting on this ordinance to be created and pass to
be able to start their businesses. McAlester does not offer a variety of foods such as Korean
or Tai. She stated that these would be sales taxes generated for this community, Susan
Kanard asked how this food would be eaten standing up. Karen Stobaugh replied and stated
that the food presentation is in such a way to make it easy to consume on the go. Some
people get it to go as well or find a place to be seated as well such as benches or tables. Kirk
Ridenour stated he is sympathetic to the foresight needed for this ordinance. Downtowns are
adaptable and we can’t foresee every problem at first. We can always come back and
address problems as they arise. IKaren Stobaugh expressed interest in having her own truck
in front of her business. An idea to serve her customers as a quick solution instead of only
offering a sit down environment. Mrs, Clifton replied that new language would need to be



Planning Commission Minutes from February 20, 2018 Page 4 of 4

Item §

Item 6

Item 7

Item 8

incorporated for where her stores located. Christina Hermsmeyer stated that they would be
able to mark off a few parking spots to accommodate that idea.

Mark Emmons asked if there was any additional discussion. Karen Stobaugh stated that we
could approve this and address what comes up later if any does. Justin Few stated as well
that if the parking and such becomes an issue we can address it as it comes. Karen Stobaugh
stated that if the vendors are serious about their business, they will have general liability
insurance and other supporting documentation at time of application. Mark Emmons
concurred with the others and stated that we can address upcoming issues as they arise.
Steve Cox stated that they should comply with our application process, the health
department and the liability insurance requirements. Jayme Clifton suggested changes in the
language to be similar to the recently adopted sidewalk café permits. Justin Few agreed the
insurance requirements needed modification. Commissioner Few motioned to approve the
proposed Mobile Food Vendors ordinance with amendment to show proof of liability
insurance. Frank Phillips seconded the motion. Commissioner Emmons closed discussion on
the matter at 7:51 P.M. Roll was called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Few, Stobaugh, Emmons, Cox, Korp, Gullick, Phillips, Kanard
NAY: None

The motion carried.

New Business
There was no new business.

Staff Report

Comprehensive Plan Progress.

Jayme Clifton updated the Commission on progress of the comprehensive plan, presenting
information on how well the stakeholder meetings and public meetings went. She stated that
Guernsey would advise of the next step after they took all the input and information
collected and incorporated them into the project.

Commission Reports
Mark Emmons reminded all commissioners up for reappointment they would need to
resubmit biography information.

Adjournment
A motion made by Commissioner Gullick was seconded by Commissioner Cox to adjourn
the meeting at 7:55 p.m. There was no objection.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Kanard, Few, Emmons, Cox, Korp, Gullick, Phillips, Stobaugh
NAY: None

The motion carried.

Approved:

Planning Commission Chairman Date



City of McAlester

Community & Economic Development
15! & Washington £ P.O. Box 578 & McAlester, OK 74502 £ (918) 423-9300

|
f
|

TO: McAlester Planning Commission Members
FROM: Leroy Alsup, Community and Economic Davelopment Director % ﬁ
DATE: September 9, 2015

s sk sk ok sk oskosk sk sk sk ok ok ok ko sk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok ok sk sk sk ok ok ok ok ok k k k sk sk ok ok sk ook ok %k ok ok %k Kk ok %k ok ok % ok
September 15, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda

There will be a meeting of the McAlester Planning Commission on Tuesday, September 15, 2015 at 6:30
p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building.

1. Call to order and roll call.
2= Approval of Minutes from August 27, 2015 Meeting.
GENERAL BUSINESS:

Staff report on each item of general business shall be presented by staff prior to applicant’s
discussion with Planning Commission.

3. Public Hearing: Discussion and action on P. C. #404, a request to rezone the property described
below from R-1B Single-family Residential District to C-4 Restricted Commercial District:

LOCATION: 711 E Electric Avenue
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 6, in Block 32, McAlester Addition to the City of McAlester,
Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma.

4. Initial Discussion of an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Chapter 22 Businesses to
add Article VII. Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks).

5 Discussion and action on an ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Division 3. Zoning
Districts and District Regulations; Subdivision 1I. Specific Districts by deleting the existing
Sections 62-612 Wyandotte Avenue Corridor Development and 62-213 Wade Watts Corridor
Development and replaced with a new Section 62-212 Wyandotte/Wade Watts Avenue Corridor
Development.

6. New Business

% Staff Report

8. Commission Report

9. Adjournment
Leroy Alsup- Director Kirk Ridenour- Economic Development Manager Jayme Clifton- Execulive Assl /Planning Technician
(918)423-9300 ¢x1.4951 (918) 423-9300 ex1,4982 (918) 423-9300 cxt 4984
James Schulz - Code Enforcement Inspector George Estrada- Building Inspector

(918) 423-9300 cxt. 4986 (918) 423-9300 exl. 4985



McAlester Planning Commission Minutes
Thursday, September 15, 2015 Meeting

City Council Chambers
6:30 PM
Item 1 Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairman Mark Emmons called the meeting to order at 6:31 P.M. Roll was called,
and a quorum was present.
Commissioners Present: 8
Harvey Bollinger Mark Emmons Justin Few Carl Gullick
Susan Kanard Primus Moore Karl Scifres Chris Taylor
Commissioners Absent: 3
Ross Eaton Denise Lewis Karen Stobaugh
Item 2 Approval of Minutes
A motion made by Commissioner Gullick was seconded by Commissioner Scifres
to approve the August 27, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes.
The vote was 8-0
AYE: Taylor, Bollinger, Few, Gullick, Kanard, Moore, Scifres, Emmons
NAY: None
The motion carried.
GENERAL BUSINESS:
Item 3 Public Hearing: Discussion and action on P.C. #404, a request to rezone Lot 6,

in Block 32, McAlester Addition to the City of McAlester, Pittsburg County,
State of Oklahoma from R-1B Single-family Residential District to C-4
Restricted Commercial District.

Chairman Emmons opened the item for discussion at 6:32 P.M. Jayme Clifton,
Planning Technician of the Community and Economic Development Department,
presented the staff report to the Commission and it is hereby incorporated in the
minutes by reference. The use of surrounding land is predominately commercial
with adjoining and contiguous lots zoned as C-4 Restricted Commercial District.
Staff recommended the approval of the applicants request to rezone the property to
C-4 Restricted Commercial District.

Area regulations for C-4 Restricted Commercial District state that the minimum lot
area for rezoning to a C-4 (restricted commercial district) shall not be less than
50,000 square feet. [Past Practice has been that if the lot to be rezoned is
contiguous to other lots already zoned C-4, the cumulative sq. ft. of the lot under
consideration for rezoning plus the contiguous lots is used to satisfy this minimum
standard. Back in 2000 (Ordinance No. 2114) when the lot next to this one, Lot 5,
Block 32 (15,000 sq. fi.) was rezoned from RIB to C-4 this same rational was
used.]



Planning Commission Minutes from September 15,2015 Page 2 of 3

Ttem 4

Item 5

Chairman Emmons asked if anyone for or against the application wished to speak.
No one came forward. Chairman Emmons closed discussion on the matter at 6:35
PM and called for a motion. Commissioner Moore motioned to approve the
applicants’ request to rezone the property from R-1B Single-Family Residential
District to C-4 Restricted Commercial District, and was seconded by Commissioner
Few. Chairman Emmons asked if there were any comments from the
Commission. There were none, and roll was called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Few, Gullick, Kanard, Moore, Scifres, Taylor, Bollinger, Emmons
NAY: None

The motion carried.

Initial Discussion of an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Chapter
22 Businesses to add Article VII. Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks).

Chairman Emmons opened the item for discussion at 6:36 PM. Leroy Alsup,
Director of Community and Economic Development, presented documentation and
sample regulations to the Commission on Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks) from other
select communities. Further, Mr. Alsup outline issues that had been identified by
these other communities in regards to Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks).

Josh and Michelle Mabry, of Fit Feast to Go, spoke to the commission about their
food truck business and their future plans. After discussion by the commission, the
identified concerns for an ordinance included identitying differences between
permitted and special events and clarifying parking and distance requirements for
Downtown and Old Town. The commission also requested further exploration for an
ordinance on a trial basis and then communication with ODOT concerning mobile
vendors along Carl Albert Parkway, Main Street and George Nigh Expressway.

Chairman Emmons closed discussion on the matter at 7:36 PM and called for a
motion. Commissioner Few motioned staff to draft an ordinance based on the
Planning Commission’s input and present a draft ordinance at a future meeting,
Commissioner Taylor seconded. There were no other comments from the
Commission and roll was called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Few, Gullick, Kanard, Moore, Scifres, Taylor, Bollinger, Emmons
NAY: None

The motion carried

Discussion and action on an ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code,
Division 3. Zoning Districts and District Regulations; Subdivision II. Specific
Districts by deleting the existing Sections 62-612 Wyandotte Avenue Corridor
Development and 62-213 Wade Watts Corridor Development and replace them
with a new Section 62-212 Wyandotte/Wade Watts Avenue Corridor
Development.



Planning Commission Minutes from September 15, 2015 Page 3 of 3

Ttem 6

Item 7

Item 8

Ttem 9

Approved:

ey /.
By: ___© /;CK/

Commissioner Moore motioned to table the item to the next meeting and
Commissioner Kanard seconded. No other motions were made. Roll was called.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Gullick, Kanard, Moore, Scifres, Taylor, Bollinger, Few, Emmons
NAY: None

The motion carried.

New Business
There was no New Business.

Staff Report
There was no Staff Report.

Commission Report
There was no Commission Report.

Adjournment
A motion made by Commissioner Moore was seconded by Commissioner Sciftes to
adjourn the meeting at 7:38 PM. There was no objection. The motion carried.

T A Cff_f——

. = e :
Planning Commission Chairman



TO:
FROM:
DATE:

City of McAlester

Community & Economic Development
1%t & Washington & P.O. Box 578 & McAlester, OK 74502 £ (918) 423-9300

Leroy Alsup, Community and Economic Development Director

McAlester Planning Commission Members /} ﬂ,
October 12, 2015

sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok sk sk ok ok sk ok sk ok k sk %k ok ok sk sk sk ok ok ok sk %k ko ok ok sk sk ok ok ok ok %

October 20, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda

There will be a meeting of the McAlester Planning Commission on Tuesday, October 20, 2015 at 6:30
p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building.

1.

Call to order and roll call.

2. Approval of Minutes from September 15, 2015 Meeting.
GENERAL BUSINESS:
Staff report on each item of general business shall be presented by staff prior to applicant’s
discussion with Planning Commission.

3. Public Hearing: Discussion and action on P. C. #405, a request to rezone the property from R-1B
Single-family Residential District to C-2 Neighborhood Convenience District, and U.P. #57, an
alternate request for a Use Permit After Review in the Wade Watts Corridor if the rezoning
request is denied, for the property described below:

LOCATION: 1401 Wade Watts Avenue
LEGAL: Lot 5, in Block 416, City of McAlester, formerly South McAlester, Pittsburg County,
State of Oklahoma.

4, Continued Discussion of an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Chapter 22 Businesses
to add Article VII. Maobile Vendors (Food Trucks).

5. Discussion and action on an ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Division 3. Zoning
Districts and District Regulations; Subdivision II. Specific Districts by deleting the existing
Sections 62-612 Wyandotte Avenue Corridor Development and 62-213 Wade Watts Corridor
Development and replaced with a new Section 62-212 Wyandotte/Wade Watts Avenue Corridor
Development.

6. New Business

7. Staff Report

8. Commission Report

9. Adjournment

Leroy Alsup- Directlor Kirk Ridenour- Economic Development Manager Jayine Clifton- Executive Asst /Planning Technician
(918) 4239300 ext 4951 (918) 423-9300 ext 4982 (918) 423-9300 exl. 4984
James Schulz - Code Enforcement lnspector George Estrada- Building Inspector

(918) 423-9300 ext 4986

(918) 423-9300 ext. 4985



McAlester Planning Commission Minutes
Tuesday, October 20, 2015 Meeting

City Council Chambers
6:30 PM
Item 1 Call to Order and Roll Call
Due to the absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, Leroy Alsup called the
meeting to order at 6:43 P.M. Roll was called, and a quorum was present.
Commissioners Present: 6
Harvey Bollinger Carl Gullick Susan Kanard Karl Scifres
Karen Stobaugh Chris Taylor
Commissioners Absent: 5
Mark Emmons Ross Eaton Justin Few Denise Lewis
Primus Moore
A motion was made by Commissioner Kanard second by Commissioner Sciftres to
appoint Commissioner Harvey Bollinger interim chairman. The vote was taken.
The vote was 6-0
AYE: Kanard, Scifres, Stobaugh, Taylor, Gullick, Bollinger
NAY: None
The motion carried.
Item 2 Approval of Minutes
A motion made by Commissioner Gullick was seconded by Commissioner Scifres
to approve the September 15, 2015 Regular Mecting Minutes. The vote was taken.
The vote was 6-0
AYE: Kanard, Scifres, Stobaugh, Taylor, Gullick, Bollinger
NAY: None
The motion carried.
GENERAL BUSINESS:
Item 3 Public Hearing; Discussion and action on P.C. #405, a request to rezone Lot 6,

in Block 32, McAlester Addition to the City of McAlester, Pittsburg County,
State of Oklahoma from R-1B Single-family Residential District to C-2
Neighborhood Convenience District, and U.P. #57, an alternate request for a
Use Permit After Review in the Wade Watts Corridor if the rezoning request is
denied.

Commissioner Bollinger opened the item for discussion at 6:45 P.M. Leroy Alsup,
Director of the Community and Economic Development Department, presented the
staff report to the Commission and it is hereby incorporated in the minutes by
reference. Staff recommended that the property at 1401 Wade Watts Avenue (Lot
5, in Block 416) be rezoned from R-1B Single-Family Residential District to C-2
Neighborhood Convenience District based on the following reasoning:



Planning Commission Minutes from October 20, 2015 Page 2 of 4

1. The Wade Watts Corridor is a transition area that is becoming a commercial
corridor. The neighborhood no longer lends itself to new residential
development. The property to the west and southwest are zoned C-2
Neighborhood Convenience District. Even, the property to south is developed
commercially under a Use Permitted After Review.

2. The rezoning of 1401 Wade Watts Avenue (Lot 5, in Block 416) would be an
extension of the existing C-2 Neighborhood Convenience District directly to
the West and Southwest, therefore the 50,000 sq. ft. minimum lot area for
rezoning to C-2 would not be satisfied (precedent set by City Ordinance
#2178 discussed in the staff report).

3. The property at 1401 Wade Watts Avenue (Lot 5, in Block 416) would remain
within the Wade Watts Corridor Development therefore the Exterior
standards/visual appeal guidelines set forth in Sec 62-213 (g) would remain
applicable to the property even after it was rezoned.

Further, staff recommended that if the Planning Commission determined they
were not favorable to rezoning the property at 1401 Wade Watts Avenue (Lot 3,
in Block 416) from R-1B Single-Family Residential District to C-2 Neighborhood
Convenience District, then staff would recommend granting a Use Permitted
After Review at 1401 Wade Watts Avenue for a barbershop and beauty shop.

Commissioner Bollinger asked if anyone for or against the application wished to
speak. No one came forward. Commissioner Bollinger closed the public hearing on
the matter at 6:53 PM and called for a motion. Commissioner Scifres motioned to
approve the applicants’ request to rezone the property from R-1B Single-Family
Residential District to C-2 Neighborhood Convenience District, and was seconded
by Commissioner Stobaugh.

Commissioner Bollinger asked for discussion by the Commission. There was
discussion of topics such as another recently opened beauty salon on property just
across from 1401 on Wade Watts Avenue that was already zoned C-2 commercial;
the similar commercial use of other properties in the Wade Watts Corridor; the
visual standards set for the Corridor, the transition of the Wade Watts Corridor from
residential to commercial; and the similarities of permitted uses in both Wade Watts
Corridor Development and C-2 Neighborhood Convenience District. There were no
other comments. The vote was taken.

The vote was 5-1

AYE: Scifres, Stobaugh, Taylor, Kanard, Bollinger
NAY: Gullick

The motion carried.

Commissioner Stobaugh motioned to approve the applicants request for a Use
Permit After Review for a beauty salon in the event the rezoning request was denied
by City Council. Commissioner Sciftes seconded the motion. No other motions
were made. The vote was taken.



Planning Commission Minutes from October 20, 2015 Page 3 of 4

Item 4

Item 5

Item 6

Item 7

Item 8

Item 9

The vote was 6-0

AYE: Scifres, Stobaugh, Taylor, Gullick, Kanard, Bollinger
NAY: None

The motion carried

Discussion of an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Chapter 22
Businesses to add Article VII. Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks).

Commissioner Scifres motioned to table the item to the next meeting and
Commissioner Taylor seconded. No other motions were made and the vote was
taken.

The vote was 6-0

AYE: Sciftes, Stobaugh, Taylor, Gullick, Kanard, Bollinger
NAY: None

The motion carried

Discussion and action on an ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code,
Division 3. Zoning Districts and District Regulations; Subdivision II. Specific
Districts by deleting the existing Sections 62-612 Wyandotte Avenue Corridor
Development and 62-213 Wade Watts Corridor Development and replace them
with a new Section 62-212 Wyandotte/Wade Watts Avenue Corridor
Development.

Commissioner Scifres motioned to table the item to the next meeting and
Commissioner Stobaugh seconded. No other motions were made and the vote was
taken.

The vote was 6-0

AYE: Sciftres, Stobaugh, Taylor, Gullick, Kanard, Bollinger
NAY: None

The motion carried.

New Business
There was no New Business.

Staff Report
There was no Staff Report.

Commission Report
There was no Commission Report.

Adjournment
A motion made by Commissioner Taylor was seconded by Commissioner Kanard to

adjourn the meeting at 7:10 PM. There was no objection. The motion carried.

The vote was 6-0



Planning Commission Minutes from October 20, 2015 Page 4 of 4

AYE: Scifres, Stobaugh, Taylor, Gullick, Kanard, Bollinger
NAY: None - ,
The motion carried.

Approved:

) |
f//%{{{%; g;}fpwa{/h«(,‘__,—f— //’//”/;

Planning Commission Chairman Date




TO:
FROM: Leroy Alsup, Community and Economic Development Director % ﬁ/

DATE:

City of McAlester

McAlester Planning Commission Members

November 12, 2015

Community & Economic Development
1*' & Washington & P.O. Box 578 £ McAlester, OK 74502 » (918) 423-9300 __

ok ok %k sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk %k sk ook ko sk sk ok sk sk ok ok sk sk ok ok 3k %k ko ok koK sk ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ko K ok ok X ok

November 17,2015 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda

There will be a meeting of the McAlester Planning Commission on Tuesday, November 17, 2015 at 6:30
p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building.

1.

Call to order and roll call.

2. Approval of Minutes from October 20, 2015 Meeting.
GENERAL BUSINESS:
Staff report on each item of general business shall be presented by staff prior to applicant’s
discussion with Planning Commission.
3 Public Hearing: Discussion and action on P. C. #406, a request to rezone the property described
below from R-1B Single-family Residential District to C-4 Restricted Commercial District.
LOCATION: 1101 E Choctaw Avenue
LEGAL: Lot 4, in Block 340, City of McAlester, formerly South McAlester, Pittsburg County, State
of Oklahoma.
4. Continued Discussion of an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code, Chapter 22 Businesses
to add Article VII. Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks).
51 New Business
ia Staff Report
8. Commission Report
9. Adjournment
Leroy Alsup- Director Kirk Ridenour- Economic Development Manager Jayme Cliflon- Execulive Asst /Planning Technician
(918) 423-9300 ext 4951 {918) 423-9300 ext 4982 (918) 423-9300 ext 4984
James Schulz - Code Enforceinent Inspector George Esirada- Building Inspector

(918) 423-9300 ext. 4986

(918) 423-9300 ext, 4985



Item 1

Ttem 2

McAlester Planning Commission Minutes
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 Meeting
City Council Chambers
6:30 PM

Call to Order and Roll Call .
Chairman Mark Emmons called the meeting to order at 6:32 P.M. Roll was called,
and a quorum was present.

Commissioners Present: 8§
Harvey Bollinger Mark Emmons Justin Few Carl Gullick
Susan Kanard Denis Lewis Primus Moore Karen Stobaugh

Commissioners Absent: 3
Ross Eaton Karl Scifres Chris Taylor

Approval of Minutes

A motion made by Commissioner Gullick was seconded by Commissioner
Stobaugh to approve the October 20, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes. The vote was
taken.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Stobaugh, Bollinger, Few, Gullick, Kanard, Lewis, Moore, Emmons
NAY: None

The motion carried.

GENERAL BUSINESS:

Item 3

Public Hearing: Discussion and action on P.C. #406, a request to rezone Lot 4,
in Block 340, City of McAlester, formerly South McAlester, Pittsburg County,
State of Oklahoma from R-1B Single-family Residential District to C-4
Restricted Commercial District.

Chairman Emmons opened the item for discussion at 6:34 P.M.

Jayme Clifton, Planning Technician of the Community and Economic Development
Department, presented the staff report to the Commission and it is hereby
incorporated in the minutes by reference. Staff reported that the property north and
to the west of Lot 4, Block 340 is already zoned C-4 Restricted Commercial
District and has been developed commercially. Property to the southwest is zoned
C-3 General Commercial District. The property is along Strong Boulevard, which
is a major artery. The property to the west of Lot 4, Block 340 is zoned R-1B
Single-Family Residential District and remains residential in character.

City Staff determined the property at 1101 E Choctaw Avenue (Lot 4, Block 340)
meets all of the technical requirements to be rezoned from R-1B Single-Family
Residential District to C-4 Restricted Commercial District.

Staff also noted that if the property at 1101 E Choctaw Avenue is rezoned from
R-1B Single-Family Residential District to C-4 Restricted Commercial District,



Planning Commission Minutes from November 17, 2015 Page2 of 3

Item 4

the existing residential structure on the property would become a nonconforming
structure and use pursuant to Subdivision III of the City’s Zoning Ordinance.

Karen Factory, the applicant, spoke on plans to sell the property as commercial for
continued development in the area of Strong Boulevard and Choctaw Avenue. She
noted the vacant lot east of her property was owned by the City, and suggested both
lots combined would allow adequate space for commercial development. Leroy
Alsup, Director of Community and Economic Development, explained conditions in
the Code of Ordinances when residential properties are rezoned commercial and
uses are changed, noting the provisions of nonconforming structures and uses.
Factory inquired on uses permitted, future development of the City owned vacant lot
and development along Strong Boulevard and Choctaw Avenue. Mr. Alsup
indicated the uses listed in the C-4 Restricted Commercial District. Chairman
Emmons suggested likelihood of development along Strong Boulevard rather than
Choctaw Avenue. Mrs. Factory expressed her beliefs the location was in line with
development in the area and requested the commission to rezone the property and
that she understood the rezoning action would make the current residence on the
property a nonconforming use.

Chairman Emmons asked if anyone else for or against the application wished to
speak. No one came forward. Chairman Emmons closed the public hearing on the
matter at 6:46 PM and called for a motion. Commissioner Moore motioned to
approve the applicants’ request to rezone the property from R-1B Single-Family
Residential District to C-4 Restricted Commercial District, and was seconded by
Commissioner Gullick. Chairman Emmons asked for discussion by the
Commission. There were no other comments. The vote was taken.

The vote was 8-0

AYE: Bollinger, Few, Gullick, Kanard, Lewis, Moore, Stobaugh, Emmons
NAY: None.

The motion carried.

Continued discussion of an Ordinance to amend the McAlester City Code,
Chapter 22 Businesses to add Article VIL. Mobile Vendors (Food Trucks).

Chairman Emmons opened the item for discussion at 6:48 P.M. Leroy Alsup
recounted details of the agenda item. Mr. Alsup stated an interim period of operating
had occurred during ongoing research of a new ordinance and the individuals
promoting the development of a mobile food vendor ordinance had returned for
additional discussion with their feedback received from downtown and old town
merchants,

Josh and Michelle Mabry, announced they were accompanied by supporters and
provided written email responses from ten businesses and/or individuals who
generally supported their mobile food vendor business. Mrs. Mabry requested an
ordinance that allowed mobile food vendors at churches, schools and parks in
residentially zoned areas. Rachel Summer expressed her support to the Commission
and described her perceived opportunities food vendors offered to attract additional



Planning Commission Minutes from November 17, 2015 Page 3 of 3

patrons in downtown areas. John Titsworth, stated his support of a mobile vendor
ordinance that provided opportunity to mobile food vendors with measures that also
protect the community, Adam Gronwald communicated his support for an ordinance
and requested that it provide a middle ground between mobile food vendors and
downtown merchants so that young business owners with similar pursuits could
return to or come to McAlester.

Commissioner Stobaugh expressed support and suggested finding areas that
nurtured the mobile food vendor concept. Commissioner Few advised careful
attention of requirements on private property owners to give expressed permission
for use of public property. Commissioners Bollinger and Gullick supported
development of the ordinance but also voiced concerns of the negative impacts on
invested downtown and old town business property owners. Commissioner Few
welcomed proposed ordinance language for review by the commission. Mr. Alsup
agreed and noted he would try to have a draft ready for the Planning Commission
Meeting in January. Chairman Emmons closed the item for discussion at 7:48 P.M.

Item 5 New Business
There was no New Business.

Item 6 Staff Report
There was no Staff Report.

Item 7 Commission Report
There was no Commission Report.

Item 8 Adjournment
A motion made by Commissioner Kanard was seconded by Commissioner Stobaugh
to adjourn the meeting at 7:49 PM. There was no objection. The motion carried.

The vote was 6-0
AYE: Gullick, Kanard, Lewis, Moore, Stobaugh, Bollinger, Emmons

NAY: None
The motion carried.

Approved:

& ///% J%«-«-V(ﬂ(&"_— v 57 A 4

Planning Commission Chairman Date




McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Iitem Number: 4
Department:
Robert Vaughan,
Infrastructure Solutions
Prepared By: Group Account Code:
Date Prepared: March 1, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits: 3

Consider and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign Change Order # 1 from KATCON Inc., in the amount of
$1,424.05 for the addition of removing and replacing failed and heaved pavement at two locations adjacent to
the Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter Improvements project. The failures were noticed as repair work began. The
first location is at 2009 Cardinal Lane and the second location is at 2001 Cardinal Lane.

Recommendation

The recommendation is to authorize the Mayor to sign Change Order # 1 from KATCON Inc., in the amount of
$1,424.05 for the addition of removing and replacing failed and heaved pavement at two locations adjacent to
the Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter Improvements project. The failures were noticed as repair work began. The
first location is at 2009 Cardinal Lane and the second location is at 2001 Cardinal Lane.

Approved By

Initial Date
D.
Department Head Horinek
City Manager P. Stasiak /7}{5 3-9-18

Z

Page 1 of 1



———

INFRASTRUCTURE
SOLUTIONS GROUP LLC

Consulting Engineers

February 28, 2018
David Horinek, Public Works Director
City of McAlester
P.O. Box 578
McAlester, OK 74502

Re: Change Order No. One (1)
Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter Improvements

Dear Mr. Horinek:

Enclosed for your review and execution are four (4) copies of Change Order No. One (1) for the
referenced project.

The additional work in this change order is to repair the failed and heaved pavement at two locations
adjacent to the curb and gutter work. First location is at 2009 Cardinal Lane with a 6 foot wide by 25
foot long failed area and the second location at 2001 Cardinal Lane with a 2.5 foot wide by 42 foot
long failed area. These failures showed up after the project was bid. A field meeting was held on
February 28, 2018 and it was determined by City Staff that it be best to include this extra pavement
work with the concurrent curb and gutter project. The extra work includes aggregate base and
asphalt paving and is a net addition of $1,424.05. We recommend this Change Order be approved.

Please place this item on the agenda for approval at your next meeting and upon approval please
have the Mayor sign all four (4) copies. Please return two (2) copies to our office located at 719 S.
George Nigh Expressway, McAlester, OK 74501 for distribution. Retain two (2) copies for your
records, (Engineering Office and City Clerk Office).

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office at (918) 420-5500.

Sincerely,
InfrastgQigture Balutions Group, LLC

Robert Vaugha'n, P.E.
Branch Manager

RV
Enclosures

Project No. MC-17-05

==

719 S. GEORGE NIGH EXPY = MCALESTER, OK 74501 = 918.420.5500 = 866.398.6481 FAX = WWW.ISGENGINEERING.COM
engineering the future = civil engineering = environmental » transportation = bridge = construction management = design-build



Date of Issuance: 3/13/2018

CHANGE ORDER
No. One (1)

Effective Date: 3/13/2018

Project: Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter
Improvements

Owners Contract No.:

: City of McAlester
Owner: City cAle MC-17-05

Contract: Cardinal Lane Curb and Gutter Improvements

Date of Contract:
February 13, 2018

Contractor: KATCON, Inc

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

Description:

Item No. 3: Add 19 Cubic Yards of Aggregate Base, ODOT Type A @ $34.70/CY for a total addition of $659.30
Item No. 4: Add 5 Ton of Asphalt Paving @ $152.95 / Ton for a total addition of $764.75

Attachments: (documents supporting change):

1. Itemized Unit Price Bid Spreadsheet

Change in Contract Price:

Change in Contract Times:

Original Contract Price:
s 51,144.65

Increase from previously approved
Change Orders No. to No. _

S =

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

S 51,144.65

Increase of this Change Order:
$ 1,424.05

Contract Price incorporating this Change
Order:

S 52,568.70

Original Contract Time: Calandar Days

Substantial Completion: 30 days  March 25, 2018

Increase from previously approved Change Orders
No. to No. .

Substantial Completion: 0 days

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: 30 days  March 25, 2018

increase of this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: 14 days

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:

Substantial Completion: 44 days  April 8, 2018

Recommended:

Accepted:

by:

Accepted:

EJCDC No. C-941 (2002 Edition)

Owner (Authorized Signature) / Title

Date:

Contrdctor (Authoriged Signature) / Title

Date: ?) - \%’ \8

Page 1 of 1



City of McAlester
Cardinal LaneCurb & Gutter Improvements

... . e . Change | Change Order | Updated Total Qty

ltem |Description Qty | Unit | Unit Price Total Price Order # 1 #1 Price and Price
1 |Concrete Curb & Gutter 544 | LF $40.40 $21,977.60 $0.00 | 544 $21,977.60
2 |Concrete Driveway 79 | SY $114.90 $9,077.10 $0.00 | 79 $9,077.10
3 |Agg Base, ODOT Type A 285 | CY $34.70 $9,889.50 19 $659.30 | 304 $10,548.80
4 |Asphalt Paving 51 | Tons $152.95 $7,800.45 5 $764.75 | 56 $8,565.20
5 |Solid Slab Sodding 400 | SY $6.00 $2,400.00 $0.00 | 400 $2,400.00
Total Amount $51,144.65 $1,424.05 $52,568.70




McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: 5

Department:

Prepared By: Peter Stasiak, City Manager Account Code:

Date Prepared: March 7, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Exhibits:

Submission, and Presentation of the 5-Year Capital Improvements Plan for FY 2018/19-2022/23.

Recommendation

Presentation.

Approved By

Initial Date
Department Head

City Manager P. Stasiak /%/5 3-8-15

Page 1 of 1




McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 13, 2018 Item Number: 6
Department: Economic Development Account Code:
Prepared By: Kirk Ridenour, Director Budgeted Amount:
Date Prepared: March 8, 2018 Exhibits:

Subject

Consider and act upon, to accept the resignation of Councilman Weldon Smith as Chairman of the McAlester
Southside Area Reinvestment Review Committee and to confirm the Mayor’s appointment as replacement to
the Chairperson.

Recommendation

Confirm the Mayor’s appointment as Chairperson of the Southside Area Reinvestment Review Committee.

Discussion

Approved By

Initial Date
Department Head K. Ridenour KR 3/8/2018
City Manager P. Stasiak % F-F/5
y/4

Page 1 of 1



Council Chambers
Municipal Building
February 27, 2018

The McAlester Airport Authority met in Regular session on Tuesday February 27, 2018, at 6:00
P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted February 26, 2018.

Present: Cully Stevens, Travis Read, Jason Barnett, Robert Karr, John Browne
Absent: Buddy Garvin & Weldon Smith
Presiding John Browne, Chairman

A motion was made by Mr. Stevens and seconded by Mr. Read to approve the following:

o Approval of the Minutes from the February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

o Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending February
20, 2018. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) in the amount of § 2,711.16.

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Stevens, Karr, Barnett, Read & Chairman Browne
NAY: None

Chairman Browne declared the motion carried.

There being no further business to come before the Authority, Mr. Stevens moved for the meeting
to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Read.

There was no discussion and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Stevens, Karr, Barnett, Read & Chairman Browne
NAY: None

Chairman John Browne declared the motion carried.

John Browne, Chairman
ATTEST:

Cora Middleton, Secretary

Page 1 of 1



Council Chambers
Municipal Building
February 27, 2018

The McAlester Public Works Authority met in Regular session on Tuesday February 27, 2018, at
6:00 P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted February 26, 2018.

Present: Cully Stevens, Jason Barnett, Travis Read, Robert Karr & John Browne
Absent: Weldon Smith & Buddy Garvin
Presiding:  John Browne, Chairman

A motion was made by Mr. Karr and seconded by Mr. Read to approve the following:

° Approval of the Minutes from the February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
Public Works Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

° Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B regarding claims ending February
20, 2018. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) in the amount of § 221,243.15.

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Stevens, Karr, Read, Barnett & Chairman Browne.
NAY: None

Chairman Browne declared the motion carried.
There being no further business to come before the Authority. Mr. Karr moved for the meeting
to be adjourned, and the motion was seconded by Mr. Read. There was no discussion and the

vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Stevens, Karr, Read, Barnett & Chairman Browne.
NAY: None

Chairman Browne declared the motion carried.

ATTEST: John Browne, Chairman

Cora Middleton, Secretary

Page 1 of 1



	p1
	p2

